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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Fountain Set Group”) (Stock Code:
00420.HK)

One of the world’s largest and long-established fabric manufacturers, the Fountain Set Group produces knitted fabric and garments
through vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing and garment manufacturing, for many of the
renowned apparel retailers and brands.

As a strong believer of research and development, we collaborate with brands and suppliers to develop innovative and creative fabric
and garment products to consumers all over the world. Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Fountain Set Group has 7 production facilities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative offices in 4 countries and a global staff force of close to 5,900 strong.

Chinatex Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, has become the largest shareholder of the
Company since 2012. COFCO Corporation is a state-wholly-owned enterprise established in the PRC and a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC. Mr. HA Chung
Fong, founder and honorary chairman of the Company remains one of the substantial shareholders of the Company.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com
To learn more about Chinatex Corporation Limited, please visit www.chinatex.com
To learn more about COFCO Corporation, please visit www.cofco.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. HA Chung Fong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Xianfu (Chairman)
(re-designated from non-executive Director to executive Director and
appointed as Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2022)

Mr. SUN Fuiji (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Mr. ZHANG Zheng

Non-executive Directors

Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. TAO Yongming
(re-designated from executive Director to
non-executive Director on 1 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine

REGISTERED OFFICE & PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.fshl.com

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.

SOLICITORS
Loong & Yeung
Vivien Chan & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
(Appointed on 28 September 2022)

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
(Resigned on 28 September 2022)

SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
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EXTENSIVE WORLDWIDE NETWORK
SR AIRBRARAS

YANCHENG &5

TOKYO ®R=
SHANGHAI L&

HONG KONG &3#
MACAO %P

HO CHI MINH CITY #7588

JAKARTA ERfNiE

@ HEADQUARTERS 4825
@ PRODUCTION FACILIT)
. @ TRADING OFFICE i

HEADQUARTERs » @ 8 A

HONG KONG &# CHINA ] MACAO #F9
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Sales of Dyed Fabrics &4 & Raw Materials Sourcing B} iR
W Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
FENBHHHEDERRF P2 CRPIBE =R BRAT
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
PRODUCTION FACILITY « £Z8), rsmEemsss R HO CHI MINH CITY #3587
Fountain Set Limited
CHINA F1[E - Vietnam Representative Office
Knitting & Dyeing $+48i R HONG KONG &# %ﬂ?&‘;%%;g?@a
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited Raw Materials Sourcing [F#}H% 8 i
IRREGHARAT Highscene Limited TOKYO Hx
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited EERBRATE Fountain Set Limited
BtE =4~ b INZ . .
A G A ) Sales of Dyed Fabrics &% #4 & Ui
Knitting, Dyeing & Printing #4 « & K& ENTE Fountain Set Limited BHBXEARRH
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles EREEARAT - BEEAREFR
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. . P
B2 ) B s h SR EN S R A ] Sales of Garments R 7k & UNITED KINGDOM 35
. f Hiway Textiles Limited Fountain Set (Europe) Limited
Garment Manufacturing &7k EELSBERAT BEEE (BN BRAS

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.
FRABERAERAT

Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.
BRAIBRXRERAT

JAKARTA HRfiniE

Garment Manufacturing 7%
P.T. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang

COLOMBO FIfi

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.

PXBBERREEHEXBBLIEX - HAEKE  MURLBRE



4

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2022

FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR AR sHEE

2022 2021
HK$Mil EEET  HKSMI B2 E7T
Operating Results EEXEE
Revenue LG 6,053.6 6,751.3
Financial Performance BRI
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners iN/NETEZ 2 =N
of the Company FEfL (B518) /& F) (115.5) 241.3
Profit margin B =X (1.9%) 3.6%
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREN GEW)
- Basic —®K (9.4) 19.7
— Diluted —#E (9.4) 19.7
Dividends 35}
Proposed final dividend per share BRAOSKRFIARE
(HK cents) B - 16.00
Dividend payout ratio TREEEE - 81.2%

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12H831H 128318
2022 2021
HKS$Mil BEE7T  HKMIl &5 &E &
Financial Position at Year End REERERZBHERR
Net current assets MEEEZFE 2,193.0 2,248.8
Total assets BEEME 5,046.8 5,748.4
Non-current bank borrowings é‘E/uL@ﬁEﬁth% 235.5 =
Total bank borrowings HIRTTREE 436.2 327.3
Net bank borrowings fﬁmﬁéaﬂﬁ (962.9) (501.8)
Total liabilities aE48E 1,623.0 1,989.3
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEZRE (Br) 2.63 2.91
Capital expenditure BARREE 163.6 170.7
Financial Statistics A4t
Return on equity (%) 1 7 [O1 3R 2 (%) (2.7%) 7.2%
Consolidated tangible net worth FERAETEE 3,126.4 3,255.1
Consolidated total bank debt to RERIRTTARHREFER
consolidated tangible net worth BEELA 0.1 0.1
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated iR EMITER SN EEERS
interest expenses 1 5 S W EE A 8.8 34.6
Consolidated current assets to REREBEERGZSRE
consolidated current liabilities =Ryl 2.9 2.3
Inventory turnover period (days) EFEFER (H) 62 107
Trade and bills receivables turnover EEYES ey
period (days) BEE (/) 56 69
Trade and bills payables turnover EERERENRIE
period (days) AEHEA (/) 33 59
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

- ==
MBERAAEE @)
Revenue Gross Profit Margin
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AL E

A summary of the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the respective published
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out as below. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

ERBRANBARBELEYMBREEZ M
EXREE (B EREAMKEERGEEMT
]R) BIWMT - I E L TERAE B GRS/
BERKRZ 2D

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RElEmR
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HZ20185F HZ20195 HZ20205 HEo021E #Z20226F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12831H
I: 355 HFE IHFE IHFE LEFE

HK$'000 8  HK$000 FB7x HKS000 FH7T HKS000 &7 HK$000 F#ET

Revenue e 7,610,789 6,605,655 4,943,230 6,751,277 6,053,645

Profit/(loss) before income tax ~ BRFTISR % HATRF]/

expense (&518) 230,865 209,619 122,145 337,450 (20,210)
Income tax expense S (52,586) (42,805) (20,554) (67,192) (72,954)
Profit/(loss) for the year ZEERH/ (BB 178,279 166,814 101,591 270,258 (93,164)
Attributable to: 1L

Owners of the Company /NCIEZZ=DN 160,792 141,089 85,706 241,334 (115,532)

Non-controliing interests EIS T 17,487 25,725 15,885 28,924 22,368

178,279 166,814 101,591 270,258 (93,164)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

IEBE (@)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EEMBERRER
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
128318 128318 #12R31H #12A31H 128318
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HKS'000 T8 HK$000 FB7T HKS000 FH7T HKS000 F 57T HK$000F#HT
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,771,706 1,835,805 1,746,822 1,728,511 1,671,542
Current assets TEEE 3,892,818 3,461,095 3,678,889 4,019,879 3,375,223
Current liabilities REas 1,687,133 1,331,653 1,619,636 1,771,099 1,182,174
Net current assets TEBEEFE 2,205,685 2,129,442 2,059,253 2,248,780 2,193,049
Total assets less current liabiitles ZEMERREEE 3,977,391 3,965,247 3,806,075 3,977,291 3,864,591
Non-current liabilities El e =L 376,146 380,191 226,286 218,193 440,824
Net assets BEFE 3,601,245 3,585,056 3,579,789 3,759,098 3,423,767
Capital and reserves BAKEE
Share capital BTN 865,716 889,810 889,810 889,810 889,810
Reserves 11 2,567,084 2,529,651 2,504,762 2,670,428 2,331,257
Equity attributable to owners KRR R \EGER
of the Company 3,432,800 3,419,461 3,394,572 3,560,238 3,221,067
Non-controlling interests JEERG R 168,445 165,595 185,217 108,860 202,700
Total equity ERiaE 3,601,245 3,585,056 3,579,789 3,759,098 3,423,767
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
TR 2585

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
FHEX (BE) BR2H

SUPIMA i COTTON USA™
WOELEE FINEET SOTTOHE T OO T WO [ TERE TR

Fountain Set (Moldings) Lid,

Fountain Set {Holdings) Limited

n E fe EiEees SR B ATRETR AT
No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by
XHFIR 38 SR ERTE BB
1 SUPIMA® Licensee SUPIMA® World’s Finest Cottons
SUPIMA® 2 & 1EB 1 SUPIMA® tt R IBAR B TE!
2 COTTON USA™ Licensee Cotton Council International
COTTON USA™ #EH#ESERB EEBERBERS

Fountain Set Limited

RHEEZRRAS

i o -
L 1 B ——
No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by
XHFIE 128 RERE BHE(
1 Global Recycled Standard 4.0 (GRS) 4.0 Intertek Group
E KO IR%E(GRS4.0) REEE
2 bluesign system partner bluesign technologies ag

bluesign® SYSTEM B5 £+



Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

AREEGEERAR

EEEE(RE)FRYE 2022 F#K

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIA R85 (1)

No.

X SR
1

2

3

4

)

Name of Award/Certification

1218 SRR
2021 Top 100 Star Enterprise*
221 FEBRRAERE

"Four-star" grass-roots party organization of COFCO*
FiEEEINE BB A

2021 Outstanding Contribution Award for High-quality
Development*

2N FEREEERRHEME

2021 Outstanding Enterprise of Foreign Investment*

2021 FEINEREFTERE

2021 Advanced Foreign Trade Enterprises”
2021 F ESNBIME SR

Issued by
BHHHEMT

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist
Party of China,

FRETREmE

Jiangyin Municipal People’s Government

Lk ARBUN

Committee of the Communist Party of China China
Textile Group Co., Ltd.*
RHAETHEREFRADEZES

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China

IR SHRMEXRAEE TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone

IRSMRNEXHEREREZEY

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China

IR STRMEXRAEE TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone

IRSMRNEXHEREREZES

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China

IR SMRMEXRAER TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone

IREMRNEXHEREREZS Y

9
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIR R0 (1)

No.
X F5R
6

10
11

12

Name of Award/Certification

3215 WELE

2021 Outstanding Enterprise of Ecological Civilization*
20N FEEREX AR ITEEN

2021 Charitable Enterprise*
21 FEEROEESRE

Top 10 Model Workers' Home
TERSE T 2K

ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certificate*

ISO 50001 5E/R B AL R 5058

ISO14001 Environmental Management System Certificate*
ISO14001 IRIRE IR RVE

Global Organic Textile Standard(GOTS) 6.0
2IKB 45 8 m(GOTS) 6.0

Organic Content Standard (OCS) 3.0

B3 ER%(0CS) 3.0¢

<
o L
racmmanc s

Issued by
S B

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China

PHIRSMRMEXFAEE TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone

IRSMENEXHEREEERZES

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China

PHIRSMRMEXFAER TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone

IERSMENEXHEREERZES

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Federation of Trade Unions*

IeshesIg

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co.,Ltd
IRPEMNERERERBRAT

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co.,Ltd
IRPEMRERERERRAT
ECOCERT Group

ECOCERT Group



Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

B EESEERAR

No.
X4
1

2

3

4

5

.

't".' ’I\T-JE $
EEAL RN

eEraEdtiESANE. REANE
e EENEZIENET

Name of Award/Certification

I8 WELE

2021 Technology Innovation Award*

2021 F E TR 1%

2022 China Fabric Star Excellent Award*
2022 E K Z 2B FHLE

Best market application product recommendation®
REDIBERAERERS

Sustainable shortlisted green products*®
HErFEABER

Protection/smart product recommendation*

Pk EREMMERE

EEEE(RE)FRYE 2022 F#K

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
RIA K0 (18

s —fﬂ_-_='—_‘_u%
B RN I
ey it

=

L
'l
Cl

|

TR LT

Issued by
BHHEMT

Chinatex Corporation
FREFGHERERAS

Textile Apparel Weekly Magazine*
(AR B T ) Mst4t

CKIA

FEHBEHE

CKIA

FEHBEHE

CKIA

PEHBEGE

11
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIR R0 (I

Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.

==
i?‘:/&

No.
XS
1

10
11

12

=
Cortificats .

= natifie

Privileged
] el

HEBHBENRABRAR

fr i

' % L) COMPLETION OF g
DT — ST MOOULE
. 10

Name of Award/Certification

218 RERE

Certificate of Color Accreditation Program
PREREAERE

Confirmation of bluesign SYSTEM PARTNERS
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate HKKO 056043
Oeko-Tex #£#£100 55 & HKKO 056043
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate HKKO 041727
Oeko-Tex fE#E100 58 & HKKO 041727
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate HKKO 20884
Oeko-Tex f2#£100 585 HKKO2884

Global Organic Textile Standard(GOTS) 6.0

L IKE A B m(GOTS) 6.0

Organic Content Standard (OCS) 3.0

B2 8R%(0CS) 3.0*

Mill Qualification Program Certificate
IHRERtERE

Datacolor Certify Certificate

EEEAERREE

Higg Index Facility Social & Labor Module

Higg Index FSLM#Z 405 =*

Disney Facility and Merchandise Authorization
BB EREERE

Water-saving benchmarking enterprise in Guangdong
Province*

ERABMKEITEE

B O =

Issued by
S B

natific AG

bluesign technologies ag

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » I &= 45 i TE P

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » I = 45 i 1% E P

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » I = 45 #8152 PR
ECOCERT GROUP

ECOCERT GROUP

Intertek Group

RIFEH

Datacolor

fErsEat

Sustainable Apparel Coalition
BT HF 48 Al S Bk B2

Uniglo Co Ltd.
BREFRAS

Water-saving benchmarking enterprise in Guangdong
Province*

EERE KRR



Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
L EEEHBEZBRAT

EBEEE(RE)ARSE

2022 E#H 13

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)

Name of Award/Certification

No.
XSk 1R1E FREAE

1 Best Quick Response Award*
RERE R ER

2 2022 Innovation Excellence Award*
2022F ERIFTBEFIE

Ningbo Young Top Garment Co., Ltd.
EREBEIKRBERAE

Issued by
BHHHEM

ANTA Sports Products Limited
ZHRESHRERAE
ANTA Sports Products Limited
ZHESRARERAS

Name of Award/Certification

No.

XHEFIE  3RIE FRERTE

1 2021 Li Ning Partner Excellent Quality Award*
CONFEFELGHBRHAEFRER

2 2021 Ningbo Enterprise Management Innovation Promotion
Five-Star Enterprise*

21 FEERTEERERAMRALERER

Issued by
BHHHEMT

Li Ning Co Ltd
FBARAF

LY E

Ningbo Municipal Economic and Information

Technology Bureau

ERMEEMERES

2y

g (48

Ao A
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
ﬁlﬁ& I:VL:‘I'-! (n\ﬁ

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited

BEMFE (FAA) BIRAE

cermiFicate [l

== @
- ®F
= B
el “t m o
No. Name of Award/Certification
XHFES R RERE
1 Express Laboratory Certification
ExpressE i = sh e
2 bluesign® SYSTEM PARTNER
bluesign® SYSTEM &£+
3 Organic Content Standard (OCS) 3.0
B3 2R%(0CS) 3.0¢
4 Global Recycled Standard (GRS) 4.0
EIK[EWAR#E(GRS) 4.0
5 Global Organic Textiles (GOTS) 6.0
2IKB A 8 m(GOTS) 6.0
6 GHG Qualification ISO 14064-1:2018
RERABE1E 1SO 14064-1:2018*
7 Next Laboratory Accreditation Certification
Next B 5 = 0785 &=
8 George Laboratory Certification Scheme
George B = 5050 51 &
9 ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems
ISO 14001:2015 IRIBEBIE R4
10 ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems
ISO 45001:2018 BiXZ 2B EEERM
11 Certificate of Good Manufacturing Practices
RFEEREES
12 Marks & Spencer Premier Accreditation Scheme

B BEsRNETE

&
L

Issued by
BEHBE

Express Laboratory
bluesign technologies ag

Control Union Certifications B.V
B35 (E®) BIRAR
Control Union Certifications B.V
HERE (LB ARAR
Control Union Certifications B.V
HERE (LB ARAR
Control Union Certifications B.V
HERE (L) BRAR
Next Retail (UK) Ltd.

George & Intertek Group
GeorgeK K B

SGS United Kingdom Ltd.
REEARASEERAT

SGS Société Générale de Surveillance SA
ImtEARAREARART

SGS Lanka Ltd.
HER~EREARERRAT!
Marks & Spencer Group
BErBHEEE"



No.
XS
18

14
15
16

17

18

> > #* %

COMPLETION OF
VERIFIED MODUILE

Name of Award/Certification
1218 SRR 1B

Laboratory Certification

BRERNE

Higg Index Facility Social & Labor Module

Higg Index FSLM#&E 4835 &

Laboratory Approval Certificate

EREHEFES

GOLD Laboratory Certification

BERENE (587

Certificate of Registration Under the Factory Ordinance
(Schedule 1lI)

RIE T RRAFG] (R 1) M ES
Registration Certificate for End Users of Precursor
Chemicals

ARtERRR AR SRR

allk
=11l

EEELE(EE)HRRT 2022FFHK

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIA R85 (1)

. VEAD =5
mnl.m:.l;:cmm
VT, Lid

Issued by
BHHEMT

Intertek Group

&

Sustainable Apparel Coalition
Al FF B AR S Bk BR

Gap Inc.

VICTORIA'S SECRET & CO
HEZ ) TE B

District Factory Inspecting Engineer, Department of
Labour, Gampaha*

INEIAPE 55 Bh &R (& B ik T A2
Sri Lanka National Dangerous Drugs Control Board*

HERFRXEREMEL R/

English names are only translation of their official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese name shall prevail.
Y RANEBEREFRXLBZEX - HEKE  MURAN BB AL

Chinese names are only translation of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English name shall prevail.
AN BB EREN BB LZEX  HEIE U R L TBRZEE-
Photo is not available yet.

ER S St
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” or “we” or “our”, and the “Board”, respectively), | would like to
present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or the “Fountain Set Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 (“2022”), and to provide you with an overview of the Group’s
strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year of 2022 was a very challenging year for the Group mainly due
to the significant shrinkage of the export market of our circular knitted fabric
business. The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was mainly attributed to (1) reduction of consumers’
purchasing momentum due to the COVID-19 pandemic and war; (2) reduction
of consumers’ purchasing power due to the overall global inflation; (3) the
overstocking of the Group’s retail apparel clients which resulted in reduction
in their demand for the Group’s products; and (4) an one-off redundancy
compensation paid to certain employees of the Group.

In response to the aforesaid unfavourable market conditions, the Group
decided to reduce production volume in one of its fabric mills namely, Jiangyin
Fuhui Textiles Ltd (“Jiangyin Fuhui”) and streamlined the production team. A
one-off redundancy compensation of approximately HK$127 million for Group’s
employees has been booked in the audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022. Having said that, Jiangyin Fuhui will continue its operation
and will be able to resume normal production when the market recovers.

The abovementioned decision will help the Group ease the burden of keeping
staff with less work tasks and reduce fixed costs. The Group’s production
operation is normal and the management team is committed to overcome
ongoing difficulties and challenges. Besides, the liquidity of the Group remains
strong. The cash and cash equivalent as at 31 December 2022 was HK$1,394
million, as compared to that of about HK$808 million as at 31 December 2021,

According to the World Bank’s January 2023 Global Economic Prospects
Report (the “Report”), global growth is projected to decelerate sharply,
reflecting in synchronous tightening policies which aimed at containing high
inflation, worsening financial conditions, and continued disruptions from the war
of Russia and UKraine. Investment growth in emerging market and developing
economies (EMDEs) is expected to remain below its average rate of the past
two decades. Further adverse shocks could push the global economy into
recession. Small countries are especially vulnerable to such shocks because of
their reliance on external trade and financing, limited economic diversification,
elevated debt, and susceptibility to natural disasters.
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Our latest forecasts indicate a sharp, long-lasting slowdown, with global growth
declining to 1.7 percent in 2023 from 3.0 percent expected just six months
ago. The deterioration is broad-based: in virtually all regions of the world, per
capita income growth will be slower than it was during the decade before
the novel coronavirus 2019 disease (the “COVID-19” or the “Pandemic”). The
setback to global prosperity will likely persist. It is estimated that, by the end
of 2024, GDP levels in EMDEs will be about 6% below the level expected on
the eve of the pandemic. Median income levels, moreover, are being eroded
significantly — by inflation, currency depreciation and under-investment in
people and the private sector.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

To go green by minimising printing and as our common practice, we shall
only upload the 2022 ESG report on the respective websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company. The 2022 ESG report
details the Group’s progress in multiple ESG areas, showing where we
exceeded expectations and where we need further improvement. We have
embraced sustainable innovation as a powerful engine for growth not only
for our own business, but across upstream and downstream partners in
our industry. Since 2016, we have set up a “Sustainability Development and
Enhancement Committee” (the “Committee”) which consists of different
subsidiaries and cross-functional departments. The Committee not only helps
drive the vision across the Group, but also implements our sustainability
objectives and goals. The Committee prompts our business to understand our
sustainability impacts, sets ambitious targets to address them and overcome
obstacles in meeting them.

In 2016, we started a revolutionary new business — centralised heat supply
project (the “Project”), of which the business model is a pioneer in the industry.
The Shatian Town Environmental Industrial Park (the “Park”) (for electroplating,
fabric printing and dyeing industry) is one of the seven largest environmental
industrial parks in Dongguan, China. It integrates and assembles the industry’s
enterprises within the Park and in other areas in Shatian Town, which are
required to be relocated. The Project, being one of the ancillary projects of the
industrial park development, is also a key project of the implementation plan of
the centralised heat supply in Guangdong Industrial Park and Industrial Cluster
Areas. The Project has been contributing to cleaner air for the community and
neighbourhood by reducing the emission of nitrogen oxide, sulphur dioxide as
well as smoke and dust by reducing the remaining 28 coal-fired heaters within
the district. The Project has completed the first phase of construction in 2018
and put into operation to supply heat to local enterprises. The second phase
of construction of the Project started in 2019. According to the Guangdong
Province’s “Blue Sky Defense” and Dongguan’s “Coal to Gas” policy, second
phase commenced after the removal of the remaining coal-fired boilers and
two new natural gas boilers have been built and put into operation in January
and August 2021 respectively, gradually replacing the original coal-fired boilers.
Natural gas is a clean energy source, which can be efficiently burned and
utilised. Upon the completion, it can further reduce overall energy consumption
and carbon emissions, promote green development, and improve ecological
environment of the region, overall social benefits and contentment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
EREHRSE ()

The Group will continue to invest in advanced technologies and install
additional equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides
periodic training workshops to staff members regarding environmental
protection and pollution controls. The Group also invites qualified advisers
to visit its factories from time to time to evaluate whether the environmental
protection measures are up to standard and to give recommendations for
further improvement.

LOOKING FORWARD

Based on the World Bank’s January 2023 Global Economic Prospects Report,
it is expected that, over the next two years, per-capita income growth in
EMDEs will only be about 2.8 percent in average — a full percentage point less
than the average figure from 2010 to 2019. Between 2020 and 2024, per-
capita income growth in EMDEs other than China is projected to be roughly the
same as per-capita income growth in advanced economies, meaning income
convergence is now effectively stalled in fragile and conflict-affected areas,
average per-capita incomes are expected to decline by 2024.

We believe that all of our staff members will work towards the Board’s direction
and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the Board, and
will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our spirit of
“diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity” and our general direction to “stabilise
operation and to enhance development”, we shall keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for bringing the Group
to turnaround our financial performance. We are prepared to turn challenges
into opportunities and will forge ahead against all odds.

FINAL DIVIDEND

After reviewing the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the essential elements in enhancing shareholder value. The Group
is devoted to improving its corporate governance policies in compliance with
regulatory requirements and in accordance with international recommended
practices. The Company has formed the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee” or “AC”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”
or “RC”) and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or “NC”) all
at the Board’s level, to provide assistance, advice and recommendations on the
relevant matters that aim to ensure protection of the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

We are grateful for the excellent guidance and counsel from our fellow Board
members. We appreciate the ongoing support of our Shareholders, customers,
end users, suppliers, business partners and the entire Fountain Set Group
during the previous challenging year. We are confident that, with our unrelenting
bold vision, customer focus and business momentum, we will achieve have
a turnaround in the coming year and position Fountain Set with exciting
opportunities in the months and years ahead.

LIU Xianfu
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2023
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERREDH

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the multiple factors such as the continuous recurrence of the
COVID-19, the intensification of geopolitical conflicts, the deteriorating global
inflation, and the abrupt slowdown in economic growth have resulted in
the overall demand in the market dropped sharply, the slow recovery of the
consumers’ spending power, fluctuating prices of production elements and
the accelerated adjustment of the industrial and supply chain. During the year
2022, in order to fully contain the soaring inflation levels, the major central
banks in developed countries in Europe and America successively withdraw
from the unprecedented quantitative easing policies, and instead, implement a
quantitative tightening policy of raising interest rates and shrinking the balance
sheet of the central banks, which resulted in the tightening of the offshore
liquidity of the world’s leading currencies, caused certain emerging economies
to experience a serious status of the debt burdens, further promoted a
sharp slowdown in global economic growth to a risky level of approaching
recession, leading to a serious shortage of sales orders of the Group, which
has been focusing in the European and American markets, and putting it under
tremendous pressure in its production and operation.

The supply chain crisis caused by the COVID-19 in 2020 had accelerated the
restructuring of the global supply chain of the textile apparels, and there exists
an obvious substitution effect among key exporters of clothing in the world.
Since the second half of 2022, the industrial production of the Southeast Asian
countries represented by Vietham and Bangladesh has fully resumed, as a
result of which, some foreign trade orders that returned to China last year flew
out again. The export enterprises in the traditionally labour-intensive industry,
including the textile and clothing industry, have experienced a decrease in
foreign trade orders to varying degrees. However, since September of last year,
there has also been a “shortage of orders” in Vietnam, India and Bangladesh,
leading to an inventory surge, together with the gradual decline in the export of
goods and an overall decline in the exports of cotton textiles.

At the same time, the escalation of wars and the subsequent sanctions
thereon had further driven up global commodities prices. The prices of
materials necessary for the production activities such as cottons, polyesters,
dyestuff, auxiliaries and coals have risen to varying degrees in a short time and
maintained at a high level, leading to a rapid and significant increase in the
manufacturing costs of manufacturing enterprises.

In response to the aforesaid unfavourable market conditions, the Group
decided to reduce production volume in one of its fabric mills namely, Jiangyin
Fuhui Textiles Ltd. (“Jiangyin Fuhui”) and streamline the production team. A
one-off redundancy compensation of approximately HK$127 million for Group’s
employees has been booked in the audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022. Having said that, Jiangyin Fuhui will continue its operation
and will be able to resume normal production when the market recovers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
HK$6,053,645,000, a reduction of 10.3% (2021: HK$6,751,277,000) due to
the reasons stated in the above paragraphs. The loss attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$115,532,000 (2021: profit attributable to owners
of the Company: HK$241,334,000). During the year under review, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was about HK$11,858,000 if the
one-off labour compensation cost of about HK$127,390,000 incurred in the
Jiangyin Fuhui was excluded.

In the future, the global industrial chain and supply chain pattern will accelerate
its adjustment and reshaping in the directions of regionalization, localization
and diversification, etc. Apparel brands will continue to consider multiple
aspects including relatively controllable costs and freight rates, immediate
supply capacity and stable supply pipelines, and after rebalancing costs and
risks, they will reconstruct the decentralized, in-the-proximity or localized
supply chain systems, so as to accelerate the reconstruction of more flexible
global supply chains. In the meantime, future apparel brands will focus on
procurement based on the market response and sales of products, which is
an unplanned procurement behavior that will result in significant increase in the
number of fast and urgent orders, as well as the proportion of orders for small-
batch, multi-variety, and short-delivery, leading to increasingly fierce market
competition in the industry.

In response to the unfavorable conditions, e.g. the extremely severe market
situation and the complex and changeable operating environment, as well
as the adverse impact of a sudden decrease in orders, the Group adopted
a number of measures to optimize its operations in the second half of 2022,
including making utmost efforts to boost sales, focusing on the domestic
market, shortening the inventory turnover days, downscaling the inventory,
speeding up inventory turnover, and mitigating capital occupation, aiming to
unload the burden and go forward with a light pack in 2023. While making
considerable efforts to improve its performance, the Group was actively
planning on and advancing the Yancheng Expansion Project (as detailed
below), in an attempt to cope with the loss of orders to the Southeast Asian
market and make preparations for blending into the domestic market, and
facilitating the transformation and upgrading of the Group for high-quality
development in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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l. Accelerate the construction of Yancheng Fuhui Expansion

Project to ensure compliance and achieve efficiency

Fountain Set Group has been vigorously promoting the Yancheng Fuhui
Expansion Project. In order to make it “an example of Fountain Set
Group’s transformation and upgrading”, “the benchmark of advanced
manufacturing in China’s textile industry”, and “the main production base
and pillar of profit of Fountain Set Group”, the Group is actively planning to
upgrade the Yancheng Fuhui Expansion Project in terms of digitalization,
intelligence, LEAN operation and eco-friendliness. Learning from the
experience of industry leaders, Fountain Set Group carefully decided
on and laid out its equipment and facilities, organizational structure
management methods and team building, and strove to achieve its
operational goal of becoming a first-class enterprise in terms of products,
quality and per capita efficiency.

Yancheng Fuhui Expansion Project represents the objective needs of
Fountain Set Group for its transformation and development, pursuant
to which it would make good use of the opportunities arising from the
establishment of its research and development (“R&D”) center to upgrade
its product technology and R&D capability, strengthen the guiding role of
R&D in its development and marketing efforts, and start with intelligent
manufacturing and improving its expertise in advanced production and
lean management, tightening the control of its upstream and downstream
supply chain, and exploring the development model of “integration
of fabric and ready-made clothes” to meet the requirements of the
textile industry for “green, low-carbon, eco-friendly, and sustainable”
development, so as to realize seamless connection with and continuous
development of the high-end market, make it an important cornerstone for
the Company’s future development, and promote its transformation and
upgrading as well as high-quality development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Adjust sales strategy in active response to market changes

In the face of a harsh business environment in 2022, Fountain Set Group
actively adjusted its sales strategy. On the one hand, it strove to expand
the domestic market with new products while carefully maintaining the
domestic and Japanese markets. In spite of the unfavorable situation
featuring the slowdown of domestic economic growth and the lack of
willingness to consume in the market, our domestic sales order remained
stable, which had played an important role in supporting the basic
production of Fountain Set Group.

On the other hand, our export sales team actively communicated and
coordinated with their major customers in the United States, striving to
reduce the loss of quarterly intended orders and to secure unconfirmed
orders from the buyers. Meanwhile, they strengthened communication
with garment factories to snatch the own purchase orders of such
factories and orders from other buyers and actively adjusted their product
structure based on the actual situation of their own inventory, and strove
for orders from major customers with short delivery times and quick
response. In this way, while striving to stabilize the orders for basic
products, they increased the supply of high-value products in line with the
needs of major customers for trial production and development of new
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRAD (B

Adhere to product development and quality improvement to
ensure sustainable development of the Group

The Group remained oriented by market demand while giving full play
to its strength in R&D in the industrial chain, and continuously improving
its R&D and innovation capabilities. Our R&D team cooperated closely
with our sales department to actively carry out market research, promote
connection with the R&D teams of our customers and learn their needs,
so as to determine our development direction. On the basis of the above,
we aimed to improve the professionalism of our technology research
and development, and to carry out research and development of new
products and materials that meet the needs of our target markets and the
development trends.

Meanwhile, we further strengthened the tracking mechanism for the
production of new products, strictly controlled recurring quality problems,
continuously improved our expertise in production and manufacturing, and
optimized the production process and technology to meet our customers’
requirements for good product quality. Thanks to the unremitting efforts
of our R&D team, who have been repeatedly testing the production
process and technology of new products, and exercising tight control of
process and quality inspection, we have successfully solved the problems
of dyeing defects, holes, creases, wear marks, and burning marks,
chromatic aberration, and horizontal strokes of oil needles (Z&7E ~ B 5@ ~

IR ER N EER 82 BT BREER) in some of our new products.

Strengthen inventory management, mitigate operating risks,
and speed up capital turnover

Facing the inventory backlog of raw materials and finished goods which
hindered capital turnover, Fountain Set Group optimized management
responsibilities on the sales, production and procurement teams through
optimizing the management process of cotton yarn procurement
and fabrics production, while strengthened internal coordination and
cooperation, strictly controlled effective inventory level and backup
inventory, as well as the quantity and progress of raw material
procurement, so as to reduce the pressure on inventory effectively.
Meanwhile, the Group would urge the relevant departments to consume
the inventory in a timely manner, and actively dispose of the long-term
inventory backlog that could not be consumed soon, with those in the
warehouse for more than one year and the defective products collected
and disposed of together. By these ways, the holdup of capital was
alleviated, and the expenses on warehouse rentals were significantly
reduced.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Deepen centralized procurement management and reduce
procurement costs

The Group has established an organizational structure for centralized
procurement, formulated documents for centralized procurement of coal,
chemical materials, and dyeing auxiliaries, established and optimized
expert databases and supplier catalogs for centralized procurement,
and further strengthened online supervision and approval with the
establishment of its IT system. The Group has been giving full play to the
role and functions of centralized procurement, and reduced procurement
costs significantly.

Strengthen production management and strive to reduce costs
and increase efficiency

Our production teams have implemented a series of measures such
as segmented production, optimizing employment structure, and
strengthening on-site management etc., to effectively control costs.
Rational production scheduling and optimal costs were achieved through
optimizing the production process, order scheduling, and adjusting the
outsourcing ratio; we tried to detect hidden loopholes through regular
analysis of the product repair and return rates, with special attention
given to those extraordinary repair and return rates, aiming to find out the
reasons, so as to minimize the abnormal loss and defection rate.

Lean management is one of our key tasks in 2022. Through optimizing
our KPI assessment system, strengthening control of key links, and
regular review of the quality, the product defection and repairing
rates were reduced, which in turn helped reducing the loss in the
production process, and thus improved our product quality and reduced
manufacturing costs.

Implement staff reduction and efficiency increase to improve
per-capita efficiency

We optimized the Group’s management and control system by
implementing staff reduction and efficiency increase. Following the
principle of unification of “rights, responsibilities, and interests”, we
successively reformed and adjusted the management structure of the
relevant functional departments and business units, optimizing their
business and management processes, reducing unnecessary staff and
posts, and strengthening assessment of their target achievement and
individual performance. By clarifying management responsibilities and
performance targets and strictly controlling costs and expenses, we
strove to ensure the stable development of the Company’s business, and
achieve long-term cost effectiveness and sustainable competitive edges.
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VIll. Ensure orderly and stable production and operation of Ocean

Lanka (Private) Limited (the “Ocean Lanka”)

Since the economic crisis triggered by the state bankruptcy of Sri Lanka
in the second half of 2022, in the face of unfavorable situations such as
the lack of materials, soaring prices, fuel shortages, transport paralysis,
currency depreciation, and capital control, Ocean Lanka, our operation
in Sri Lanka, has taken effective actions, including strengthening its
management and formulating a number of measures to ensure its normal
operation. During the period, due to the rapid depreciation of the Sri
Lankan currency and the mandatory requirements for conversion of large
amounts of capital, the raw material suppliers deliberately changed the
payment terms of the raw material purchase contract, in response to
which, Ocean Lanka formulated responding plans and specific measures
in advance, so as to guarantee its own capital needs, and ensure stable
supply of raw materials and normal production arrangements.

Closely supervise production safety and environmental
protection work

All the production units of Fountain Set Group have adopted the fifteen
hard measures to ensure production safety in 2022, and arranged
for their employees to participate in various trainings and emergency
drills on production safety, while implementing special investigation
and rectification approaches to clear safety risks and hidden dangers,
imposing production safety responsibilities and implementing the “Dual
Prevention Mechanism” in a deep-reaching manner.

During the post-pandemic period, the global inflation is expected to
mitigate but will remain at a relatively high level, while the recovery of the
global economy will remain slow and the geopolitical conflicts against
the backdrop of competition between the great powers will continue
to intensify, along with the accelerating adjustment of the industrial and
supply chain, weak demand for products in the consumer market, and
increasingly fierce competition in the industry market. Facing the above
unfavorable factors, Fountain Set Group will adhere to its guidelines of
“reform, innovation and high-quality development”, and further strengthen
its existing management mechanism in accordance with the requirements
of a new development pattern in which the domestic circulation will
remain as its main concern while the domestic and international circulation
promote each other, so as to improve its comprehensive competitiveness
and production and operation efficiency, and advance its transformation
and upgrading to achieve sustainable high-quality development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

The Group did not have any significant events after the end of the reporting
period (i.e. 31 December 2022) and up to the date of this announcement.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2022 are set out below:

EERE RS (&)

REHIEEIE

AEFEBREHFR (BI2022F128318) BE A&
NEHRLE TR EEREAEIEE Eo

B ¥ [Cl B

REBEE2022F12831HIEFEZFTELE
RMBIERZ5)0T -

2022 2021
Statement of Profit or Loss ltems HERIEE

(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless Y5 RIGERRIMNT B T RE

otherwise stated) HUF BTN
Revenue =6 6,053,645 6,751,277
Gross profit EH 577,817 879,539
EBITDA* BT EE S 8K A0 188,096 526,113
(Loss)/profit for the year BEE (B BA (93,164) 270,258
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the ZA T A AFELL (B518) /&F)

Company (115,532) 241,334
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREXR B8 &BA GBWL)

(HK cents) (9.4) 19.7

Key Financial Ratios FEMFEEEER

Profitability ratios BRIFES HE
Gross profit margin (%) EMZE(%) 9.5% 13.0%
EBITDA* margin (%) ERITEREHETFIEE (%) 3.1% 7.8%
Expenses as a % of revenue BISS I E 256 HE
Distribution and selling expenses DiIE M IHE BB 1.5% 2.1%
Administrative expenses THER 9.2% 6.8%
Finance costs [EE=io%: 0.4% 0.2%
Asset efficiency BEMNE
Inventory turnover period (days) FEAEH (H) 62 107
Trade and bills receivables turnover EELEREWEIEFE (B)

period (days) 56 69
Trade and bills payables turnover period & % & Z4E e (T30 IEFEE (H)

(days) 33 59

*

¥ EBITDARRIES BT EE R s AT o

EBITDA means earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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At 31 December At 31 December

12H831H ®12831H
2022 2021
Asset ratios BELE=X
Current ratio” TREN L= 2.9 2.3
Net debt/EBITDA ratio FER BRITE KB HA AR (5.1) (1.0)
Gearing ratio BAR&ELEER
Total liabilities/Equity attributable to BEERE KABHE NEEER
owners of the Company 0.5 0.6

# Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.
MENLEENF B A AR BB ERLREAE

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$6,053,645,000 (2021: HK$6,751,277,000).

Revenue by business segments

—E S

EEEE2022F12831 B ILFENEREID
6,053,645,00078 7T (20214F : 6,751,277,0007%
7T) °

EEEREBOE

14.9% -\ .
Production and Sales of

Dyed Fabrics and Yarns

85.1% FY2022
202204 4F

BUS RSHE BIh k)

@ Production and Sales of Garments
BB MIHERMTK

For the year under review, the Group’s core business, production and
sales of dyed fabrics and yarns, generated revenue of approximately
HK$5,150,345,000 (2021: HK$5,917,779,000), which accounted for 85.1%
(2021: 87.7%) of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from production and sales
of garments was approximately HK$903,300,000 (2021: HK$833,498,000),
which accounted for 14.9% (2021:12.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.

REIBEEE EEZLER - NENBERS
R 4b By 54 45,150,345,00058 7T (2021
& 15,917,779,0008 70)  HEBEE X EEEE
BU85.1% (20214 : 87.7%) o B K E Y,
TRHY % 22849 4903,300,0008 7T (20214
833,498,000/ 7T) > {hEEEE £ FE42ER14.9%
(20214F 1 12.3%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2022, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$5,475,828,000 (2021: HK$5,871,738,000) and
overall gross profit margin was 9.5% (2021: 13.0%).

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue decreased by 10.3%
compared with that of last year, which was mainly due to the decrease in sales
volume of fabric by approximately 26.2%. Compared with the same period
last year, the decrease in percentage of revenue was larger than the decrease
in percentage of production cost, which led to the decrease in gross profit
margin.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$92,291,000 (2021:
HK$141,310,000), which accounted for 1.5% (2021: 2.1%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$559,179,000 (2021:
HK$458,436,000), which accounted for 9.2% (2021: 6.8%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s EBITDA amounted to
approximately HK$188,096,000 (2021: HK$526,113,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 3.1% (2021: 7.8%).

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s finance costs amounted
to approximately HK$21,408,000 (2021: HK$15,225,000), representing 0.4%
(2021: 0.2%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$163,631,000 (2021: HK$170,676,000) in additions of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. The Group’s commitments primarily
relate to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had contracted capital commitments of approximately
HK$86,607,000 (31 December 2021: HK$116,978,000) in relation to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

EERE RS (&)

HEMEREF

SEEE2022F12831HIEFEE 2 BHEH
E AL A5 475,828,000/ 75 (20214
5,871,738,00077T) > BAEEFZE%50.5% (2021
F 1 13.0%) °

RERBEFR AEBIEEER TEX10.3% T2
EHRERHE 8 T EA926.2% « A F[F A
b BN T RIEE AN EERAR T EEIE
EREI VI E ST

DHRHEER

EEEHE2022F12B31HIEEEZEEDH
FEEE B R 492,291,000 7T (20214
141,310,00078 70) »{hEE £ FEREN1.5%
(20214E 1 2.1%) ©

THEHR
EEFHE2022F 12831 L FE 2 BETHE
FB#97559,179,00078 7T (20214 : 458,436,000
Bro) MEREXEEEHEEN.2% (20214F :
6.8%) °

ST E K #8551 7 (EBITDA)

EEEE2022F12B31HIEEEZ BRITE
R4 s8R0 A1) 49 74 188,096,00058 71 ( 20214F
526,113,000 70) » EMITE R HFFIBH=
#3.1% (20214 : 7.8%) ©

= 1p%:
EREE2022F12831HIEFEZHER AL

#321,408,0005 7T (20214F : 15,225,0005 7T)
{HEE S 2 RBARERI0.4% (20214 : 0.2%) ©

BEERx%

REBER > EEERE#A163,631,0008 7T
(20214 : 170,676,000 7T) LU Ny %
BWRRRERREYE EENERAETE
W B E AR B o 1R2022F 12831
H &EREHEEYE EERBNEENER
X %86,607,0008 70 (2021F12831H
116,978,0005 7T) °
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Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2022, income tax expense of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$72,954,000 (2021: HK$67,192,000).

Loss/profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2022, loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$115,532,000 (2021: profit attributable to
owners of the Company HK$241,334,000) and the corresponding profit margin
was —1.9% (2021: 3.6%).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s inventories amounted to approximately
HK$929,526,000 (31 December 2021: HK$1,717,220,000). The inventory
turnover period was 62 days, a decrease of 45 days compared with 107 days
in 2021.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted
to approximately HK$928,721,000 (31 December 2021: HK$1,270,335,000).
Trade and bills receivables turnover period was 56 days, a decrease of 13 days
compared with 69 days in 2021.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted
to approximately HK$491,299,000 (31 December 2021: HK$956,450,000).
Trade and bills payables turnover period was 33 days, a decrease of 26 days
compared with 59 days in 2021.

FRiSH <

EEHE2022F12831HLEFEZFAEMRETH
2 472,954,0008 78 (20214 @ 67,192,0007%
7T) °©

FAEBEAANEGESE BT

EEEHE2022F 128310 EEE R ATES
AFE(EE51E4974115,532,0008 75 (20214 &
NEVEB AFELZ 241,334,000/ 7T) » EAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,423,767,000 (31 December 2021: HK$3,759,098,000). The key figures
of the Group’s financial position were as follows:

BEEFmADH (@)

BRI RMEER

R2022F12A31H EBEEFELNS
3,423,767,00078 7T (20214128310 : 3,759,098,000
BT cEEI TSR EESRNT ¢

At 31 December At 31 December

®12A831H R12831H

2022 2021

HK$’000TF %7 HK$ 000F 71

Non-current assets JERBEE 1,671,542 1,728,511

Current assets MEEE 3,375,223 4,019,879

Total assets BEEEE 5,046,765 5,748,390

Current liabilities mENaE 1,182,174 1,771,099

Non-current liabilities EREFERE 440,824 218,193

Total liabilities BEEE 1,622,998 1,989,292

Net assets BEFE 3,423,767 3,759,098

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation & LIE LFﬁ SHERERIBITHREBAEMR

by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank ﬁ’gﬁEl PESTEE MEABRIZINTZEZAHRRH
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank h%fﬂ%"ﬁO

borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
HK$436,248,000 (31 December 2021: HK$327,342,000). Details of the bank
borrowings of the Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank balances and cash, including
short-term bank deposits, amounted to HK$1,393,679,000 (31 December
2021: HK$824,979,000) and were mainly denominated in HKD, USD and
RMB.

R2022F12831H REBRTEEZ
436,248,0007%8 7t (2021412831 H : 327,342,000
BT cAEENRTEERBEHNGEMT
HRRMIFE300

R2022F 128318 AEBEWNIRITHEFEIRE
(BIERHRITER) §3£1,393,679,0008 7T
(2021128318 : 824,979,000 7T) » T &
EEE - ETR AR

o022 E#H 31
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B RED T (B

As at 31 December 2022, the principal financial covenant figures/ratios
(according to the definitions of the Group’s principal banks) were as follows:

12022 12831H » T BN LM EUR th
(REBEAEETBARRITNER WOTF :

At 31 December
#12831H
2022

At 31 December
R12831H
2021

Consolidated tangible net worth REREREE

Consolidated total bank debt to ?él\ RIFTTEBEHEL
consolidated tangible net worth RAETEELG

Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated 47 & B30 178 K38 8507
interest expense HixEF EZHEEA

Consolidated current assets to FENBBEEHGANEERA
consolidated current liabilities EEf

Consolidated capital expenditure FEBEAREX

HK$3,126,412,0007% 7T

HK$163,631,0007& 7T

HK$3,255,116,0007# 7T

0.1 0.1
8.8 34.6
2.9 2.3

HK$170,676,0007 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
complied with all covenant ratios and undertakings.

the Group had

Risk Management

The Group follows a stringent and prudent risk management policy to manage
foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sale and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Since the Group mainly carries out
production in China, we are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB
exposure. The Group has been closely monitoring the exchange rate fluctuation
for USD and RMB and will continue to monitor the trend of the exchange rate
and adopt appropriate measures in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk in
a cautious manner.

In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD and
RMB and interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. The average
effective interest rate of bank borrowings of the Group was 2.64% per annum
(2021: 1.44% per annum) for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
bank borrowings were repayable within three years. All bank borrowings were
unsecured for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
The Group will continue to monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the market
and will adopt appropriate measures to minimise the interest rate risk.

REE2022F K2021FE12831HIEEERN » 4
EEBETRARANE R R
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EEgRERRABENAREEBRRELE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 5,900 (31 December
2021: 7,900) full-time employees. The Group will continue to implement
streamlined production so as to further minimise its labour cost. The Group’s
emolument policies are formulated based on the performance of individual
employee and the salary trends in various regions, which are reviewed regularly.
The Group may, subject to the profitability, distribute a discretionary bonus to
its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Company also provides regular training courses and subsidies for
continuing education so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect
to production, selling and management.

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us
to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage
our resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community
development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers, workforce,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has
the Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2023, the world will continue to be in a period of turmoil
and change. As geopolitical conflicts intensify under the game of the great
powers, major economies are stuck in a period of low economic growth, global
governance is facing a deficit crisis, and many international organisations
expect the world economy to slow down in 2023, with the global economic
outlook facing a downward trend and the risk of recession.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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In January 2023, the International Monetary Fund (the “IMF”) projected that
global economic growth would fall from 3.4% in 2022 to 2.9% in 2023,
below the average of 3.8% for the period of 2000 to 2019. At the same
time, the United Nations released its report World Economic Situation and
Prospects 2023, which predicted that world economic growth would fall from
approximately 3% in 2022 to 1.9% in 2023. The World Bank is even more
pessimistic, projecting a slowdown in global economic growth to 1.7% in 2023,
second only to the global recession caused by COVID-19 in 2020 and the
global financial crisis in 2009.

On the other hand, international organisations have raised their expectations
for China’s economic development. The IMF expects China’s economic growth
to rise significantly to 5.2% in 2023, as economic activity and personnel
mobility are expected to recover and improve significantly as a result of the
country’s refined epidemic prevention policies and favourable economic
measures. Similarly, the United Nations predicts that China’s economic growth
will accelerate and reach around 4.8% in 2023. The World Bank also expects
China’s economic growth to rise from 2.7% in 2022 to 4.3%.

The rising consumer awareness of health due to the Pandemic has led to
increasing demands for different types of exercises including hiking, running,
yoga, gym work-out etc. At the same time, as work-from-home has become
a new common around the globe, these factors are changing consumer
preference towards casual wear, sportswear and athleisure products. We
believe that these trends should provide strong support for the further growth in
casual wear and sportswear apparel demand.

Striving to achieving the strategic development goals for the
China’s 14th Five-Year Plan (the“14th FYP”) period with continued
efforts

The current global economy is undergoing significant changes, and economic
globalisation is facing challenges. Under the impact of many uncertain factors,
the global textile industry layout is constantly changing, and a new global textile
industry and textile trade layout are taking shape. The Fountain Set Group is
also facing unprecedented challenges, and it needs to accelerate adjusting its
development strategy to facilitate transformation and upgrading.

Facing severe situation and challenges, the Fountain Set Group
comprehensively analyses the changes in macroeconomic situation and
accurately grasps global economic and industrial development trends
to promote high-quality development under the guidance of innovative
development and in line with the requirements of China’s textile industry
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Promoting quality and innovative remain as the top priority for the
future development of the Fountain Set Group

In general, there is still a considerable gap between the current level of
technological development of China’s textile industry and the goal of being a
textile powerhouse. Therefore, the textile enterprises in China should adhere to
the strategic direction of promoting high-quality development with innovation
and new drivers transforming from technologies for a long period of time in
future.

The reshaping of the global textile industry layout and the complicated evolution
of textile production and trade environment determine the instability of the
textile industry layout and its development in future. The rise of emerging
economies, the advancement of technologies and brands in developed
countries in Europe and USA and the return of manufacturing industries made
Chinese textile enterprises facing a passive situation. The Fountain Set Group
can maintain its ability to compete in the market only if we could improve
our capabilities in four sectors: technological innovation, product upgrade,
production capacity coordination and market cultivation.

During the 14th FYP period, the Fountain Set Group will lead the transformation
and upgrading innovatively to facilitate high-quality development and
achieve sustainable green development through technological innovation
and management innovation, so as to become an industry leader in the
manufacture and management of high-quality knitted fabrics.

Intelligent manufacturing is of important significance for textile enterprises
in improving production efficiency, changing traditional production models,
enhancing international competitiveness and achieving high-quality
development. In the future, on the base of the results of existing information
technology construction, the Fountain Set Group should adhere to promoting
intelligent manufacturing step-by-step according to the development path of
the three basic paradigms of digitalisation, networking and intelligence.

Intensifying the cultivation of domestic market to achieve
complementary and coordinated development between domestic
and international markets

The Group will accelerate the development of the domestic textile market and
expand the proportion of domestic product sales to form a new situation of
coordinated development that complements the external international markets
and the internally domestic market. The Group will enter the industrial textile
market through developing industrial textiles as a new growth segment for the
domestic market and taking medical textiles as the entry point, with constant
deepening and expansion, making it a new source of growth in future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Continuous investment in Research and Development

The Group will put more efforts in product research and development. By
taking functional fabrics, multi-fioer composite fabrics and fabrics for green
environmental clothing as the main direction, we will increase product varieties,
expand the industries and fields in which our products apply, and transform
from a subcontracting enterprise to a manufacturing enterprise to improve the
quality of development.

Deepening international collaboration

The Group will establish an industrial collaborative manufacturing mode that
share standards, information and benefits to improve its capacities in operation
and resource integration in overseas markets, with a view to accumulating
experience and cultivating talent to cope with the changes of industry
landscape and implement the strategy of “going global”.

We believe that all of our staff members will work towards the Board’s
direction and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the
Board, and will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our
spirit of“diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity’and our general direction
to“stabilise operation and to enhance development”, we shall keep on
enhancing our efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for
bringing the Group to a new level. We look forward to completing our annual
operating tasks and targets, and turnaround financial performance for our
shareholders. We are prepared to turn challenges into opportunities and will
forge ahead against all odds.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and safeguarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing shareholder value.
Throughout the year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Year”),
the Company has consistently adopted and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the section headed “Part 2 — Principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices” of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as
guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2022, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised 11 members, namely 5
executive Directors (the “EDs”), 2 non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”) and
4 independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The NEDs and INEDs
represented about 55% of the Board members thereat. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following members:

EDs

Mr. LIU Xianfu (Chairman)
(re-designated from NED director to ED and
appointed as Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2022)

Mr. SUN Fuiji (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Mr. ZHANG Zheng

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. TAO Yongming

(re-designated from ED to NED

on 1 April 2022)

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

The Company has complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules which the number of INEDs representing at least one-third of the Board.
The profiles of all the current Directors are set out on pages 59 to 65 of this
annual report. The relationships among the Board members (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are also
disclosed thereto.
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All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment with
the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at the
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the Articles provides that
at each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest one-third or any other number subject to
such manner of rotation as may be required by the statutes, the Listing Rules
or other codes, rules, and regulations prescribed from time to time by the
applicable regulatory authority, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire in
every year shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined
by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Article 93 of the
Articles also provides that any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy (who
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company) or as
an addition to the Board (who shall hold office until the next following AGM)
shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising the business operations of the Group in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) providing insights
regarding the Group’s culture and values by formulating strategic directions and
monitoring the financial and management performance of the Group.

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
to the executive management team, and focused its attention on matters
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the Shareholders.
The executive management team assumes full accountability to the Board
for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule has been formulated and
will be reviewed regularly to identify specific matters that shall be reserved
to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board has given
clear directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to
the Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of
the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Independence

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. The participation of
Independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent and
objective judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance,
conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders have been duly considered.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board, the
mechanisms described in this CG Report are established by the Board, and
Board Committees follow the same processes, where applicable.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals were held
during the Year. Each of the Directors has actively participated in each meeting
in person or via telephone or videoconferencing. Decisions were made by
majority vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of 2022 regular Board meetings had been determined in 2021 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow the
Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so in the
furtherance of his respective duties, might take independent professional
advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee” or the “AC”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee” or the “RC”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or the “NC”). Minutes
of the Board meetings were taken by the Company Secretary and, together
with any supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final
versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record
respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his interest
and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which he or any of
his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest and
that he would not be counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

Details of the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board, the AC, the
RC and the NC and AGM during the Year are set out in the following table:

EENEFTER
EZHERBR

ﬁ?E’JtH

KEEF“P\] EENEFEEE
%ﬁmﬂéﬁa ED% ?E%é%
D¥|E§U%Uj —Fi'é

Meetings attended/Meetings required to be attended during the Year
FEEREEZHERY BELRZER

Name of Directors Board AC RC NC AGM
e EXg ERZEEET HWEEE REZEEF REEFAE
EDs HITEE
Mr. LIU Xianfu (Note 1) ERLE W) 5/5 - - 11 1/1
Mr. SUN Fui BRELELE 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. ZHAO Yao (Note 2) Rt (Wat2) 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew (Note 3) BRiEsE R & (WEs) 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Zheng RIESRSE 5/5 - - - 1/1
NEDs HRITEE
Dr. YEN Gordon BESEL 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. TAO Yongming (Note 4) ka8 (Hata) 5/5 - 171 - 1
INEDs BUFHTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung REEAEE 5/5 4/4 11 - 11
Mr. YING Wei FERLE 5/5 - 11 11 il
Mr. Wiliam LAM WEMEE 5/5 474 - 11 il
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi IHThE 5/5 474 - - il
Date of the meetings EE AL 18/03/2022 07/01/2022  09/11/2022 18/08/2022 06/05/2022

08/07/2022 11/03/2022 Note 5 Note 6

25/08/2022 06/07/2022 Hizts Hrit6

21/11/2022 19/08/2022

16/12/2022
Notes: Vizan

1. Mr. LIU was re-designated from a NED to an ED and was appointed as chairman of 1.

the Board and chairman of the NC with effect from 1 April 2022.

2. Mr. ZHAO ceased to act as chairman of the Board and chairman of the NC but 2.
remains as an ED with effect from 1 April 2022. Mr. ZHAO also be appointed as a
senior consultant of the Company to participle in the operation and management of
new projects with effect from 15 November 2022.

3. Mr. YAU was re-designated from Chief Operating Officer of the Company to Chief 3.
Marketing Officer and remains as an ED with effect from 18 August 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. Mr. TAO was re-designated from an ED to a NED and remains as a member of RC
with effect from 1 April 2022.

5. During the Year, apart from the meeting held on 9 November 2022, written
resolutions had also been circulated and passed by all the RC members on 5
occasions, which were dated 11 March 2022, 10 May 2022, 27 June 2022, 19
August 2022 and 5 September 2022, respectively.

6.  During the Year, apart from the meeting held on 18 August 2022, written resolutions
had also been circulated and passed by all the NC members on 3 occasions, which
were dated 11 March 2022, 27 June 2022 and 8 November 2022, respectively.

Training of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties
and responsibilities as a Director as well as relevant laws, rules and regulations
applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest and the business
of the Group and induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest developments
and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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EEERRS (B

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he had complied with code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the Year, each
of the Directors named below has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh his knowledge and skills and provided a

record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors

EDs

Mr. LIU Xianfu (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. SUN Fuii (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. ZHAO Yao (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. ZHANG Zheng (@), (b) and (c)
NEDs

Dr. YEN Gordon (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. TAO Yongming (@), (b) and (c)
INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YING Wei (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. William LAM (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (@), (b) and (c)

Notes:
(@) corporate governance

(o)  regulatory requirements or risk management
(c) finance or business operation/management

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal action against the Directors and officers.

Topics of Training covered (Notes)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each of the
NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of one year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the existing INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. In response to the specific enquiries made by the Company on
all Directors, they have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference have been
reviewed and approved by the Board and are updated by reference to the
CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures and
arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The respective
committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these committees
and the work of each of these committees was reported to the Board regularly.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised and
effective on 1 January 2019. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
consider the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements with a focus on the changes
in accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit
adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to
review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung, Mr. William LAM and Mr. WONG Kwong
Chi, and is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year and details of the
attendance are shown in the table on page 40 of this annual report. A summary
of the work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° provided recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and the terms of
engagement of the independent auditor;

° provided recommendations and analysis to the Board in relation to the
change of independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and the terms
of engagement of the independent auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the independent auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and discussed with the independent auditor before
the audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the reporting
obligations;

° reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report as well
as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

e reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems;
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e discussed the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management had performed its duty
to have effective systems. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

e to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and for
the management’s response to these findings;

e ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced and had
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and monitored its
effectiveness;

e reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and

e reviewed the independent auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the independent auditor to management regarding
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The independent auditor’s
statement about its reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 79 to 83 of
this annual report.

CHANGE OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

An announcement has been published on 28 September 2022 in relation to the
change of independent auditor. The Company’s policy requires the Company
to rotate the independent auditor after a specific service period. BDO Limited
(“BDO”") has been appointed as the Company’s independent auditor since
November 2012 and has reached the prescribed time limit of consecutive
number of years of audit engagement in 2022. In light of this, the management
of the Company had discussions with BDO about the proposal to change
the independent auditor of the Company, and as a result BDO tendered its
resignation as the independent auditor of the Company.
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BDO has also confirmed in its letter of resignation that there are no matters
and no circumstances connected with its resignation need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders and creditors of the Company.

The Board has resolved to appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING”) as the new independent auditor of the Company with effect
from 28 September 2022 to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by the
resignation of BDO and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the re-appointment of the independent auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of SHINEWING as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2023 AGM for the approval of
the Shareholders.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to SHINEWING, the Group’s existing
independent auditor appointed on 28 September 2022, in respect of audit
services for the Year amounted to approximately HK$2,495,000, the non-audit
services mainly consisted payroll services of HK$55,000 and SASAC’s report of
HK$550,000, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually; 2) to identify and recommend
suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s) or to fill Board vacancies as
they arise for the approval of the Board; 3) to assess the independence of the
INEDs; and 4) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO.

Mr. LIU Xianfu was appointed as chairman of the NC with effect from 1 April
2022, while Mr. ZHAO Yao ceased to be chairman of the NC with effect from 1
April 2022.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises an
ED, Mr. LIU Xianfu, and two INEDs, namely Mr. YING Wei and Mr. Wiliam LAM,
and is chaired by Mr. LIU Xianfu.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year and details of the
attendance are shown in the table on page 40 of this annual report. A summary
of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

e made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and Chairman and
assessed the independence of the INEDs;

o reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

o reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the
balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with a diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the appointment
of Directors (including an INED) in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the current
composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

i. The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals
from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due consideration
given to the criteria which include but are not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge

and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries in which the Group’s business is involved;

(d) Independence;
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Viil.

(e) Reputation for integrity;

()  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of candidates who
are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
the remuneration package of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to
the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a Director is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation
to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by
the members of the Board, who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment
as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.
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POLICY OF DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”).
The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether
the relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background and
S0 on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the particulars of the
Policy as adopted by the Board are summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable and
balanced development of the Group.

Traditionally, there has been short of female talents in the operation level in the
Group due to industry norm and culture influences. However, the Company
believes the balance of gender in the Board would bring more inspiration to
the Board and enhance the overall business strategies development of the
Group. Hence, the Company still manage to attract female talents to join
the Board. As at 31 December 2022, the Company has a workforce gender
ratio of approximately 3:1 (male:female) to avoid a single gender workforce
(including the Directors and senior management) and will timely review the
gender diversity of the Company’s workforce in accordance with the business
development of the Group.

To achieve Board diversity, the Company is contemplating to include at least
one female director to join the Board by 31 December 2024 pursuant to Note
to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will bring to the
Board.
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For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition
in the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive
experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has achieved the
measurable objectives under the Board Diversity Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors; 2) to review
and approve the Group’s remuneration policy proposed by the CEO and
make recommendations to the Board; and 3) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The Group’s
remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of remuneration in
accordance with current market conditions to attract and motivate the
Directors and staff for their contribution.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee comprises a
NED Mr. TAO Yongming, and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr.
YING Wei, and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei.

MEREEEMNEZTCERM
ERRERM

ms Ul st

1. AABEETLHRAFKEMESSAH

PRBYIRTE °

2. BWIUIEMITESNABERD
FEWN=p2z—o

SR ZRE

8. EL-—LBIUFPTESAARBENSE
XERAGSHNRBAM B EEFEENH -

4. BEL—RERBATEBREBPRETEN
HEATHEFEEENTELR-

HE2022F12H31H EEEEEMEZE N
EZ T EBRBETINAE2EEZ.

HMEES S

RAABERULFMNEES TREEZEMEER
BE AT EBBA MBI EES 2K
KRAOBEEFREEZ )BFMTHEAREZZ
REBPFHNEEE R EEE FIEHEZRI)A
%%%@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&@ﬁﬁMﬁ&M&E
EBEENHFMRENEZIEZEZ URNESY
R EE K%lm%wﬂwtfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
NIREEBRI N LRSI KRB EIEE &
BTEHEE-

BEAFRAP FHEZEEEmIRIFERTES
K2 B IFAITESFE > 25 758K 88 5
FhBEREERERSLE ZEETERERE
FeEe



EEEL(EE)HRRAT 2022FFK

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has convened 1 meeting during the Year and
details of the attendance are shown in the table on page 40 of this annual
report. A summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the Year
is set out as follows:

e made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and assessed
their performance;

e reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

e  ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The risk management and internal control
systems employed by the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material and/or
financial misstatement or loss. The Board is also responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group’s ESG related risks and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management is in place, details of the ESG risk management
system will be disclosed in the Company’s ESG report. The Board has
delegated the Audit Committee the following duties:

1. to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems;

2. to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty
to have effective systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

3. where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness; and
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4. to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings.

The Company has established the Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”) and
the CEO Office to manage the internal control and risk management issues of
the Group respectively. The CEO Office reports to both the AC and the CEOQO,
while the IAD reports only to the AC.

The AC and the CEO report to the Board periodically regarding material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and other risk
issues of the Group identified by the AC and the CEO from time to time. The
Board, through the AC, reviews risk management and internal control matters
approximately once every six months. The Board and the AC are satisfied with
the effectiveness of the Company’s procedure for financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The IAD is responsible for the internal control matters of the Group and
currently comprises 3 staff members. It is governed by an internal audit charter
and has established an internal audit approach for its internal audit function.
The IAD has prepared 17 internal audit reports during the year ended 31
December 2022. The Board has confirmed that IAD had been provided with
adequate resources and budget and comprised qualified staff with sufficient
experience and training programs to perform its internal audit function.

The missions of the IAD are:

— to evaluate and improve the Group’s risk management, control and
operation processes; and

— to assist the organisation in achieving the best practice, thus becoming
the best managed company.

The IAD is authorised to have unrestricted access to records, personnel, and
physical properties relevant to the performance of audits. Their relevance
depends on the nature and extent of the audits as well as the audit
environment, and is subject to the internal audit guideline on the handling of
sensitive information as endorsed by the AC. The IAD is authorised to directly
and regularly communicate with the senior management and all executives in
individual organisation being audited to discuss its major findings. All personnel
within the Group are required to assert full cooperation any time and in any
place with the IAD necessary to allow it to discharge its responsibilities.

4. FIPHEBEFENZIK REBARRERE
RABEEEENERZREERNEEE
ﬁjﬂﬁénﬂ%afj@ﬁ/g TTEH’jLO

ZKQ}EﬂEEEEEZﬂqﬁﬁﬁgéfﬁB(r@9ﬁ5%§%+ﬁBJ)Eiﬁ%
gmag (MBERAE) TN EEEERE
EANSSEEREAREESEE BIAMAEDH
ZEEGRITHBHER MAREHHRME
BEZLEGER-

EREESRTHBAE CHNESSEREE
B BN BERGREEREMAER
EREZEGRITHBHELEERAERNER
EE-FEZANSEAEKRERZEZESTER
BREERANSEEET - EETGNEZEZE
BEMNRRNBMERREFNER .

A2

Wt IR SR ETHR T A EAER
AR EEET SRAEBAEELEERER
HANSEABAENE T A B ER - HREE
2022F12831H IEFEANEE I BT 71E
NI E RS - EEERECORIBAIIR
HAEBRHNEREBEMARHKENEGERKE
T RIBIIREUBITHEAE B

PR ERAO LTS |
— FEREEFEENAREE BEARE
/}\L%i bl E’Z
—  HEAMEEREE R SRR EEEN
Ao

PEREE 5T EDIE R P) ER R sth iR AR SR AE 1T 2 51
BN E ABRBYHME - HAERER Y=
STHBEREEURESIREME  BARE
ZEZEEEAFERBRESRENNANEEE
SIBYIRIR - BBt B ER R ER R E AR
ZESVERAABNSHREEABRMAITR
ANBBEBE USmETEER ~EBRFAEA
S AN E AR By i8] e A fa] 3 25 A5 1 2 1 3th £2 o 6
B HMETLENGE UBTHEE



EEEE(%E)FRYE  2022FF#K

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management framework
(the “Framework”) since 2016. The Framework is to execute the basic risk
management measures in various business sectors such as production,
operation and management, with the aim to (i) develop a group-wide, open and
proactive risk management culture, and (i) safeguard the strategic development
and current business operations of the Group.

The Framework consists of the following concepts:
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The Comprehensive Risk Management Framework
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Risk Management
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Culture

The Company has also established the guideline for the Framework (the
“Guideline”). According to the Guideline, the risk management function of the
Group is made up of the Board, AC, CEO, senior management, CEO Office,
IAD and various subsidiaries of the Company.

The Framework is a tri-layer system. The first layer is mainly made up of senior
management and heads of various functional and operational departments of
the Group, who are the key players for minimising potential risks in advance.
The second layer consists of the AC, the CEO and the CEO Office, which
is mainly responsible for the organisation, co-ordination and planning of the
corporate risk management works and monitors the progress of the risk
management works. Thus, the second layer is vital during a risk management
crisis. The third layer is formed by the AC and the IAD to review and audit
the existing operation flow such as information system, business flow and
financial disclosure. The third layer is often the key to mitigate risk factors in the
aftermath of a risk management crisis.

Risk Management
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The following diagram displays the relationship and interaction among the three  FEIEER T HEZR3EB A 4F 2 BRI G R EH ¢
layers of the Framework:
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In 2023, CEO Office will continue to focus on the following risk management 7320234 > A A SR EE 0+ T YA S
issues: EEEH .

1. Continue to strengthen and deepen the risk self-assessment and internal 1. ##8H058 ~ F1E A B & 575 & 2P aTE
assessment work; T1E;

2. Set reasonable assessment standards and methods for the impact of risk 2. ¥ E[GIER 2 22 E AT IZ A ik E
categories; and TEERE &

3. Accelerate the implementation progress of the risk management work. 3. MMREBEEI(ENEHREE-
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During 2022, the IAD and the CEO Office had reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reported their findings to the
AC. The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed twice
during the Year. There was no significant defect found in respect of the risk
management or internal control system under review. The Board and the AC
are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established a policy for ensuring that inside information (the
“Inside Information”) is disclosed to the public in an equal and timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The senior management of the Group is to provide timely and accurate
information, to allow the Board to make an informed decision to determine
whether the information is Inside Information and/or whether the Company has
to disclose such information to the public. Senior management of the Group
must report to the Board and/or CEO any information they have which they
believe to be Inside Information and will trigger the Company to discharge its
disclosure duty. The Company Secretary will follow up accordingly.

The Company Secretary is responsible for disclosing Inside Information to the
public and/or is authorised to collect any information from any department and/
or employee of the Group in order to help determining whether the alleged
information is Inside Information and/or whether disclosure is required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (ii) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (d) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. The Board has, amongst other matters, reviewed this
corporate governance report, ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG”), the company secretary of the
Company, has continued to perform and discharge the duties of a company
secretary under the Listing Rules.
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Ms. CHENG joined the Group in October 2003 and is currently the Deputy
General Manager (Corporate Governance Department of the Group) of the
Company. She has over 24 years of extensive working experience specialising
in company secretarial matters, credit management, investor relations,
corporate affairs and insurance operation. Ms. CHENG is a fellow member
of each of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in England. Ms. CHENG obtained a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Mount Allison University, Canada, an Executive Master’'s degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Science degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. CHENG has fulfilled
the specified qualifications and experience under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
and she has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below is
a summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general meeting and put
forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a
right to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it (the “Written Request”) and sent to the Company,
require the Directors to call a meeting.

The Written Request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (i) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement of the relevant Shareholder(s) and such
meeting must be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting.

If the Written Request received by the Company identifies a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the notice of
the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business that may be
dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution that has been included in such
notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution, the
Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting, the text of the resolution
and specifies the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution.

*
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If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the Written Request, the
Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a
general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (i) in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must be
reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 580 and 582 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder
may request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other
business to be dealt with at any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a Written Request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at the
meeting; or (i) at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a
proposed resolution at the meeting.

The Written Request must identify the statement to be circulated, and must
be received by the Company at least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The
expenses of circulating such statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s)
who requested the circulation of the statement unless (i) the Company resolves
otherwise or (i) the meeting to which the requests related is an AGM; and
requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement are
received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement at the
same time as it gives notice of the meeting.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings or
change of address or distribution instructions to the Company’s share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited. Shareholders may at any time send
their enquiries to the Board via the Investor Relations Representative of the
Company whose contact details are shown under “Shareholder Information” of
this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, all other members of the Board including independent non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will
make themselves available at the annual general meeting to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.fshl.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’” Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy
is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholder communication policy during the year and conclude that it is
effective because some minority shareholders have personally approached the
company and ask for relevant news.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “EDS”)
Mr. LIU Xianfu

Chairman of the Board
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Aged 57, has been an ED since 28 August 2018 and was re-designated as
a NED on 1 November 2021. He was re-designated from a NED to an ED
and was further appointed as the Chairman of the Board and chairman of
the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2022. Mr. LIU has over 28 years of
experience in the textile industry. He joined Chinatex, a controlling shareholder
of the Company, in 1994 and has held positions such as the Deputy Finance
Section Chief of Chinatex Cotton Yarns and Fabrics Import and Export
Corporation, the Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Real Estate, the
Deputy General Manager of Finance Department of Chinatex, the General
Manager of Audit Department of Chinatex, the General Manager of Finance
Department of Chinatex, the General Manager of Chinatex Raw Materials
International Trading Corporation, and the Vice President of Chinatex. Mr. LIU
has served as the Chief Accountant of Chinatex since 2017. Mr. LIU graduated
from Anhui University of Finance and Economics (formerly known as Anhui
Finance and Trade College*) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
in 1987 in professional accounting with a Bachelor's degree of Economics.
He graduated in finance and obtained a Master’s degree in Economics from
Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences (formerly known as The Research Institute
for Fiscal Science) in the PRC in 1990 and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The University of Texas at Arlington, United States
of America (“USA”) in 2010.

Mr. SUN Fuji
Chief Executive Officer

Aged 59, has been a NED and a member of the Audit Committee since 28
August 2018 and was re-designated as an ED and the CEO and ceased to
be a member of the Audit Committee on 1 November 2021. Mr. SUN is a
senior engineer. He has over 38 years of experience in the textile industry.
Mr. SUN joined Zhucheng Chinatex Sunrise Textiles Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Zhucheng Cotton Spinning Factory) in 1984 and has held positions such
as the Technician and the Deputy Officer of Front Spinning Department, the
Factory Director Assistant and the Deputy Factory Director of Zhucheng Cotton
Spinning Factory and the Deputy General Manager of Zhucheng Textiles
Corporation. Mr. SUN has served as the Executive Deputy General Manager of
Textile & Garment BU, a subsidiary of Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”)
(a controlling shareholder of the Company), the General Manager of Chinatex
Jinwei Textiles Co., Ltd.* (“Chinatex Jinwei”) and Chinatex Sunrise Textiles Co.,
Ltd. (“Chinatex Sunrise”) since May 2017, and also appointed as the Chairman
of Chinatex Jinwei and Chinatex Sunrise since May 2021. Once Mr. SUN’s
appointment as the CEO of the Company is effective, he was no longer act as
the Executive Deputy General Manager of Textile & Garment BU (a subsidiary of
Chinatex), the General Manager and legal representative of Chinatex Jinwei and
Chinatex Sunrise. Mr. SUN graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering
from the Textile Department of Cotton Manufacturing of Shandong Textiles
Engineering Institute in the PRC in 1984.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. ZHAO Yao

Aged 59, has been an ED since 27 November 2012, and was appointed as
the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
on 14 November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO of the Company
on 23 January 2015. Since 1 November 2021, Mr. ZHAO no longer acted as
the CEO and remains as an ED, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. From 1 April 2022, Mr. ZHAO no longer act
as the Chairman and chairman of the Nomination Committee, and remain
as an executive Director. He was further appointed as the Senior Consultant
of the Company on 15 November 2022. Mr. ZHAO also holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. ZHAO has almost 35 years of
experience in the textile industry. He joined China National Textiles Import
and Export Corporation* (47 Bl 45 & fh & H [ 482 8)) (“General Corporation”),
the predecessor of Chinatex Corporation Limited* (TEH45EBEERA
&) (“Chinatex”), a controlling shareholder of the Company, in 1987 and held
positions as the Assistant President of Chinatex, the General Manager of Asset
Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and General Manager of
Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (P4 REEEEBREA
@), General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property Management Co., Ltd.*
(R4 R TR BB RAT), General Manager of Chinatex Real Estate
Administration Co., Ltd.* (F45¥1£EIEERAR) (“Chinatex Real Estate”),
Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng Fuijitec
Elevator Co., Ltd.* (EAEBTEZEHFAIRAE), Chairman of Shanghai
Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* (L/BEA B TERBERAR),
Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science & Technology Co., Ltd.*
(EBEEABRILARAT), Financial Manager of Wah Gar Knitwear
Factory Company Limited, General Manager of Suzhou Zhongfa Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (BRI EEH2H BR/A B]) and Vice President of Chudai
Trading Co., Ltd.* (A& ALK& +1), a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO
graduated with a diploma in industrial accounting from Renmin University of
China in 1987. In 2013, Mr. ZHAO obtained a Senior Management Master’s
Degree of Business Administration awarded by University of Texas at Arlington
in the USA.

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Aged 54, was appointed as an ED on 28 August 2018. Mr. YAU is also
the chief marketing officer of the Group and holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. YAU joined the Group in 1992 and has
over 28 years of experience in the textile industry with extensive experience
in operations and strategic planning. Mr. YAU is also a director of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Mr. YAU graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
1991 with a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology and subsequently obtained
a Master of Science degree in Textile Engineering from the University of Leeds
in England in 1992. He earned an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree and a Master of Science (MSc) degree in Finance from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2015 and 2019, respectively.
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Mr. ZHANG Zheng

Aged 37, was appointed as an ED on 1 April 2021. Mr. ZHANG graduated
with a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 2009,
and a Master’s Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 2011.
Mr. ZHANG obtained with the professional qualification of board secretary of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2017. Mr. ZHANG has adequate knowledge in
equity financing, mergers and acquisitions and fund management. Mr. ZHANG
was the Researcher, Assistant of Fund Manager and Fund Manager of Da
Cheng Fund Management Co., Ltd. between 2011 and 2017. Mr. ZHANG
is currently the director and board secretary of Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd., a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “NEDS”)
Dr. YEN Gordon

Non-executive Vice Chairman

Aged 53, has been a NED since 31 May 2013 and was further appointed as
the Non-executive Vice Chairman of the Board on 28 August 2018. Prior to
that, he was the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and an ED. He joined
the Group in 1999 and was then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before
being re-designated as a NED. Dr. YEN is currently the founding managing
partner of Radiant Tech Ventures Limited, an innovation and technology venture
capital firm, and is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance for Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity. He
serves as an independent non-executive director and a member of each of the
audit committee and the nomination committee as well as the chairman of the
sustainability committee of Impro Precision Industries Limited, and also serves
as an independent non-executive director and a member of the nomination
committee of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, both companies
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr.
YEN is a member of the Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the PRC; Honorable Life-Chairman of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited; chairman of the Hong
Kong Business Angel Network; and a director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Manufacturing
Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master degree in Business
Administration from McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. TAO Yongming
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 57, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 28 August 2018 and re-designated from an ED to a NED,
and remain as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 April 2022.
Mr. TAO joined China National Cereals, QOils and Foodstuffs Corporation
(“COFCQ”), formerly known as China National Cereals, Oils & Foodstuffs Import
& Export Corporation, a controlling shareholder of the Company, in 1987
and has held positions such as the Officer and Deputy General Manager of
Planning and Finance Department of COFCO, the Executive Vice President of
COFCO Capital Corporation, a subsidiary of COFCO, the General Manager of
Shandong Peanut Import and Export Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of COFCO, the
Deputy General Manager of Risk Management Department of the Auditing
& Supervision Department of COFCO, the Deputy General Manager of Audit
Management Department of Audit, Legal and Risk Management Department
of COFCO, the General Manager of Discipline Inspection & Supervision
Department of Chinatex (a controlling shareholder of the Company). Mr. TAO
has served as the General Manager of Audit, Legal and Risk Management
Department of Chinatex since May 2017. Mr. TAO graduated from Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor's degree in Foreign Trade Accounting in
1987.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(THE “INEDS”)

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 72, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED, and was then appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He is also the non-executive
director of Wah Ha Realty Company Limited,being a listed company in Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and a Licentiateship in
Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma in Chinese Law
from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a member of each of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional
Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial Planners in
Hong Kong.
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Mr. YING Wei
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 56, was appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 January
2015. Mr. YING holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
the University of San Francisco and a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from
the Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of
Commerce) in the PRC. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. For the period from 1989 to 2007, Mr. YING
served as an executive director and the Vice President of China Resources
Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. Between 2007 and 2009, he served as
the Vice President of China Water Affairs Group Limited, a company listed on
the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From 21 July 2008 to 30 July
2009, he held the position of an executive director and the President of China
City Infrastructure Group Ltd. (formerly known as China Botanic Development
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. From September 2011 to February 2022, he was an independent
non-executive director of CHTC Fong’s International Company Limited, a
company listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From May
2016 to February 2021, he served as a director of Giant Network Group Co.,
Ltd (formerly known as Chongging New Century Cruises Co., Ltd.), a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. YING is an independent
non-executive director of Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. In addition, Mr. YING
is also a managing partner of CDH.
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Mr. William LAM

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 64, was appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAM is a solicitor
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the Supreme Court
of England and Wales, and a civil celebrant of marriages in Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of Manchester, England in 1981 with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Electronics and Electrical Engineering. His major study
included computer design, power transmission and telecommunications.
He is also a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
(M.LE.E.E.) in USA. After obtaining his Bachelor's Degree, he studied laws
at the Manchester Polytechnic (now known as Manchester Metropolitan
University), England and the College of Law in Chester, England, respectively.
Mr. LAM returned to Hong Kong in 1984 to work in family business of Tai
Sun Company (@ member of The Hong Kong-Kowloon Yarn and Fabrics
Association), and Shing Fung Finance Company Limited, both founded by
his late father Mr. LAM Muk Kwong in 1958 and 1972, respectively. In 1992,
Mr. LAM furthered his studies in laws at the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) and was admitted as a
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1994 and of the Supreme
Court of England and Wales in the following year. In 1999, Mr. LAM founded
Wiliam Lam and Company, Solicitors to start his own practice in law. Mr.
LAM also serves in many areas. He is an executive committee member of the
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, the founding
president of the University of Manchester Alumni Association of Hong Kong,
General Committee of Yau Yat Chuen Garden City Club Ltd. and a member of
the InnoTech Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong from 18 January
2005 to 30 September 2020 and was a coopted member of the Chinese
Temples Committee from 2009 to 2015. Mr. LAM has also acted as the legal
advisor of various organisations, such as the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Textiles Limited, the Chamber of the Hong Kong Computer Industry, the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the Hong Kong WEEE Recycling
Association, the Hong Kong Society of Medical Professionals, the Hong Kong
Software Industry Association, the Government Doctors’ Association and the
Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank.
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Mr. WONG Kwong Chi
Member of the Audit Committee

Aged 71, has been an INED since 30 June 2021 and was further appointed as
a Member of the Audit Committee since 1 November 2021. Mr. Wong was an
INED from 1998 to 2012. He has extensive experience in the capital investment
market. Mr. WONG is a founding partner and a member of the investment
committee of Whiz Partners Asia Limited and he is the chairman of the board
of directors of Cornwall Medical Holding Company Limited. Mr. WONG
was an executive director of CDC Corporation which is a listed company in
the United States and an executive director of CDC Software Corporation
which is a public company in the United States. He was also an executive
director of China.com Inc. (now known as Sino Splendid Holdings Limited)
and an independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited and Sinoref Holdings Limited (now known as Cybernaut International
Holdings Company Limited), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. WONG holds a Bachelor’'s degree of Science in Physics and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Additionally, Mr. WONG served as the former Chairman of the Hong Kong
Venture Capital and Private Equity Association, the former Vice President of
The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and the former Vice President
of the Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and the Honorary Advisor of the Hong
Kong Critical Components Manufacturers Association.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the textile and garment businesses, including the production
and sale of knitted fabric and garments. Details of the principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 84 to 176 of this annual report. No dividend was paid
or proposed during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: final dividend of
HK16.00 cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the performance
for the Year and an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found throughout
this annual report, in particular the Risk Management and Internal Control
section under the Corporate Governance Report and the Possible Risks and
Uncertainties section of this Directors’ Report. The Group did not have any
significant event after the Year and up to the date of this annual report. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
and Statistical Highlights and the MD&A. Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular, the Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and relationships
with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the Group
are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Policies and
Performance section in the Chairman’s Statement and the Stakeholders’
Engagement section in the MD&A of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Possible Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,
market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw materials,
in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in the
prices of such raw materials, which could materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. Affected by the
China-United States trade war, textile industry related products have appeared
in the list of tariffs imposed by both parties. Therefore, the latest trend of trade
negotiations will determine the extent of the impact of tariff policies on the
textile and garment industry. The financial uncertainty may affect the global
textile and garment industry, which in turn may affect the business of major
retail brands and garment manufacturers, which are the principal customers of
the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group’s fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other pollutants
and are subject to various environmental protection laws and regulations in
China and other countries where the Group’s production facilities are located.
Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with, environmental protection
laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur additional costs and
expenses.

In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience any power,
steam or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations may
be harmed.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying out credit
assessment and monitoring asset quality. The Group has established policies,
procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure, monitor, control and
report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced on an ongoing basis
to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and best practices in risk
management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to the Risk Management section under the MD&A
and note 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars
of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 78 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$163,631,000 to property, plant
and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the Group’s
manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as
at 31 December 2022, calculated under Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), amounted to
HK$1,030,269,000 (31 December 2021: HK$1,222,564,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)
Mr. LIU Xianfu (Chairman)
(re-designated from NED to ED and
appointed as Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2022)
Mr. SUN Fuiji (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHAO Yao
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew
Mr. ZHANG Zheng

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)
Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. TAO Yongming

(re-designated from ED to NED

on 1 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

According to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr. NG
Kwok Tung, Mr. YING Wei and Mr. William LAM will retire and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

As at 31 December 2022, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 59 to 65 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)), which were required to be: (a) notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO (the “Register”), or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules” and the “Model Code”, respectively), were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares:

ERZESED

R2022F12H31H AR B EERESTEHA
ERARBHEEAEH LB (ABEEEEM
FHET1ER S MHPERG (TF8 5 REBEEA)) 5
XVEBFTHE T 2 W ) 2 B1D ~ BRI R EREE
B (Q)ZE 5 MBS IR BXVE BT RS D
BN ANBD REBMEXZFBRAR (M
RPN 2 m kB (BIERER S RIS
Z2EBRREREWEERRAER 2 m Bk
B) O IRIEAR B EEH & E KRG 553521%
FrEE Rz (Tafl) 2%
KA TR B g S LT REIMER10
iz EHBTAERETEERZNIZES
B (28] & T ERA & MREESFA) BAEAR
BRIz Em R BWT -

REROBGFAIER

Number of Approximate % of
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total the Issued Shares
HIEERFEE
e 13 RanitE Rip R AERR (B B BIIREEDL
Dr. YEN Gordon Beneficial owner Personal interest 8,380,000 8,380,000 0.68
REHREL BEnEAA EPN:
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,508,000
il isbeis EnEAA EPN:
2,888, 24
Spouse’s interests Family interest 380,000 /888,000 0
FoiBEs RIEET (Note) (&%)
Note:  Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew is deemed to be interested in 380,000 Shares held by  A3# . RIBFEHRIAEKA > BIBELEWRAE

his spouse under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
(@) had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
(b) were recorded in the Register, or (c) had been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

B HECBFT R A A FI#Y380,0008 & 19 = #

250

I

bR Eatig B E SN 1R2022F 128318 » #fE K
NBAEF - ReETHRABRAATNEFEMAE
BrE (BB HHRIPE RGN EXVIEFTIE T 2
) 2 ARG ERERD REEEFESIR
HEAA Bl(a)i% 58 5 KA E K B SEXVER 557 /%85
HBHARNB MR EE XA (BEIR
BESMRPERIZBRREREREFERR
REBZEmEORR) ()BT Z %
Mz ERmERE ; (o) IZETFR BB AR
BB AR R A o



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company)/entities had interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests of
the substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO (the “Substantial Shareholders’ Register”).

Long positions in the Shares:
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R2022F 128318 RIEARBEFHF RIFE
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ERRRED
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Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HIEE R
TERFLHE S REtE FERNEE By RIPERLL
COFGO Corporation (‘COFCO”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 476,974,000 476,974,000 38.94
hEEERRAT (Thig)) corporations HEER (Notes 1 and 2)
R EERNRR (hizt1k2)
Chinatex Corporation Limited Interest of controlled Corporate interest 476,974,000 476,974,000 38.94
(“Chinatex’) corporations HEER (Notes 1 and 2)
FERHERERAR (R4  EREENER (hizt1k2)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment Interest of a controlled Corporate interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui”’) ~ corporation HEER (Note 1)
PHRBREERAREIRA EREENER (Hizt1)
G))
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Beneficial owner Personal interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Co., Ltd. (*Yieldful) EnEAA BN
THREREEEERAE
(rBe))
Mr. SUN Weiting (“Mr. SUN”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
BEELE (TRRE) corporations HEER (Note 3)
R EERNRR (Hz23)
Ms. CHEN Lingfen (‘Ms. CHEN”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
BRES L (Hetl) corporations FEREG (Note 3)
R EERNRR (Hz23)
Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(“Huafu Holding”) corporations HEER (Note 3)
EIRREBRAT R EERNRR (Hz23)

(EFER)
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Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HILEET
TERRAE a4 EEHE BERMEE By BRIVEAL
Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(“Huafu Fashion”) corporations HEER (Note 3)
EIRHRNERAH EREEN R (Hz23)
(FEEZE )
Mr. HA Chung Fong (‘Mr. HA") Beneficial owner Personal interest 107,732,948 107,732,948 8.79
EmERE (EE4E) BEaBEAA EARR
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui (‘Ms. TANG")  Spouse’s interests Family interest 107,732,948 107,732,948 8.79
Wigu T (82t [ KIS (Note 4)
(=2

*

For identification purpose only
Notes:

1. Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui. Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO. Therefore, each
of Jinhui, Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Yieldfull under the SFO.

2. As at 31 December 2022, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited (“Chinatex (H.K.)”)
held 67,938,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO.
Therefore, each of Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Chinatex (H.K.) under the SFO.

3. Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”) held 211,966,000 Shares as
beneficial owner. Tin Shing is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huafu HK Co. Limited
(*Huafu HK”). Huafu HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Huafu Import
and Export Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Huafu”) and Shenzhen Huafu is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huafu Fashion. Huafu Fashion is owned as to 30.62% by Huafu
Holding and Huafu Holding is owned as to 50% by each of Mr. SUN and Ms.
CHEN. Therefore, each of Huafu HK, Shenzhen Huafu, Huafu Fashion, Huafu
Holding, Mr. SUN and Ms. CHEN is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Tin Shing under the SFO.

4. Ms. TANG, spouse of Mr. HA, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Mr. HA under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of
the Company) who/entities which had any interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares, which were recorded in the Substantial
Shareholders’ Register.

©EHEE
Mt -

1. BREBEEFSKASHLN BERREZ2ENE
NEREAPHZEENBAT  MHAHAS
FIEBNEEMNB AR AL - 718 thin K hig
EERGIFERERESMMTRMD 2B

2. REFJBSHREEEG 7KR2022F12831H > H#
(BB ERAERAR (T4 (FB) ) FA
67,938,000028% 10 (EABHEE AN) 445 (F
B) ARz 2ERBAR MEHRIATES
2ENMBAT AL P RPIES BWRIEHE
BH4p (FB) FERMZER -

3. BFEEXMEZERRA (TR A
211,966,0008 810 (FRBE@mBEAN) ° RAll#
EBEZARRT (EBEF) 22E8HWBR
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and no such arrangements subsisted as at 31 December 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office. Such provision was
in force during the course of the Year and remained in force as of the date of
this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report below and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, or its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2022 or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 January 2023 to
the date of this Directors’ Report are available on the Company’s website at
www.fshl.com.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to the
Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions entered into during the Year is set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the Continuing
Connected Transactions (a) had been approved by the Board; (b) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) had
been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the respective cap amounts in
respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

The INEDs have also reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the same had been entered into by the Group:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save for the transactions disclosed in note 42(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the related party transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a one-off connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements for all the one-off
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had not redeemed its listed securities, nor did
the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) will review and approve the
remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of each of the Directors is reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. None of the Directors or executives, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is involved in dealing with his own
remuneration.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy, provided the Group is profitable and without
affecting the normal operations of the Group, the Company may consider to
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia: () the general financial condition of the Group; (i) capital
and debt level of the Group; (i) future cash requirements and availability for
business operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders; (v) the general market conditions; (vi) the interests of the Shareholders;
and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business (apart from the Group’s
business) which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information of
the Directors since the date of the 2022 interim report of the Company required
to be disclosed in this annual report are as follows:

—  Mr. NG resigned as a non-executive director of Welife Technology Limited
on 27 January 2022.

- Mr. YING Wei resigned as an independent non-executive director of CHTC
Fong’s International Company Limited on 1 March 2022.

—  Mr. ZHAO Yao was appointed as a senior consultant of the Company to
participle in the operation and management of new projects with effect
from 15 November 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the EDs’ service contracts) concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during
the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made no charitable and other donations (2021:
HK$524,469).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 58 of this annual
report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares throughout the Year and the
period thereafter up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management.
The Audit Committee presently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors (the “INEDs”), and one of the INEDs acts as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated final
results as well as the systems of internal control and risk management of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO had been the independent auditor since 2012. On 28 September 2022,
BDO resigned as the independent auditor. On the even date, the Board
appointed SHINEWING to fill the casual vacancy resulting from the resignation
of BDO and to hold office until the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2023.
Further details can be found on the Company’s announcement dated 28
September 2022. Save as disclosed herein, there were no other changes in the
independent auditor in the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
audited by SHINEWING, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution will be proposed to the
Shareholders at the 2023 AGM to re-appoint SHINEWING as the independent
auditor.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Xianfu
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2023
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REMEFR

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

120225128310 AEBREMEMFBNT ¢

Location Lease Use
2, HESEH B&

The Group’s
effective interest

FEEAERER

Unit A2 on 5/F., & Unit A1 on 7/F., Medium-term leases Warehouse and office
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, AR E SERRAE

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,

New Territories, Hong Kong

BB AEIREE1K29-395%

REIXKRE

SIBA2E R TIEA1E

Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and 12, Medium-term land Office
Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights AT
Shenzhen, the PRC FRRA - 3t f5F PR A

AR R A & & ) B B FH B A PR R

& EHARIEIE

A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08ZE10F112

Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 1), 5, 6, 9 and 11, Medium-term land Factory and office
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 2), 1, 2, 12 and 13 (Phase 3), use rights BE R AE
Factory Nos. 4, 14, 15, 16 and 17 (Phase 4) and ~ FRHEA- H{E

portion of bare land,

No 66-68, Danxia Road,

Xiangshan Industry Zone,

Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

FEMNIAEETRUBRTI(ER

7 B2 B566-685%

PRE A3 (157) ~ 56 9K 15E =

BRE A3 (2HA) ~ 12~ 125 135% (3HA) = ~

P& A4~ 141516817 (480) B =

DUz BB 53 22 3,

Portion of Dormitory No. 3, Medium-term land Dormitory
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, R R 3 55 FE A

Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

FRE I A SRR UG T ¥ E & F 2 566-685%

BEAN3SEHDES

A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier
near No. 9 Xiaoshan Road, High-tech Zone, use rights EEE
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC FRRA - it fsF PR A
RELIEE I e &R RSk

BB A ARENEE

100%

100%

55.5%

55.5%

100%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERVR A S CHE S

L] [ ]
. ° ° o.o .
_-.0.0. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited BEXRPH(EB) BB EABRAT
o.o.o 17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House, &8 i $E
311 Gloucester Road, ETITE3I115R

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 84 to 176 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
BIZHEmERE (@)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment of inventories
Refer to notes 4(g) and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

A degree of substandard products is typically produced during the normal
course of the Group’s production process. Moreover, inventories of the Group
will become aged and/or obsolete in the absence or cancellation of orders. The
Group maintains a sophisticated information technology system to keep track
of the aging and utilisation of inventories and materials regarded as wastage for
the estimation of net realisable value.

Based on the utilisation of inventories which became wastage and long-aged,
the Group made an accumulated provision of HK$180,524,000 as at year end
by reference to estimated net realisable values of inventories.

We identified the impairment of inventories as a key audit matter because
the estimates of net realisable values and how materials are regarded as
wastage on which this impairment entailed a significant degree of management
judgement.

Our response:

We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories which included:

— obtaining an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in estimating the net realisable values of inventories and
periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence;

— evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management in estimating the net realisable values and discussing them
with management;

— challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry; and

—  checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used by management in capturing the aging and utilisation of inventories
and estimate the net realisable values of those inventories.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 18 March 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information. We are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
BIZHEmERE (@)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors of the Company.

e  conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lee Shun Ming.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Shun Ming

Practising Certificate Number PO7068

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &, 2022412831 H It F E

2022 2021
Notes [fzF HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 F&7T
Revenue SR 6 6,053,645 6,751,277
Cost of sales THE K (5,475,828) (5,871,7398)
Gross profit EF 577,817 879,539
Other revenue HAKA 9a 73,001 86,483
Other gains and losses H e & E5 18 9b 1,681 (14,406)
Distribution and selling expenses D MIHEER (92,291) (141,310)
Administrative expenses THEA (559,179) (458,436)
Finance costs B R A 7 (21,408) (15,225)
Share of profit of an associate FEh—REBE QT 2 BA 17 169 805
(Loss)/profit before income PREFISMI X Al (B538)
tax expense il (20,210) 337,450
Income tax expense gz 8 (72,954) (67,192)
(Loss)/profit for the year EFE (BB B 9c (93,164) 270,258
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: ~ FEIL B FEE (518) /&F)
Owners of the Company EiN/NESIEZ =N (115,532) 241,334
Non-controlling interests JEIT RS 22,368 28,924
(93,164) 270,258
HK cents il HK cents il
(Loss)/earnings per share =i (&8 &F)
- Basic —HAK 12 (9.4) 19.7
— Diluted —#58 12 9.4) 19.7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
e kEMEEKER (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & £20224F12831H L F E

2022 2021
Note [ffz# HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
(Loss)/profit for the year BEE (BB B 9c (93,164) 270,258
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hizm FEx) s
income, net of tax (42 30FRTR1E)
Item that may be reclassified HEREEHDESE
subsequently to profit or loss: E@mZIEE .
Exchange differences arising on MBBNEBELX
translation of foreign operations bE 2 = 28 (85,178) 13,456
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EEEHEM2E (X))
income for the year k&= (35,178) 13,456
Total comprehensive (expense)/ 2EEE2E (BAX)
income for the year W= 4B E (128,342) 283,714
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EEREE2AE (X))
income for the year attributable to: IR 4EME
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (143,167) 251,418
Non-controlling interests JEIERE 14,825 32,296
(128,342) 083,714
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 °2022412H831H

At 31 December

At 31 December

K$12831H 128318
2022 2021
Notes [zt~ HK$'000 F&EL  HK$000 FET
Non-current assets EREBMEE
Investment properties KREYE 13 72,225 83,195
Property, plant and equipment N Y 14 1,307,647 1,336,105
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 194,534 196,861
Other intangible assets Hithmp & E 16 3,015 6,030
Deposit paid for purchase of EEMBRREREN
plant and equipment B E 17,324 16,808
Interest in an associate R—EBE AR 2w 17 23,767 23,598
Deferred tax assets IEIERR TH S EE 18 53,030 65,914
1,671,542 1,728,511
Current assets MBEE
Inventories =58 19 929,526 1,717,220
Trade and bills receivables B KRR B REIE 20 928,721 1,270,335
Prepayments, deposits and BRIE- TRk
other receivables HAth A& U TR IE 21 114,952 195,848
Tax recoverable AR ERIE 2,888 7,300
Restricted bank deposits ZIREBIIRITER 22 5,457 4,197
Short-term bank deposits FOHRIRITERR 23 246,116 57,846
Bank balances and cash IRITAEER IR E 23 1,147,563 767,133
3,375,223 4,019,879
Current liabilities Bt R=N =]
Trade and bills payables EEKRERBENRIE 24 491,299 956,450
Other payables and accruals HihfELRIB R ESTER 25 374,840 322,084
Contract liabilities RN 26 21,216 32,701
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE— R 27 26,768 24,641
Amounts due to non-controlling RIEVERARERFIA
shareholders 28 37,027 62,834
Amount due to an associate X—EE A ABIRIE 28 2,429 6,443
Deferred income — current portion IRIEW A — B ER 29 5,231 5,457
Tax payable FERIE 22,630 32,247
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE——FWEH 30 200,734 327,342
1,182,174 1,771,099
Net current assets TREEERE 2,193,049 2,248,780
Total assets less current liabilities BEERERRBERE 3,864,591 3,977,291
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
rREMEIRE (@

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 1?2022 12H831H

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H *12831H

2022 2021

Notes [ffzt ~ HK$000 F#ET  HK$'000 FET

Non-current liabilities EREIEE
Deferred income — non-current portion EIEWA —FEmENER 29 76,154 83,147
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE——FRIH 30 235,514 -
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaE-—IJERESHBD 27 116,234 130,330
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERRIEEA 18 12,922 4,716
440,824 218,193
Net assets BEEFE 3,423,767 3,759,098
Capital and reserves BARKEE
Share capital i 3171 889,810 889,810
Reserves B 2,331,257 2,670,428
Equity attributable to owners of the KABEB AEERER
Company 3,221,067 3,560,238
Non-controlling interests JEEER R 32 202,700 198,860
Total equity RREE 3,423,767 3,759,098

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 176 were approved $£84E176E M S MR ER BN 2023E3H24
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and are HHEEE@@EBERZEER > TH THIESH

signed on its behalf by: REE !
LIU Xianfu YAU Hang Tat, Andrew
EN=¢ ] ERiEE
Director Director

EF EF



88

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEDEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &, 2022412831 H It F E

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARRE AES
Non-
Share  Translation Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
K& ERfE EE e EEERN e JekeEE 0 BEAE
HKSO00  HKSUDD  HKSOOD  HKSOD0  HKSUOD  HKSOO0  HKSUOD
FEL FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
iz

At 1 January 2021 7R2021E181H 889,810 (35,926) 105,300 2,435,388 3,394,572 185,217 3,579,789

Exchange differences arising on BEBNEREL LY
tranglation of foreign operations ERELD - 10,084 - - 10,084 3,372 13,456
Profit for the year REEEA - - - 241,334 241,334 28,924 270,258
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2EWREE - 10,084 - 241,334 251,418 32,29 283,714
Dividend recognised as distribution EEDADRZKE - - - (85,752) (85,752) (18,659) (104,405)

Transfer from retained earnings HEERABRELTHE

to statutory reserves - - 4,270 (4,270) - - -
At 31 December 2021 20215128310 889,810 (25,842) 109,570 2,586,700 3,560,238 198,860 3,759,008

Exchange differences arising on BEBMNEREL LY
tranglation of foreign operations BREE - (27,635) - - (27,635) (7,543) (35,178)
(Loss)/profit for the year 2EE (88 /B - - - (115,532) (115,532) 22,368 (93,164)

Total comprehensive (expense)fincome  REERE B%) /
for the year R - (76%) - (1155%)  (143167) 1485  (128342)
Dividend recognised as distribution ERDADRZKE - - - (196,004) (196,004) (10,985) (206,989)

Transfer from retained earnings HRERABREATERE

to statutory reserves - - 4,791 (4,791) - - -
At 31 December 2022 20226128318 889,810 (53,477) 114,361 2,270,373 3,221,067 202,700 3,423,767

Note:In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”) and Articles of Association of the company incorporated in the
PRC now comprising the Group, i.e. the PRC Operational Entity, it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual net profits of the PRC Operational Entity, after
offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When
the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the PRC Operational Entity, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses,
if any, and may be capitalised as capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special
Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered under private limited liability
company by quotas in Macau are required to transfer part of their profits of each
accounting period of not less than 25% to statutory reserves, until the amount
reaches half of the respective share capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & E£2022F 12831 H It FE

2022 2021
HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BRETISM S Al (B518) /&F) (20,210) 337,450
Adjustments for: HEE
Amortisation of deferred income IEIEUT A 2 5 (5,328) (3,105)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HittE\RE & E 2 #iH 3,015 3,015
Depreciation of investment properties KREMEZINE 5,521 4,991
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 28,866 28,881
Depreciation and impairment of property, ME BB RZEZITERBE
plant and equipment 171,863 165,475
Finance costs BB A 21,408 15,225
Interest income FEUA (9,069) (7,790)
(Gain)/loss on disposal/written-off of HE M M RREZ
property, plant and equipment Wew) K18 (1,467) 61
Provision for impairment loss recognised SENEREIWGRIEZ RERX
on trade and bills receivables, net BB RE 17,867 11,343
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss HhfEW a2z mEE %k (&E)
recognised on other receivables, net B EBERRE (6,105) 6,115
Share of profit of an associate EiE—E#E AR 2 BH (169) (805)
Operating profit before working capital EEESEHAZEERN
changes 206,192 560,856
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZ R, G5 775,744 (493,830)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables & % K& ZiE EWERIE Z B/~ (2 10) 279,543 (245,931)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits BNRBE B RAMERRIEZ
and other receivables b () 81,099 (29,342)
Decrease in trade and bills payables EE R EREMRIEZ B (415,255) (24,519)
Increase in other payables and accruals HthEARIBREtE R 21N 50,600 42 656
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities afasEz (RL) /1Em (11,485) 10,687
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to R—REATRIEZ (&) /10
an associate (4,014) 582
Increase in deferred income IRIEUT A Z 3E 0 832 21,697
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  Zi&EF18, (FriA) 2IRE 963,256 (1567,144)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BNEBHER (10,287) (5,754)
Overseas tax paid BEIMRIE (47,335) (47,493)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING YEEBME (FRA) NIREFE
ACTIVITIES 905,634 (210,391)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

RERERER @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &, 2022412831 H IFF E

2022 2021
Notes Hiz# HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$'000 FET

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) EEEBFE (FA) B

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFE 905,634 (210,391)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREIER
Interest received BUWF 2 8,866 8,250
Additions of investment properties REREYE 13 - (13,303)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE 1 23E R R BT

plant and equipment I8 3,367 3,924
Deposit paid for purchase of property, — BEE¥) ¥ S KRB HERN

plant and equipment BffEE (516) (4,302)
Purchases of property, plant EEYE HBRRE

and equipment (163,631) (157,373)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted ZRREBIRITER (G H0)

bank deposits PR (1,260) 3,154
Decrease in short-term bank deposits ~ JREIEIH =188 UL R HB

with original maturity over RITERRILD

three months 16,549 10,884
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING KREEBMANEERE

ACTIVITIES (136,625) (148,766)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MBEEE
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRITTEE 38 1,193,538 1,233,089
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE 38 (1,084,881) (1,142,748)
Repayment of principal portion of the ~— EERE&AEBZ ARSI S

lease liabilities 38 (27,356) (34,073)
Repayment of interest portion of the BEREaGEZHEHBD

lease liabilities 38 (7,939) (8,555)
Repayment of amounts due to BEXIFEREERRIA

non-controlling shareholders 38 (25,807) (1,691)
Interest paid BENFE 38 (11,964) (6,399)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BKREFIEEREEER

shareholders (10,985) (18,653)
Dividends paid BEKRE (196,004) (85,752)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEEEMANRERE

ACTIVITIES (171,398) (64,782)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

f= A
iy =

RERER (B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & £20224F12831H L F E

2022 2021
HK$°000 T %71 HK$'000 F BT

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN He&kERREEEDN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1w, Geib) iBE 597,611 (423,939)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REFERBRNRERE

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR FIREIER 808,430 1,228,134
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE EXEHHEERERIRS

CHANGES ON CASH AND IEEMFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,362) 4,235
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREREFEEAREHNRER

AT THE END OF THE YEAR ERERLIER 1,393,679 808,430
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF R&EEEFERELEBEREEN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: pAR I
Short-term bank deposits FRHRIRTTERR 246,116 57,846
Bank balances and cash RITEFRAIRE 1,147,563 767,133
Cash and cash equivalents in the EEMBRRIRANIREES R

consolidated statement of ZRIFEEB

financial position 1,393,679 824,979
Less: Short-term bank deposits with B RIPE=EA LN

original maturity over three months FIRAERITIERR = (16,549)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RERERERANRER

consolidated statement of cash flows ZRIFEEE 1,393,679 808,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M ERAR M EE

31 DECEMBER 2022 2022128 31H

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The directors of the Company consider its immediate parent is Chinatex
Yieldfull Investments Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Hong Kong, and
ultimate parent is COFCO Corporation, a company established in the PRC
and a state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration
of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

None of these amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group’s
results and financial position for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. The Group has
not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The following new or amendments to HKFRSs have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s

current intention is to apply these changes on the date they become effective.
HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance contracts’
2020 and February 2022

amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosures of Accounting Policies'

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described below,
the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments add subsequent measurement requirements for a sale
and leaseback transaction, where the transfer of the asset satisfies the
requirements in HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be
accounted for as a sale. HKFRS 16 includes requirements on how to account
for a sale and leaseback at the date the transaction takes place. However,
HKFRS 16 had not specified how to measure the transaction when reporting
after that date. The amendments add to the sale and leaseback requirements
in HKFRS 16, thereby supporting the consistent application of the accounting
standard.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKFRS 16 will have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with situations where there
is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained
in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in
the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 may have an impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in future periods should such transaction
would arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause;
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current issued in 2020 (the “2020 Amendments”) clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants issued in 2022 (the “2022 Amendments”)
further clarify the requirements for classification of non-current liabilities with
covenants. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with future covenants, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability even if it does not comply with
those covenants at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered as settlement of a liability. The amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements
as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within twelve months.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2022, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate the application of the amendments
will result in change in the classification of the Group’s liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosures
of Accounting Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies.
The amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements except for the disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An
accounting policy may require items in financial statements to be measured
in a way that involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a case,
an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable information.
In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in HKAS 8 is
retained with additional clarifications. The amendments apply to changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after
the start of that period.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 8 will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption of deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in HKAS 12. Upon the application of the
amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible
and taxable temporary differences associated with (i) the right-of-use assets
and the lease liabilities and (i) the provision for decommissioning, restoration
and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the
cost of the related asset.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 12 will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis at the end of each reporting period.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company.

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued
by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between () the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control.
The Company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (ji)) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred, they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost of investment properties net of expected residual value
over the estimated useful live using straight-line method. The useful life, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
when there is a change in use, as supported by observable evidence, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in properties revaluation reserve. The properties revaluation reserve in
respect of that item will be transferred directly to retained earnings when it is
recognised.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the buildings elements in proportion
to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented

s “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the
entire properties are classified as property plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) are depreciated so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 20 — 50 years or period of the
lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 3 /s — 5 years

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Costs
include any costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management, including cost of testing whether the related assets are
functioning properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items
that are produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced when testing
whether the asset is functioning properly), and the related costs of producing
those items are recognised in the profit or loss. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Leasing
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term of less than 12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would comprise:

(i)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

(iiy any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use asset (continued)

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises its judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
assets apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is held for own use.
As a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments:

(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

(i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees;

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability
by:

(i)  increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for
example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a
rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted
to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for
an amount commensurate with the standalone price for the additional rights-
of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all
other cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being
leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on
the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount. With the exception to which the practical expedient for COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies, if the renegotiation results in a decrease
in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial
or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss.
The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number of tenants.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that was not part
of the original terms and conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as

follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised in

profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 5 — 10 years or period of the
contract term

(i) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(m)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount; however,
the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade
and bills receivables, other receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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EEEL(EE)HRRT 2022FFK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets of the Group, the ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (2)
the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or being more than 90 days past
due;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

° it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over 1 year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset. Interest income on non credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

(iij) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for which

the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders/an associate and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

4. FEGHEER (B
() E=MIR (@
(i) THEEZRERE (&)

FEBREHEEANERFAESR IR ZBEW
MR WA BEREERAREREREE

EREHETREHSABREMBREEEER
WERRE GINEEFACHRBRIEA
RERFE  AMEEBRUWRIANES  ESHA
HBE—FF UREREERR)) ' AEET
WiEEMEE-KERBELRRRR £&H
LEJERBENEFHMBENEREEETR
AT /RS o (E UK [EIRIBISE B m AR A FESD o

EEREEZREENNESWAREREENE
ek A (BNABBREE RS IRE M) stE - JFEE
HEEREENN B WRARGREES -

(iii) ZHEE
FEERFYERELENENRESMERD
B-RBENASENSRERINIUATE
B NFFEENERBERFTER-

REHENAHENERERBEEXRERRE
FRIE ~ MRS RRIE ~ RIFEEIR IR SR —
EABMBARRTER  HRDBDRBERMNEZX
DM At E AR S ERNBmRAME
= o
WEHSBEN R IR RRERBEREFR
BmRAFESE -

(iv) EEFIZEZ

BRMZZR Bt EsHEENTHREAEN
BN AR A RRAE R DT BRAZHE
ERNAE - BRMNXEZEEBETMEENTH
BENTERFHRE WER) EERE G ARE
REWA T REERIFEF R -

(v) #z@TA

RAB TR R TR UFIRRUE R E
BREITRARRECAR



EEELE(EE)HRAT 2022FFHK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, bank balances and cash
comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand deposits) and cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents are short-term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather for investment or other purposes.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash
which are not restricted as to use.

(k) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Governments grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

e investment properties;

° property, plant and equipment;
° right-of-use assets;

° other intangible assets; and

e interest in an associate.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods
or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments

Customers obtain control of the products when the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one performance obligation.
Invoices are usually payable within 60 days.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from the sale of product
provides customers a right of return (a right to exchange another product).
These rights of return do not allow the returned goods to be refund in
cash. The right of return gives rise to variable consideration. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of the
constraint on variable consideration increases the amount of revenue that will
be deferred.

(i) Other revenue

Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

(o) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for goods that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 4(i)(ii) and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time to
be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

(q) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for
items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwiill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

4. EEGFHR (@)
(p) EEMAEIEEE

WE BEREECGEREE IREXRERH
ERHEBERRAMHBENEE) BEEMEN
BEENAEBFER  (FERRFEERAN—E
NoRTEERTXHNBEAERIKRERMN
RIGHIW A EBXCEEMATNF-FIE
HfE AT HEE BN EDRAED -

() FRSHR
EFEMSREERFERBRELERIE

REERETSRED B EBZ BRI ASE
FrS T & B AR ST A1 i 2 16 B (F 138
% RS PR RGAER L EEMNRE
S

BIERBEDANRMBEREENZEERER
MEEEARNRBENZHEEEEZBEN
R EEMES REEURTZEGHHE
RIBHNERDBEERERI EPAERE

ERAFESRERREN R RINE R =
BERBER TS - RIERBNREHREENE
BRERIEEEENEBRMENTS KRR
REPRERNNEE LEBRMHNBRAREKS

=
E°

HRHEEERESHKANEETESNEN
—RREMS > E—EGIMNMER BIREMER
BEEBEHERBI0E REYZE MRAT
BEESERFRIFZBRERIER SRILEREY)
FHELENESREUHE LS REYERFR
BANMELURZHRN®RE HAAREEM
E-EREVERIUMENELRE—E®HE
BRAMFAE MZBERANENEHEERFKRE
R MIHFEZ Y FPTIRIRAVE R DK M
(MAZB@BLE) &> ZRERIRHER]

MBARKRBEADNREEENERRG K

12 1) B Ry 7 BR B9 B Ko IS ) R 4RY 2R A & i G By
ZERBEEEIAIERIN o

113



114

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-
of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as translation
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the translation reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

(s) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4, FETHHE B

(t) Related parties (t) FAEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group (@) fHEBU T AL Bz A a2 A TRFE R
if that person: BIAREE BRI
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () HAEEBEFIRIEEIEGIRE ;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEBEREZEN; H
(i) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the (i) BEAEBRHREARNBEGABDETEEEA
Company’s parent. BWE -
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply: (o) WS I EMEE ZERENER

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

BRAH

() ZEREAEEEBER—%E8 BIZF
NE-MBRARBREWBATAE
TERAE) o

iy —EEEEE—EENBE ARG
ENE (NEEHREABRZHE AT
FEENF MB—ERAZEER
BAF) o

iy MEEEEAERE=ZANEEA
ao

(v) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an vy —BEREARE-—BRZAERKS
associate of the third entity. —ERAZF-EBNHEAT-

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the ) ZERANEENHARNEEBREBN
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group. ERNESEM MV R EF 5

&lo

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (Vi) ZBIEX(a)PTHEB YA TS g
@ Rz o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity (i) R@OAPTHEIEEBREEATZEN
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a ATHEERE (HZERZFAR) TE
parent of the entity). BIEABHKE-

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides (viiy ZEBREREMBERENEMAKE AT

key management personnel services to the Group or the Group’s
parent.

AEERNAEENGARRHIEER
EEABRF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service output of the
asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

As at 31 December 2022, there is no revision of the estimated useful lives and
residual values of the items of property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,307,647,000 (2021: HK$1,336,105,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade and bills receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)

The economic downturn and uncertainties that have arisen as a result of
resurgence of the pandemic and soaring global inflation have made these
estimates more judgemental, which the Group has taken into account in its
determination of applicable ECLs attributable to trade and bills receivables
arising from sales to customers on credit term, including the incorporation of
forward-looking information to supplement historical credit loss rate. Further
information on the impairment assessment on trade and bills receivables is
provided in note 37(b).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade and bills receivables
is approximately HK$928,721,000 (2021: HK$1,270,335,000), net of
allowance for ECL of approximately HK$52,109,000 (2021: HK$36,832,000).
During the year, an impairment loss of approximately HK$17,867,000 (2021:
HK$11,343,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group
regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving and
obsolete merchandise. The Group makes allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete items through management’s estimation of the net realisable value
for such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions, including the consideration of potential
impacts on the subsequent sales orders and demand of its products resulting
from the resurgence of the pandemic, soaring global inflation and uncertainties
in the global economy. When the Group identifies items of inventories which
have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the Group estimates
the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for inventories. If the
market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower than its carrying
amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of inventories of approximately
HK$929,526,000 (2021: HK$1,717,220,000), net of accumulated provision of
approximately HK$180,524,000 (2021: HK$221,278,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
makers, regularly review the operating results and financial information based
on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including Hong Kong
(place of domicile of the Company), the PRC, Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka,
America, Europe and Others, i.e. representing other geographical locations
mainly Bangladesh, Vietnam, Singapore and Macau. All of these geographical
areas are operating segments except “Others” which is an aggregation of

operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segments for the year.

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)
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6. EXEROSEEN

ERBRTEE BIEEZERRE) THRE
ERFEMERFR M EEREE XA R
MHER BEER (RRATFMEM) ~FE- 8
B E - HERES 2N BUNRE Mt E (B
REMMIEE > TERHHMALE - #E - #m
WIBFT) FrBZStE A EAZEENLE M
THMth & B Bia 28 E N -
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2022 N2EF Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others Segmenttotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
9 g Al &H B2+ S| B HftiE P Hi ke
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AT T T AT 7T T T AT A7 T T

Revenue E2E
External sales HIHE 784,537 2,046,010 319,967 330,944 978411 524,590 74,807 985,229 6,053,645 - 6,053,645
Intersegment sales ot pEEEE () 3250200 1,101,808 . = 29775 = . 189721 4820519 (4820519) -
Total segment revenue NEEEELE 4,043,746 3,147,818 319,967 330,044 1,248,246 524,590 74,807 1,174,956 10,874,164 (4,820,519) 6,053,645

Resuts £

Segment prof NERF 49,435 129,228 19,849 21,280 79,436 42,432 4111 64,153 410,524
Interest income FISWA 9,069
Unallocated income AAERA 21,565
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss 7%+ &38R A E % (180,399)
Other unallocated expenses EthAcAELH (259,730)
Finance costs EERES (21,408)
Share of proft of an associate =N P 169

Loss before income tax expense

BRI HATAR

20.210)
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segments for the year. (continued)

6. EXERISEEN (B
UTRT-ERRRFERERERBEERT
W R ARIZ ] IR DR E D 2 E B R B A L
REEFREZ DM o (8

2021 15 Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea S Lanka America Europe Others ~ Segmenttotal ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
&% e = 28 LERRS =M &l EihE HEIAE B &4
HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T -4 FET &1 - T 7T &1 &1 T FAT

Revenue EXE
External sales HIHE 798,421 2,146,338 391,790 396,295 1,077,315 536,395 64,156 1,340,567 6,751,277 - 6,751,277
Intersegrent sles 1ot PEEUE i) 358512 1897481 - - 3908 - - 490 590018 (5950018 -
Total segment revenue NEELBIE 4,346,933 4,043,819 391,790 396,295 1,426,400 536,39 64,156 1,495,507 12,701,295 (5,950,018) 6,751,217

Results -

Segment profit DERH 84,671 214,139 42,201 42,484 82,655 53,448 6,894 140,739 667,031
Interest income HEHA 779
Unallocated income RABUA 4,091
Depreciation, amortisation and impaiment loss 7~ B8 R E B % (173,481)
Other unallocated expenses AftkpEZH (153,561)
Finance costs BERL (15,225)
Share of proft of an associate EfE-HHENT 2R 805
Profit before income tax expense BAERS AR 337,450

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price by reference to the prevailing market
rates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs and other expenses (including non-production related employee benefits
expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.), depreciation and
amortisation of investment properties, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets, interest income, impairment loss and gain/loss on disposal/
written-off of property, plant and equipment, finance costs, share of profit of
an associate, etc. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
No analysis on segment assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented
to the chief operating decision makers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)
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6. EXFRIEEHN (&
Htt 3 EE R
EQEH RS ERNZSHE

Hong Kong  The PRC Taiwan Korea  Srilanka  America Europe Others Consolidated
&% HE ai BE  HEEF eS| Bl HithE &8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
2022 2022F
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EEREREWTIEZ HERE
recognised on trade and (E8) /ERFE
bills receivables, net 746 18,957 306 (383) 391 (438) 3 (1,715) 17,867
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 652 24,260 - - 338 - - 3,616 28,866
2021 20214
Impairment loss (reversed)/ SERERREWHIBEZ AEERE
recognised on trade and (D) /A
bills receivables, net 1,836 4,223 (73) 109 3,010 912 2 1,324 11,343
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EREEEZIHE 970 24,191 - - 9% - - 3,625 28,881
Geographical information h 15} 25 8

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-current

assets (note) at the end of the reporting period:

R|ERE > AEBZIERBEE (D) &t
BUBEZ DU :

At 31 December At 31 December

#¥12831H 128318

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

The PRC =8 1,461,800 1,509,304
Hong Kong 58 15,347 20,456
Sri Lanka BEMFE 135,744 130,317
Others Hqhh@ 5,621 2,520
1,618,512 1,662,597

Note:Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

st o IFRBBEENGIEIELERIAEE
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by products and

6. EXERISEEN (B

EEENY

REBREEDBARBEIDNERSREA

timing of revenue recognition are as follows: 2HWT
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&7  HK$'000 FET
Revenue from contracts with customers EHAMEHREER F1558EE RN
within the scope of HKFRS 15: ERERKA :
Production and sales of dyed fabrics S MIHE BHE R
and yarns 5,150,345 5,917,779
Production and sales of garments BU3E M IHE K 903,300 833,498
6,053,645 6,751,277
Timing of revenue recognition: FERR U A RYBERT -
At a point in time ERBEEES 6,053,645 6,751,277
Transferred over time PEBS e S = -
6,053,645 6,751,277

The following table provides information about trade and bills receivables and
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

THREHAMEERZBRBUERENAREE

RERMEHNEaREER-

At 31 December

At 31 December

128318 *12831H

2022 2021

HK$000 F#&7x  HK$'000 FET

Trade and bills receivables (note 20) SR R REWERIE (115220) 928,721 1,270,335

Contract liabilities (note 26) EHamE Hazoe) 21,216 32,701
Information about major customers FREXERRZEN

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

B E2022F 12831 H &%2021F12831H L&
ERKEBENERL ZWA(GREBE EEE51Y

EHBIE10%
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31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERA
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#E7T  HK$'000 T
Finance costs on: BB
Bank borrowings BITEE 13,469 6,670
Lease liabilities HEaRE 7,939 8,555
21,408 15,225
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FRfEM=H
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$'000 F#&T
Current tax: EFEERIE
Hong Kong 548 3,125 23,534
The PRC = 20,345 28,324
Other jurisdictions Hhaia 14,690 13,202
38,160 65,060
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BEEEBREHRR (BREEH)
Hong Kong 58 311 358
The PRC FREE 12,680 812)
Other jurisdictions Htsiaa 1,266 (558)
14,257 (1,012)
52,417 64,048
Deferred tax (note 18): IRIERRIE (Hf5#718)
Hong Kong 58 1,962 (2,006)
The PRC HE 10,358 8,123
Other jurisdictions Htsiaa 8,217 (2,973)
20,537 3,144
72,954 67,192

Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of one subsidiary of the Company, which is
a qualifying corporation, is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities not entitled to the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%.

RIBEEFBHERMAF ZAG—BAEER
BB A T AYE 2,000,000 T E R Z A
MEA8.25% Mg FHERRBAREL A
16.5% AT EMERHEAFINEMEDSEE
2 BB EERRE16.5%FH
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the tax rate of Sri
Lanka subsidiary was 14% from January to September 2022 and has been

increased to 30% from October 2022 (2021: 14%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.

8. FRMixzih (&)
RIBRE R EMGRE (REMERE) R
EFSREEREG FEMBATZRNES
25%°

R EBEEAR AR RAR 202218 E
OB WEBEWBAS ZMEAR14%  TEB
2022F 108 I AN ZE30% (20214F © 14%) ©

HithslitE 2 RBERNERSBRZEE
Ry 2 MRSt

BRIEEIRIA Z ¥ BRI HIEE18°

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before EEERGEBTEEREMEEWRGERNAER
income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 3 HEFRFF1S ST H AT (B518) BRI HERW
comprehensive income as follows: T
2022 2021
HK$'000 F&;x  HK$'000 FET

(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BRETISIMZ AT (18 /&BH (20,210) 337,450
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits BERE AMERANRERZ

or losses in the jurisdiction concerned ERREGTENRIE (3,141) 63,744
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERTENRNREEE

for tax purpose 48,146 7,576
Tax effect of income not taxable WA BRERENRBEE

for tax purpose (15,380) (3,888)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERERR (BRERE) 14,257 (1,012)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MIBEER RN S & 49,292 233
Tax effect of other deferred tax HARERIBRIGHEDNRFE &

not recognised - 2,145
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERBAERWERNRIEER

not recognised (130) (2,185)
Increase in opening deferred tax BRAME EABEREL)

balances resulting from an increase IEIEFR IB AL BRIE N

in applicable tax rate 3,470 -
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously ERBERWERNEMIELERIE

not recognised (6,770) (30)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax MIBINHT B A B FEIIRIEHEY

on overseas subsidiaries IR JE A TE 2 (9,500) 861
Income tax on concessionary rate BEBESMEFTENMER (7,291) (237)
Others Hh 1 (19)
Income tax expense Fri8f = 72,954 67,192
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9. OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND 9. Hhg A~ Hthiim REEURE

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE (518 BF
(@) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue is as follows: (@ AEBMEMBAZDAT !
2022 2021

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 T BT

Amortisation of deferred income (note i) IRIEUR A Z 8 (B L) 5,328 3,105
Compensation income HEWA 21,290 24,832
Government grants (note i) BT w8k (f &) 10,304 7,077
Interest income FE WA 9,069 7,790
Net rental income from investment properties & B2 2 AW ARE (#15£40)

(note 40) 14,299 13,574
Others HAth 12,711 30,105
73,001 86,483

(b) An analysis of the Group’s other gains and losses is as follows: () FEBRMEMB@EBEZ2HUT
2022 2021

HK$’000 F#5T HK$'000 T &7z

Net exchange (losses)/gains ER (B8 /W FE (6,223) 3,113
Gain/(loss) on disposal/written-off of property, HE MY KIS R REZ

plant and equipment Wi, (B518) 1,467 61)
Provision for impairment loss recognised on &% K& ZIEFEINGRIE 2

trade and bills receivables, net ER KB BT R E (17,867) (11,343)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss HhEUEIE 2 B EER L

recognised on other receivables, net R (B MR E 6,105 (6,115)
Others Hih 18,199 -

1,681 (14,406)
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9. OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

9. HUA- Hﬂﬂﬂ&%ﬁ&&??ﬁu&%
FE (B1R) B (@

(©) An analysis of the Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is as follows: ) ZTEEREE BB BFZ2W0T :
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 &
(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at ZSFE (B518) /BFEH0HE :
after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets HMh\mp s E 28 (at16) 7
(note 16)’ 3,015 3,015
Auditors’ remuneration T2 B EM 2 i B
— SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited — (5K (FH) FEHENEHA
(2021:BDO Limited) BIRAT (20214 : EEBIUEER
BN EHBRAS) 2,495 2,961
— Other auditors —H iz EEm 34 51
Cost of sales (note i) HE A (75Ei) 5,475,828 5,871,738
Depreciation of investment properties KREWEZINE (W13)
(note 13) 5,521 4,991
Depreciation and impairment of property, W MBRBEZITERRE #fat14)
plant and equipment (nhote 14) 171,863 165,475
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) {FREEEZIFTE (W5£15) 28,866 28,881
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMXK (BIRESEMNE) BWat10)
emoluments) (note 10) 975,745 982,519
Research and development costs RS A AR 59,115 54,219
'Included in administrative expenses BEETHERR

Notes:

Mtat -

U]

(i)

Amortisation of deferred income mainly represents i) grants received from the PRC
local government authority as subsidies to the Group for acquiring property, plant
and equipment for business development and energy saving scheme implemented
by the PRC local government and ii) rental income received in advance for the
leasing of three investment properties.

Cost of sales includes HK$1,417,055,000 (2021: HK$1,672,851,000) of staff
costs, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment, depreciation
of right-of-use assets, subcontracting fee, reversal of write-down of inventories
and other manufacturing overheads. Staff costs, depreciation and impairment of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation of right-of-use assets are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these types of
expenses.

(i)

PEFE WS A 2 55 = 2451 UEUSR B Fh S U
ﬁ;l%*%?x%zl»(%@)ﬂf”ﬁﬁ%)\%% WREREZ
B ZEHMDARNEBERKDEEME
F“%IH‘JE’JEﬁﬁEDJri' | i) & = B EY =M A
BIFHEZURA o

M E R A BE1,417,055,00058 70 (20214
1,672,851 00058 7T) Z BT A Y% #28 K
REMERBE - FREEERE - NMIERD
CIEEFEEMEEEMNEER - ETME Y
¥ MR MRRBINERREUNRERESER
ENEEEE LM ESEMY 2 ARERE
mo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

10.

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants included grants of
HK$6,489,000 (2021: HK$7,077,000) received from the PRC local government
authority as subsidies to the Group for incentive of foreign trade and steady growth
of business and there were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group applied for government support
programs introduced in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Government
grants of HK$3,759,000 was received from the Hong Kong Government relating
to supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees and recognised in profit or
loss. The Group elected to present this government grant separately, rather than
reducing the related expense. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance
on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed
levels for a specified period of time. The Group did not have any unfulfilled
obligations relating to this program. No such government grants were obtained for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation)
are as follows:

9.

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

Hg A~ Hfthim REGHR UK 2
FE (B1R) B (&

btat (&

(i)

HE2022F12831HIEEE BF#MERE
WEREFE S BT HERRIEARNER
BN R EFSIBE 1 & 2~ #8456,489,00078 7T

(20214 : 7,077,000 70) » M 5 BURF  BE Y
ERIERF -

HZE2022F12B31HIEFE  ZEBRFEARE
HERFEREEMs A ZBEXFtE o5t
TERAEEYWMEEZ TEMNEEBHNTZ
BT #853,759,00078 703 FR I8 5 R FE S0 o A 2
ERIEEB 25 Z AT mAL > mIEI0BAR
T o REBMBAEBHEANREGIEMRS B
RIS EHMBIARATRE T ABE LD EMRETR
TERKF e REBMZFE M ETABE KRBT
ZEE-HE2021FE12831HIELFE > I EEE
B

10. ESREEMEEN
(a) EFEME

RIBEE B A BFREG (55622F) 383K /AT (1
BESMmER) [P (556226%) (GRA) #KE
WEFWEZWT :

Non-executive
Executive directors directors Independent non-executive directors
HiTES FRTES B EYTES
YAU WONG
LIV SUN  ZHAO HangTat, ZHANG YEN TAO | NG Kwok YING  Wiliam  Kwong
2022 20225 Xianfu Fuiji Yao Andrew  Zheng| Gordon Yongming Tung Wei LAM Chi Total
18R HEL BiE  lEE RE| BE® kK| EER B #HER  ERZ fE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 | HKS000 HK$'000| HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000
Fér FEr TFEr TFEx  FEn| TEr TFEx| FEr  FET  TEr AT TEn
(note i) (note iii) (note ii)
(i) (Watii) (Hiztii)
Fees e - - - - - 200 - 250 200 200 200 1,050
Other emoluments Hitie
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER - 2,708 1,547 2,567 - - - - - - - 6,822
Discretionary bonuses* Kiggs - - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefits scheme RIEFIT IR
contribution - 18 8 165 - - - - - - - 191
- 2,726 1,555 2,732 - 200 - 250 200 200 200 8,063
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation)

are as follows: (continued)

10. EXREEMEEH (B

(a) EFM= (&

MEFMENT : (@

RIBEE R A BFREG (55622%) F383MF AT (K
BEFMNmER) RO (55622GE) (RA) KE

Non-executive
Executive directors directors Independent non-executive directors
wirEz FRTEZ BUFnTES
YAU
TAO HangTat, ZHANG YEN NG Kwok Wiliam ~ WONG
2021 20214 ZHAOYao  SUNFuji  Yongming  Andrew Zheng | Gordon  LIU Xianfu Tung  YING Wei LAM  Kwong Chi Total
BE  BREL  Bx¥E BiEE RE| EEH 2BR| GEE ’E  HER  IRT o
HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000| HKSO00 HKS000| HK$000 HKSO00 HKSO00  HK$O00  HK$ 000
Fér  FEr  FEr  FEn  FEr| TEr  FEr| FEr FEr FEr FEr FTEn
(note i) (note i) (note )
(i) (W) (i)
Fees e - - - - - 200 - 250 200 200 101 951
Other emoluments Hitie
Salaries and other benefits FEREMER 3,304 451 - 2567 - - - - - - - 632
Discretionary bonuses* HiERe 1,525 208 - 1,100 - - - - - - - 2,833
Retirement benefits scheme BRUERI B
contribution 18 3 - 165 - - - - - - - 186
4,847 662 - 3,832 - 200 - 250 200 200 101 10,292

* The basis of the discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group.

Notes:

(i) Mr. LIU, Xianfu, was re-designated from a non-executive director as an executive (i)
director and appointed as the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) on 1

April 2022.

(i)  Mr. TAO, Yongming, was re-designated from an executive director as a non- (i)

executive director on 1 April 2022.

(i)  SUN Fuji is appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effective (iif)

from 1 November 2021.

During the years 2022 and 2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any director as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, three directors (2021: three

directors) waived their whole-year emoluments.

CRBERENEREENRSERERNES

Wzt -

B BRAEN2022F 481 H-EHIFFNITESS

ERPTES TEZEREFE(EFE)E

r%'_o

RIFMITESE-

ﬁo

BYLEEh SRR A 1 o

i) EFRERSEEME-

P oK 88 S £ 2022F A1 HEER AT E R BT

FRLSEB2021F 11 B1HRREZERITHR

R2022F K201 5 AEF L EEEANEES
B <2 > LUAE 25 00 B8 2 &2 B 2 7 I0 A 2 £ [ BF

B E2022F12H31HIEFE > 311 (20214 : 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees included two (2021: two) directors, whose
emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of the remaining three
(2021: three) employees are as follows:

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

10. EEREEMEEH (B

(b) EEM=

EeilemshEEBE2M (20214 & 211)
B HN 5B E N LM 5 (a) o 8F T3
(20214 : 3M) EEMEWT :

2022 2021
HK$’000 F3# 7T HK$' 000 F 7T

Salaries and other benefits e REMER] 7,421 6,421
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKBH T B FR 118 163
7,539 6,584

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REZBNE T FLUTER

2022 2021

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 775 %£2,500,0007 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T 23,500,000/ 7T

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were
within the following bands:

(c) SREEEMNE

ENHEMEREEEREZMEN FLUTE
Al

2022 2021

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7 75 %E3,000,0007 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7 75 %5,000,0007 7T

129
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

11. DIVIDENDS 11. IR2
2022 2021
HK$000 F#&;r  HK$'000 F:E7T
Dividend recognised as distribution EEEEHEIBADRZREE
during the year:
2021 final dividend of HK16.00 cents 2021F R HA G B &A% 16.007 11
(2020: HK7.00 cents) per share (20204 : &/&7.0071) 196,004 85,752

No final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 has been
recommended by the Board, nor has any dividend proposed since the end of
the reporting period.

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

EFQUEREZFIKEEHE2022F128310 1LF
EZRPKRE  BREHRETEEZZEAR
/%\o

12. B (518 BT

AABEAEANEEEREANREE (B8 &
FMTHARE TS8R E

2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 F&7T
(Loss)/earnings (&8 B
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to Mt EESREANREE (518 &
owners of the Company for the purpose TRz A B HE ANELEEE
of computation of basic and diluted (loss)/ (8 &BF
earnings per share (115,532) 241,334
2022 2021
Number of shares BneE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of computation of basic
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

FrRZz & @RINETFEE

M EEREAREE (518 &F

1,225,026,960 1,225,026,960

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The computation of basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 is based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$115,532,000 (2021: profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$241,334,000) and the weighted average of 1,225,026,960 ordinary shares
(2021: 1,225,026,960 ordinary shares) during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

(a) SREZX (B8 &BF

HZE2022F12H31REFEE2SRER (5
B) /BN OEEREAABDEE AELES
$8115,532,0008 75 (202145 | XA B ¥
B AEGEF241,334,000870) RNETE
B E1,225,026,960 L& (20214
1,225,026,9608% & 3@ M%) st& o

(b) SEREHE (B8 &R

B E2022F 12831 H &%2021FE12831HLEE
E AR WEERTZABTHEZE T
BRR o
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. KEME

HK$'000 F&7T
Cost s
At 1 January 2021 52202141818 96,944
Additions =N 13,303
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEEYE AR A 604
Currency realignment SN IR ZRR 2,309
At 31 December 2021 2021F12H31H 113,160
Currency realignment SMNEEIME EER (7,438)
At 31 December 2022 2022F12H31H 105,722
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2021 R2021FE1B1H 24,420
Currency realignment SN IR E ZER 554
Provided for the year BEERE 4,991
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 29,965
Currency realignment NI Z R (1,989)
Provided for the year BEERE 5,521
At 31 December 2022 1202212 H31H 33,497
Carrying values EREE
At 31 December 2022 1202212 H31H 72,225
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 83,195

The Group’s investment properties consisted of leased properties and leased AHEEMNBEEYEQIZHEYERBER
pier. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December B8 AREFEBEYEN2022F12831HHA
2022 was HK$269,517,000 (31 December 2021: HK$297,025,000). The F{E{E%269,517,000/8 7T (2021F12431
fair value of leased properties was HK$245,000,000 (31 December 2021: H : 297,025,000 %) - A EYEN A FB
HK$269,139,000) and the fair value of leased pier was HK$24,517,000 (31 87%245,000,000/%8 75 (20214128318 :
December 2021: HK$27,886,000) which have been arrived at based on a 269,139,000 7t) A EBEN A FEES
valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent property valuer.  24,517,00078 7% (2021812831H : 27,886,000
o) o TYRBE Y EGERKAITIERR A
[RABIETHEESESEH

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison fHE¥)¥RHEHIZEZBEES R RIGE R
method and term and reversion analysis of investment approach. FMEIF DI EEE
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Direct comparison method is based on the principle of substitution, where
comparison is made based on prices realised on actual sales and/or asking
prices of comparable properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale,
nature, character and location are analysed and carefully weighed against all
the respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in order to
arrive at a fair comparison of market value.

Term and reversion analysis of investment approach estimates the capital value
of a property by capitalised rental income on a fully leased basis having regard
to the current passing rental income from existing tenancy and the potential
reversionary rental income at market level.

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement Cost
approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the improvements less
allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation. The key input of Depreciated Replacement Cost approach is the
building construction cost per square metre. A significant increase/decrease in
building construction cost per metre used would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the leased pier.

The valuation of leased properties takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market
price. The key input of direct comparison method is the unit market price. A
significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the leased properties.

Significant unobservable inputs were used in the valuation of investment
properties. The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. The fair value measurement is based on the
above properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of 20 to 50 years or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

13. REME (B

ERLEBUEUEARAAEE MR
ERHEBRERR W HEBMEZR
BFH - /N REMEE - RREKRMEBEZ
BB E D BRI E AR BRETD
i (FHRE & LIERAFHELR-

REMBMESEDMEDEE BRIRABEAN
EHESWANDIZKFERBEEERESUA
WERL Z2REEEERSHEHSBRABERC
hst—EYENERBEE

HEBENGENRTEEENLEZET &
FAEDRBLMHIRE BRB T EFL G
MEERMEEEENRAREBEERERAER
FRERBEANREREBIESE - NEEEN
FENFTEBABBEAS T RBNBRERE -
BYHARNBERAKE EF TR EHRE
ElEZ ATEERELA TEe

HEMEGLER ST RREMEZERE S
BEME-RIT-ER 2B BE - BRFED K
HMRARER  UEHEMTHER BRIEREZ

2WMABBEREATIBER HHEERKIE
A THRRBERHEEMEZ ATFEBEREL
7t/ Fiko

EXRTHERGASHEFAENDARKRENEZ
HE-REVMEZATEERTBHMBREE
A1 AT EES B R ENRATEE
BRIETZEIMEEELATEEAE - NBE
FERBZAERMREZS QAT EEFE
DEUEEMEZRSREERERKE K
SR BRABILEER -

L EYE U BREIZ20E50F N HEEFH
UUABIEE R TE) E-

AEBRMEREMEDFIFRIVESNE T
=0
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31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

14. ME B KRk HE

Leasehold  Furniture,
Freehold land and fixturesand  Plant and Motor Construction
land  buildings equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
XAKE HEM HFRE
ML LAREY it BERKS BE  HEIE i
HK$ 000 HK$000  HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost S
At 1 January 2021 202151 81H 2,333 1,021,565 910,542 2,241,662 22,526 94489 4293117
Currency realignment SMNEHE R 14 2,113 5,814 3,481 113 1,382 12917
Additions 110 - 495 11,956 81,316 1,506 62,100 157,373
Transfer from construction in progress HEETRIE 103 - 105,417 26,713 - (132.239) -
Transfer to investment properties REEREYE - (1,357) - - - - (1,357)
Disposals/written-off HE /M - (579) (65915)  (125,222) (2,786) - (184,49
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 2450 1,022,243 977,814 2,227,950 21,359 25,738 4,277,554
Currency realignment IMEREER - (4,584) (19,367) (5,709) (737) (254) (30,651)
Additions 12m - - 22,798 86,276 - 54,557 163,631
Transfer from construction in progress HERTRIR - 25,080 39,575 3,008 - (67,759) -
Disposals/written-off HE /Mt - (37) (7,459) (39,786) (1,936) - (49,212)
At 31 December 2022 1#2022612A318 2450 1,042,702 1013367 2,271,829 18,686 12288 4,361,322
Depreciation and impairment FERAE
At 1 January 2021 1202151816 - 581,601 704,795 1,646,961 18,266 - 2,951,623
Currency realignment IMEREER - 1,028 2,405 2,105 77 - 5,615
Provided for the year REERME - 38,425 31,733 93,840 1477 - 165,475
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /MsER s - (515) (33,637)  (143,701) (2,658) - (180,5M1)
Transfer to investment properties ARERENZE - (753) - - - - (759)
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 - 619,786 705,296 1,599,205 17,162 - 2,941,449
Currency realignment SMERBER - (2,645) (7,884) (1618) (178) - (12,325)
Provided for the year BEERME - 38,353 39,348 93,038 1,124 - 171863
Fliminated on disposals/written-off HE /MR - (22) (6,810) (38,604) (1,876) - (47,312)
At 31 December 2022 12020128318 - 655,472 729950 1,652,021 16,232 - 3,053,675
Carrying values REfE
At 31 December 2022 12020128318 2,450 387,230 283,417 619,808 2,454 12,288 1,307,647
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 2,450 402,457 272,518 628,745 4197 25,738 1,336,105

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, after

taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis.

EHE B RRBEEEZAERSARS
Z I RIREBEBRUBEGERE-
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FRAEEEE

Land and
buildings Equipment Machinery Total
TR EEY) =1 123 “wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET FHET
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 216,922 410 66 217,398
Currency realignment NI E EER 347 - 5 352
Additions B0 3,265 - 1,536 4,801
Depreciation e (28,556) (182) (143) (28,881)

Effect of modification BETHERM &

to lease terms 3,191 - - 3,191
At 31 December 2021 12021F12H31H 195,169 228 1,464 196,861
Currency realignment SNES IR 2B (1,136) - - (1,136)
Additions & 10 27,675 - - 27,675
Depreciation e (28,529) (182) (155) (28,866)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12831H 193,179 46 1,309 194,534

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying
assets is as follows:

RIEMEERR B D2 EAREEREFED

FranT

At 31 December

At 31 December

12A831H 128318
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&;xr  HK$'000 75T
Ownership interests in leasehold land and RHEELHMRERY B #EER
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with BITERASERGFE THERS !
remaining lease term of:
- 30 years or more - 30F U £ 75,813 79,631
— between 10 and 30 years - 10 K30F 2~ [E 9,094 9,440
Other properties leased for own use, HEEERZZH MY
carried at depreciated cost BITER A E 108,272 106,098
Plant, machinery and equipment, BB~ 123 K5kt I E R AT E
carried at depreciated cost 1,355 1,692
194,534 196,861




16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

16. HthiBF B &

Software
]
HK$’000 F 7o
Cost R
At 1 January 2021 202191 81H 31,267
Additions &0 -
At 31 December 2021 12021FE12831H 31,267
Additions &0 -
At 31 December 2022 2022128 31H 31,267
Amortisation ey
At 1 January 2021 R2021FE1B1H 22,222
Provided for the year BEEREE 3,015
At 31 December 2021 12021FE12831H 25,237
Provided for the year BFEEREE 3,015
At 31 December 2022 2022128 31H 28,252
Carrying values EREE
At 31 December 2022 12022812 H31H 3,015
At 31 December 2021 12021FE12831H 6,030
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. R—RBE AR 2 s

At 31 December At 31 December
128318 »12831H
2022 2021

HK$000 F#&7T  HK$'000 FET

Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMRE U AFE 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profits FEL U BB R A 7,563 7,394
23,767 23,598

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 are as follows:

AEFBENTHR2022F12831H K&20214E12
B31EZEBUWT

Percentage of

Form of ownership
business Place of Place of operation and interests/voting
Name structure incorporation principal activities rights/profit share
FriGBE A R
rREE
18 EBRBAN  GEMAIIFRE EEREMREEER BB
REMEKBERAE Corporation The PRC Construction and managing 30%
of sewage treatment plant
in the PRC
=] s PR E R e IS5 K BR IR R

The primary business of ERFEMBEKIEBRAF is engaged in construction
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong
Province.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of an associate that is not individually
material:

REMBAKFZAERASDNEZXZDRNNERS
REmERAEESKEER -

FHBERT DU AR GEEHBERES
fRo
BRI FBEEZME AT Z M BB R

2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$'000 TE

The Group’s share of profit from AEEBLFERLSES X 2 BT

continuing operations 169 805
The Group’s share of other AEFELHEMEEREG

comprehensive income - _
The Group’s share of total AEFEELEEmWELLE

comprehensive income 169 805




EEEE (@) HRes  2022##5% 137

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as
follows:

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

18. IEFEFRIA

AEERARSHABRBERSABESNE
BREREGE, EE REEZHNT !

Accelerated

Right-of-use Lease tax Tax

assets liabilities depreciation losses Others Total
EREEE HESE RARENE MIEEE Hith wE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FET FET FEr

(note)

(zt)
At 1 January 2021 20211811 30,984 (42,290) 16,721 (857) (68,824) (64,266)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss ~ FEZERA (T A) /0B (4,994) 4,369 (1,685) 120 5,334 3,144
Currency realignment SNEIAEERR - - 88 - (164) (76)
At 31 December 2021 12021128311 25,990 (37,921) 15,124 (737) (63,654) (61,198)
Charged to profit or loss 8 ER A0 PR 1,421 1,898 15,767 170 1,281 20,537
Currency realignment SNEHAEERR 19 9 116 - 409 553
At 31 December 2022 12022F12831H 27,430 (36,014) 31,007 (567) (61,964) (40,108)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on
inventories, provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment, provision for
ECL on trade and bills receivables, and other receivables, write-down of inventories,
unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries and
deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on two PRC/overseas
subsidiaries.

Mt BRRBIERFEENREREN WE- K
BRRENABERE  EERTREERIE
MR EMEWRIENTRRAEERRERE 7
BB WE AR Z e kR FHEHERR
SIRWTmATEERNIELERESE » LURHW
BB 78 M B A BV UL O TR AR P EE 4
BIEIEIR IR &R
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$221 million (31 December 2021: HK$25 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$3 million (31 December 2021: HK$4 million) of such losses,
which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries as
it is considered by the management that future taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$218 million (31 December 2021:
HK$21 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Al
the unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2022, the Group had other deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$24 million (31 December 2021: HK$51 million)
mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between
subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance for ECL on trade and
bills receivables, and other receivables, and inventories. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it
is not certain that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in the
calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies established
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and holds at least 25%
of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced rate of 5% will be applied.
Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained profits of the wholly-
owned PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$329,687,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$519,677,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in respect
of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits after 1 January
2008 of a partially-owned PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$29,661,000 (31
December 2021: HK$29,110,000).

18. IEIEIRIA (18)

2022812831 H » A& E 0 BEEIHE KK
BRI RERRNIEREELNA221,000,000%8 7T
(2021124318 : 25,000,000 75) © MLt
TH 518 493,000,000 7t (20215128318
4,000,000/ 7T) BT A —BIELERIBEE
AR ABETHBABREENKRIBEERE
KEBEEBZEIDARKNERRBAE O ER
LR IE RS 18 « 87 T IR I8R5 18 4218,000,00078
70 (20218128318 : 21,000,000 70) F kAL
AR RN BAKEMARBERRDAIEIERIBE
EoFARKHEANRIERE Y BRI EE -

b > BA20224F 128310 » " E B E th A 038
B F849/424,000,00058 75 (2021F 12831
H :51,000,00087m) » FEBZHWEB AR ZHE
BWRERERBENREBNE FENRER
B EERERREWEIEU R HMEWRIE
HIEHEEEERUNRGEER B EARERTE
SRR B A 1 BT VEHE 84 It BT 4005 B B A= 2B 0 Bk
BRI EREEARIERIEEE

RIECZERERE H2008FE1B1HEE  jArR
B AL I A B M BN G E &R E 120088
ERUEBEEENRAEBEIRKRE BEMNI0%
BINFFER - NESEMALEREETARR
ARV NERNREE  BEAERRE
5% o F K 7 2 B o] LAY 6 8 By = BE ¥ [B] 2 B
B MEREZEBERIENR BB RAZREE
WIEAMEETENBRAARERMN Y
BF Z ¥8329,687,00078 7T (20214128311
519,677,000 7T) 4R & M TR R A E H 4R IE
TRIEHEE

R2022F 128318 AEEEM—EIEEZEZ
B B /B A B 20081 B1H B 2 A D IRE A
29,661,0007 7t (2021412831H : 29,110,000
B7T) 2 AN HEHEIEERIEEE
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31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 18. IRFEMIE (&)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial FARESM BRI EMNZY M= &ETIERERE
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The BEREGEEEM - LU TEM2HRMm = WIEIE
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes: RIBAEER DT -

At 31 December

At 31 December

128318 128318

2022 2021

HK$000 T#5;c  HK$'000 T&7T
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE E (53,030) (65,914)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBE A 12,922 4,716
(40,108) (61,198)

19. INVENTORIES 190. &

At 31 December At 31 December

#¥12831H R128318

2022 2021

HK$'000 3%  HK$'000 F&T

Spare parts B 33,417 28,039
Raw materials il 270,560 526,525
Work-in-progress FEE 313,308 580,700
Finished goods AL 312,241 581,956
929,526 1,717,220

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. EXEREHEBURIA

At 31 December

At 31 December

#¥12831H R128318

2022 2021

HK$'000 T#;x  HK$'000 F&T

Trade receivables EEEWFIE 797,805 1,037,003
Bills receivables ERREWREIE 183,025 270,164
Less: allowance for ECL B FEREEREEE (52,109) (36,832)
928,721 1,270,335
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its trade
customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables,
based on the invoice dates, which approximates the respective revenue
recognition dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

20. EXRRREUTRIE (8)

AEBMREN FOOREOXEHMFHERE
FoaXRBRRNEREEON @EHK
ABEED B HAAE) RS B BRE AT T -

At 31 December At 31 December

¥12831H 128318

2022 2021

HK$000 F#;r  HK$'000 FE1T

Within 1 month 1MEB R 400,699 753,219
1 to 2 months 122EH 274,643 331,739
2 to 3 months 2E3MEH 136,582 128,921
Over 3 months 3EB L E 168,906 93,288
980,830 1,307,167
Less: allowance for ECL B TERREEEERE (52,109) (36,832)
928,721 1,270,335

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made to
customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade and bills receivables.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Group
has assessed bills receivables whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group considers that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of bills receivables since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. The Group
recognised impairment loss on trade and bills receivables based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4(i)ii).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivables are set out in note 37(b).

AEERBWNEMMEZERA EFEZEER
FPREEEEAAEHEERE-FEHER
SR TEESBRRENER -TEREERETE
HAF DU ST o

AEENENE X RZRBERERFAEMIE
e

BRE R BUCRIBEREF B o

FERBRSENFRABRMEEBENTETE
EEBURIARB B - & X BUGRIEN TR
FEBREZEEHFANBREENERKRERE
BANERM BRI DB EFHERETER
WARBR R EBHEFANFTERR BHA
P ETENERICKIRERHNIRA RIAHY
RIBHANFEETRAEZ AEECHERRE
BUWHBEZ EEREEVIRERURESES
10 - AL BRI - BIREUGRK
HZEERERITEBRERIM MAEBERE2
BRRHEEHEEEAERE FEBRE
By EEAG) (NPT &SR B St BRI E E R RIBIE
WRRIERYRIERR ©

ERAEEEERRRREBYIRRRER
BEWRENEEREBRNE-PFBEHNME
37(b)°
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable accepted
by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$54,550,000 (2021: HK$77,231,000). The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity of within one year (2021: one to six months) from the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the relevant banks in the PRC default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

20. EXRFREUTRIA (&)
ERRIERINCERSHEE

R2022F 12831 AEBREE THER
BEEZESTEMNETEMANE T EHERSIE
(TR IFBERNERE)) - UESREESHA
54,550,000 70 (20214 : 77,231,000 7T) Y
RS ZEHEEME EENRIE c RIRE AL
BIFEDRZEWNEARAS1ER (20214  1E6
BA) - REFEZEE  HAMTENIRTE
Ao RRIEERERFAEASKEREBRE
(TFE2H)) cKAFESRRA AEAESE
BERKRIEBIZHENE RIS R KL R
Bt BECHERR IR Z A AREXE
ARIEBNEPIEEE AEFBRFES HKILE
BAZHERRABLOZ SR IERRZEA KRR
REREMBEBRNEABLAENRERAE A&
NBEIEEIRA AEEZHESBRKIIRRE
BHNAFEBETAEK

21. AR RE R H M EWTRIR

RECEIVABLES
At 31 December At 31 December
®12A831H 128318
2022 2021
HK$’000 F#E57x  HK$'000 FET
Value-add tax recoverable EdE R 15,524 69,167
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1% 5 ~ Fa 1 7018 K ELfth FE U sk 18 99,428 132,796
Less: allowance for ECL B ARG EREIERG = (6,115)
114,952 195,848
Opening provision for impairment of FHE A FEWERIE 2 R E B
other receivables 6,115 -
(Reversed)/recognised during the year FR (O FER (6,105) 6,115
Currency realignment ANHEIA BT R ER (10) -
Closing provision for impairment of FAREMBWRRIE Y HEREE
other receivables - 6,115

The Group has assessed deposits and other receivables whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
considers that there is no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12-month
ECL. As at 31 December 2022, deposits and other receivables with gross
amount of HK$18,453,000 (2021: HK$35,665,000) are without significant
increase in credit risk on which 12-month ECL of nil (2021: HK$6,115,000)

were recognised.

AEBEFTEREANEMERRIEZEER
S EREIURETEEL N AEEDAS
BEEREUER  Z2ERBE2EERRIE
BEEMN MAEEREI2EBEREERS
BETIR R B - R2022F12831H » 4258 A
18,453,000/ 75 ( 20214F © 35,665,000 7T) Z
e K B FE R IB Y S & R B a8 BE 2 18 0
BERR12EBAHEEREAZ (20214 ¢
6,115,000%7T) ©

2022E % 141
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22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2022, restricted bank deposits of HK$5,457,000 (31
December 2021: HK$4,197,000) mainly represented guaranteed deposits
placed in the banks in the PRC and Sri Lanka as securities for the bills
payables and bank overdraft.

23. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances, for the purpose of meeting the
Group’s short term cash commitment, carry market interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 8.50% (31 December 2021: 0.001% to 4.89%) per annum.

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

22, ZRHIRITER

20228128310 » Z [R&IIR1TERN5,457,000
T (20214128318 : 4,197,000 7T) = Ei5
ERRTEETEEFIRTEAZBEENTRIE
B RITE IR B RER

23. FEHARITERRIRTTEBR KRR E

HWEITAEEZEBHBESAEMS  EEAET
FRBERITAEER L3N F0.01%E8.50% (2021
F12831H : 0.001%F4.89%) ~ HIBEF=F st
Bo

24, BEREHEEMRIA

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H R12831H

2022 2021

HK$’000 F#x  HK$'000 F&7T

Trade payables EEENRIE 386,071 727,898
Bills payables EIRENRIE 105,228 228,552
491,299 956,450

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on the
invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

EEMNZBEERMRERERQRRERSHZR
IRECDATIOE ¢

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 128318

2022 2021

HK$’000 T # T HK$'000 T

Within 1 month KEIEEA 260,063 608,512
1 to 2 months 1ZE2{E A 146,126 226,591
2 to 3 months 2ZE3EH 39,177 44,258
Over 3 months 3EB MU E 45,933 77,089
491,299 956,450

All the bills payables of the Group were not yet due at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2022, bills payables of HK$19,200,000 (31 December

2021: HK$13,038,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits
of HK$3,840,000 (31 December 2021: HK$2,608,000).

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120 days.

RE|EHE 2EBZAARBRMNRIESLR
ZIHR -

2022912831 H » ZHRETFIE19,200,000
7T (20214128318 © 13,038,000 7T) T4 H
AEE T ZR$IRTTERS,840,0008 75 (2021
F12H831H : 2,608,000 7T) 1EAHLHH

BEMNEEBRNFI0KEI20K
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. BT RIER Bt ER

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H »12831H

2022 2021

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 T T

Other payables HhE g 131,289 145,158
Accruals FEsTE 243,551 177,826
374,840 322,984

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

26. BB E

FEEBHERUTWAERGNER

At 31 December

At 31 December

128318 »128331H
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 FET
Contract liabilities = I=N 21,216 32,701
Movements in contract liabilities SHNaBNES
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#;r  HK$'000 FET
At 1 January »1B1H 32,701 22,014
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ EFERNEREV T A SN EENWA
recognising revenue during the year that MERENEERLD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (32,131) (22,116)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AW EZEFRNENREMERN
advanced consideration received from BHBEEMN
customers 21,216 32,701
Currency realignment NI A ER (570) 102
At 31 December (note 6) ®128318 (#tat6) 21,216 32,701
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from which it
operates. The Group leases various factories, staff quarters, offices premises,
warehouse and machinery and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods from 2 to 50 years for land and buildings and 2 years for
machinery. All rental contracts comprise only fixed payments over the lease
terms.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:
e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing

conditions since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk of lessee; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

27. HE&E
MEEBZME (FAEEA)

AEBNHEEEZRAMEHEEZEY X K
EEHEXHAIR - BEIES MAZEWE B
B Fe e 23 Fe 52t - THE & 49— AR I [E & FF HA2
E50F (ML M RBEYMES) K2F (BLikasm
B -FIAEHESNESSNAERER
RS e

BN E2EERIFEEMEMED - AEHR
BHERIFAEMREMRED 2 ENEBERS R’
BNZNEDEERERIFEEHEME D

HEMLRENEEETERS BESZED
BRI AR - HEHE T G IIE A 25 78
EEETSRFEERZIER-

HEMARNDERAEERE ZHMEREE - HEE
HPEEZANX RERZEASREBWL) -8
fERAME A Z 18 BEMF X BIMER ABE AR
BLUEERBREBELUER BRREGSE
ANRGHREAREEBEREZEEMRZE
TR A Z R

MEEREEMANE AL

o  ERIBEBR NMEAERABANLHEREZ
BZTRMEFAER WIFHBEURER
BESSE=AMELURRERT 2 &) ;

s FREEMZE BAMABAZEERES
BERRAZX, K

s HHEMFHRFERE MEH EHx- 8%
&
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31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

27. HE&E @

Land and
Lease liabilities HeEaE buildings Equipment Machinery Total
TR BEY g 123 WA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2021 R2021FE181H 176,937 428 71 177,436
Additions B0 3,265 - 1,536 4,801
Interest expense AMEXH 8,503 10 42 8,555
Lease payments HEME (41,649 (197) (782) (42,628)
Effect on modification of BNHERMz &
lease terms 2,165 - - 2,165
Currency realignment SN E 2R 4,638 - 4 4,642
At 31 December 2021 72021FE12831H 153,859 241 871 154,971
Additions i 27,614 - - 27,614
Interest expense FEZ W 7,918 4 17 7,939
Lease payments HEMHIE (34,207) (196) (892) (35,295)
Currency realignment NI E 2 (12,231) - 4 (12,227)
At 31 December 2022 72022412 831H 142,953 49 - 143,002

The analysis of the present value of future lease payments is as follows:

At 31 December

RKEERBEZREDHNOT :

At 31 December

©12H31H R12H31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET
Current liabilities mEAaE 26,768 24,641
Non-current liabilities JERBAaRE 116,234 130,330
143,002 154,971
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#r  HK$'000 FET
Short-term leases expenses FRHAEES W 7,285 5,676
Aggregate undiscounted commitments RALIRAGHATA B AR 4L EE
for short-term leases 311 1,178
Total cash outflows for leases which includes &R HRHE4E%E (BIEXHHEEE
payments of principal and interest portion RS RF B2 RERAESH
of lease liabilities and short-term leases
expenses 42,580 48,304
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28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

(@) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Amount due to an associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 days
credit period.

29. DEFERRED INCOME

28. RIFERRR —HBE QTR

18
(a) RIFERRRAIE

BRMESERT REREEREE-

(b) X—EEEQTIRIE

BRARERSERE - REREANOXBEEFE

HAREE -

29, EIEURA

At 31 December

At 31 December

12A831H 128318
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#&;xr  HK$'000 TE7T
Arising from government grants (notes () & (iij) BB T #E BRFR B (W 52(0) R (i) 53,771 54,663
Arising from rental income (note i) MR EWAPTELE (B 5Li) 27,614 33,941
81,385 88,604
Current TmE 5,231 5,457
Non-current JETRED 76,154 83,147
81,385 88,604

Notes: Bt -

i) In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the
purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as income over
the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfilment of the relevant conditions.
The Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.

ii) In 2021, the Group received the rental income of HK$33,94 1,000 for the leasing of
three investment properties, which had been deferred to recognise as income over
the rental periods of 9 to 10 years.

i) In 2022, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$832,000 for the
purchase of machinery, which had been deferred to recognise as income over the
useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfilment of the relevant conditions. The
Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.

) 20084 AEE B U —IEENEEE72,912,000
B ARBESTEE M EREMAERK
HERREHEEFRAEHRIANRA - KEE
6 4 5% 55 BT 47 B P B 45 B9 SR R AR 1 o

i) R2021F > AEBBRHE=ZREEYENE
F U A 33,941,000 7t > ERTEAROE10F IRE

FESD A URA

i) 720224 » AL E B W —TA B 4 §5832,00078
70 AR BB S MR BN EMAER R R R
EREECRFHRE/ERA - AEBLEZ
LE BT RGPS A BO SR AR AR
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30. BANK BORROWINGS

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

30. RITIRE

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 ®12831H
2022 2021
HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FE7T
Unsecured borrowings: mITIREE .
Bank loans RITEM 418,850 96,134
Import bills loans EOEXR 17,398 231,208
436,248 327,342
Repayable as follows: AR THHAEEE
On demand or within one year (note) FEEREEIIFERN H2E) 200,734 327,342
More than one year, but not exceeding 1FE L L EFRBE2F
two years 123,343 -
More than two year, but not exceeding 2FE L F1EAREBBESE
five years 112,171 -
436,248 327,342
Less: Amounts repayable on demand B AIATRBEBEREERERED
or due within one year shown 1EREIHBNEEE
under current liabilities
— bank borrowings due within -1FREFANIRTTEE
one year (200,734) (827,342)
Amounts due after one year 1% 3 E 235,514 -

Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the current liabilities include all bank loans that
are scheduled to repay within one year.

The bank borrowings with carrying amount of HK$304,701,000 (2021:
HK$288,350,000), including bank loans and import bills loans, of the Group
are variable rate borrowings which carry interest at the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus a spread, ranging from 0.95% to 2.25% (2021:
0.95% to 2.25%) or London Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”) plus a spread,
ranging from 0.95% to 1.8% (2021: 0.95% to 1.8%) per annum. The average
effective interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group is 2.64% (2021:
1.44%) per annum. Bank borrowings with carrying amount of HK$131,547,000
(2021: HK$38,992,000) carry interest at fixed rates ranging from 0.70% to
3.85% (2021: 0.67% to 1.76%) per annum.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, the Group had complied with all covenant ratios.

Mfat : 120229 k20215128310 RBEREEE
FTBERMEREEEZRITER

AEFRMEE304,701,000% 7T (20214
288,350,000/ 7T) NIRTTEE (BIRIRITER
FREOER) AFEEE BEBRTHEERE
(TEBRTRERE) MEEBENF0.95%F
2.25% (20214 : 0.95%F2.25%) 5@ IR1T
BEFE (BBERTERZERE) MLEENTF
0.95%ZF1.8% (20214 : 0.95%F1.8%) Z FF
Ei B - AEBERTEEZFHEREMNEXS
2.64% (20214 : 1.44%) - BRMEE131,547,000
BT (20214 © 38,992,000 7T) WIRITEE
T2 EE EFZENF0.70%E3.85% (20214 :
0.67%ZFE1.76%) 5t 8 o

RIBAEBEIRITRERMGE  KERBHEFH
BIZRAILEER o A& F20224F 2021412831 H
IFEE  AEBEETFHMERNEE.

202283 147



148

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

31. SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December

31. &7k
At 31 December

12H831H ®12A831H
2022 2021
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
RinEE FAET Bi7E8H FET
Ordinary shares, TE BT RERE
issued and fully paid
At beginning and at end REF R ER
of the year 1,225,026,960 889,810 1,225,026,960 889,810

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, a 60% (2021: 60%) owned subsidiary of the
Company, has material non-controlling interests (‘“NCI”). The NCI of all other
subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered not to be
material.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Ocean Lanka (Private)
Limited, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

RSB A ERA (55622F) F1356MF > AT
NWEERLEREEE

32. JEERRE S

ARBR—ENBAEEFEF FAAN) BRA
BI#EB60% (20214F : 60%) BRIER B AR IFIER
i (TFFEREm)) - WIFMAEREBEF100%
BmZ B EMNE AR Z IFERIER NSRS
WARERK

REBANSEHEZA BREFEF RN A
RABFHEREGNBEZMHFEN 25T ¢

2022 2021

HK$'000 F#&5x  HK$'000 F#ET
For the year ended 31 December HE12A31HILEE
Revenue =24 916,806 1,009,300
Profit for the year EFERN 48,734 47,324
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hthz2mmlaE () 134 (2,644)
Total comprehensive income 2 E W EAREE 48,868 44,680
Profit allocated to NCI NEEEIFEREHENET 19,493 18,930
Dividend paid to NClI TR T IR RIS B 10,985 18,653
For the year ended 31 December HE12A31HILEE
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activites ZEIBHFR, FrA) WIRERE 115,929 (67,228)
Cash flows from investing activities KEBEBFENRERE 7,370 7,349
Cash flows used in financing activities nﬁ/ SIHEFTANIRERE (56,561) (19,240)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXEHHINE NER

and cash equivalents HEBENFE (16) 1,017

Net cash inflows/(outflows) RER/A O FE8 66,722 (78,102)
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

32. JEfERREm (B

At 31 December

At 31 December

128318 *12831H
2022 2021
HK$'000 F#5c  HK$'000 F&E7T
Current assets MENEE 437,440 479,962
Non-current assets ERENEE 135,744 130,317
Current liabilities MEIAEE (89,376) (158,792)
Non-current liabilities EREERE (26,136) (6,675)
Net assets BEEFE 457,672 444,812
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEIERE R 183,068 174,614
33. RESERVES 33. {#fE
The Group wE

The Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

FERAFERBEFENREREZHHY]

RizeEmgex-

The Company =AF
Retained
earnings
BIEEA
HK$'000 F#E7T
As 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 1,306,206
Profit for the year EEERF 2,110
Dividend recognised as distribution ERIBADIKZKRE (85,752)
As 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 1,222,564
Profit for the year EEERF 3,709
Dividend recognised as distribution ERIADIKZKRE (196,004)
At 31 December 2022 202212 H31H 1,030,269
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34. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

34. ZERAB ZMFBARRERE

POSITION
At 31 December At 31 December
#12831H ®12831H
2022 2021
Notes HiF HK$000 F#;x  HK$'000 F#E7T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e ENN G Y 1,778 2,909
Right-of-use assets CREEE 349 330
Investments in subsidiaries B ATIKE 7,650 7,650
9,777 10,889
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other EASIE B R HEHME
receivables W IE 2,473 1,390
Amounts due from subsidiaries S EENEI NG 2,961,495 2,876,660
Bank balances and cash IRITHERRIRE 106,548 28,581
3,070,516 2,906,631
Current liabilities Bt =N =
Other payables and accruals HME A RIERESTER 6,699 7,623
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE-—REHID 231 296
Amounts due to subsidiaries RSB A B FRIE 1,153,161 797,178
1,160,091 805,097
Net current assets MENE ERE 1,910,425 2,101,534
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBERREEE 1,920,202 2,112,423
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaE-IERHED 123 49
Net assets BERE 1,920,079 2,112,374
Capital and reserves BXRKREE
Share capital [N 31 889,810 889,810
Reserves (=4 33 1,030,269 1,222,564
Total equity EREE 1,920,079 2,112,374

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and are signed on its

behalf by:

LIU Xianfu

NES

Director

EFE

N
Ef

YAU Hang Tat, Andrew
ERiE3E
Director

EF

S FRN RO R 2023FE3H24HHES
BRAZAESR WA TIEERREE !
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

35. B ABKRE
202212831 H KR2021FE 12831 B AAT +
BB ABMEBOT ¢

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
ML Bk BREMRE/ FARMBERTRE/
WEARRME e g Bk BRI E TEEE
Directly Indirectly
B# it
% %
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 9% Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. fnote b) dyed fabrics
BRDEEREHENEBRAR (Wtb) e 307,500,000 7¢ S RE IEIHERR
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and yarns
REBXERAT s 3,000,000 7T BhRBYER
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
chemical
ERERAT e 3,000,000 7 R4 REBIHES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEGABRAT 53 BT RKES
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note 8) The PRC United States Dollar (‘USD”) - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
110,000,000 fabrics and yarns
IRBESHSBERAR (Hita) e 110,000,000% 7% (T%7t)) A FENHERTREYD
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
ESNERERAT oy 28T RERR
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (nofe g/ The PRC USD10,000,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
(2021: USD18,000,000)
ERABRKERAT (Hita) hE 10,000,000% 7 HERHENK
(2021%: 18,000,000%77)
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee (‘LKR') - 60 Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Republic of Sri Lanka 985,000,000 dyed fabrics
BEEE BA) BRAR HEFFRIHE 985,000,000 HHE R ITEHHERR
TERANE HEFREL (EL)
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEGHEERERAT oy BT MRER
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BEMBERAT s 0BT RERR
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021 are as follows: (continued)

35. MBABRE (8

202212831 H KR2021FE12H31BAAT *
BB ATMEBUOT ¢ @

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
EMmL Bk BRMRE/ FARMBERTRE/
WEAEAHE g BikE BiRAmE TEE
Directly Indirectly
E# fitE
% %
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited ~ Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
chemicals
% (RFRFEERE) ERAT il 100,0002F9# R4 REBIEHES
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd. frofe g}~ The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB’) - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
5,000,000
LERESHBERZERAR (Hia) HE AEE (TARE)) BHES
5,000,007t
FINE B RERAE hote 8) (Hfzta) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
HE A& 35,000,0007 BhES
Sugjan Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. fnote g) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
BREABRRERAT (Hita) e 800,000%7t RERHERR
REREEMERBRAT fnofe g) (Hi5ta) The PRC RMB90,000,000 - 100 Heating supply
e AR 590,000,007 AffE
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited (note g) The PRC USD109,900,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
(2021: USD89,900,000) fabrics and yarns
B EEGABRAR (i) e 109,900,000 7 A RENEEBRREY

(20214: 89,900,000%7r)
Notes:

a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the Group for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Bt -

a. NRARBEDOIMIEEREMIIMNAE-
b. RPBUSELEN ST INMNIIAAT -

U ERRBENMBARNDEREATESR A
HHEAERZFEXEREEREBUBNAE
BERRERCNEERBEEES DMK -
RABIEER A EHMME QA SINFIETZSI
RERBR TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 30, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group may balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts and the redemption of
existing debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities divided
by total capital. Total liabilities is calculated as current liabilities and non-current
liabilities. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

36. EAREMEE

AEEEEEAZEHN ERNEREAERSE
BRUEEKE AKEANGEHEETR Y
BNREFE HFNEFRRALR - AEH
BB ISR R F —2 o

FEENEARBEERS (EPEEWEEI0
PRIRBERVEE) R ABHERA AELED (B
BRTRE KRR °

FABDEEHFBEEERIBELRB - EFRR
SN ARDEFEREANAEERE
R - RBAARDEFTHNER  ~EET
B BIKE RS ~ 31T IR KB R MUK 3
THEFRBEONRAERBEUFTEHEEEELR
o

FERERERERBLEER BIaBEMERRUR
BEX) BEEHER -BEQEANDRATEREKRIF
RBEEFAE - EXBRELIRBER ABGE
moRHRERRNERGR/LERNT -

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 128318

2022 2021

HK$000 T#5c  HK$'000 T&7T

Total liabilities BE4E%E 1,622,998 1,989,292
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z~A T A AL ER 3,221,067 3,560,238
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 50.4% 55.9%

153
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

37. &M T AR
(a) ERIRER

At 31 December

At 31 December

#12831H R12H31H
2022 2021
HK$’000 F %77 HK$'000 F&ET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 12 S At ENTRLE E
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEREAERIRLER) 2,346,310 2,129,061
Financial liabilities ERBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 2N At EN SR EE 1,097,031 1,630,314

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include trade and bills receivables,
deposits, other receivables, restricted and short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. To
mitigate the risk of foreign currency, the Group manages the foreign currency
bank balances by performing regular review. The Group will continue to assess
if the use of the foreign currency hedging strategy as appropriate in order to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

(b) MFEEEERBRKRER

FEENTIEZESH T ASFEEXEREREBIRK
B RE s HMEWRUE IR RERRRITE
FORITREGRRREE BEREBENRIEH
ST RRIE ~ RIFIER IR R BIRUIE ~ X — R B
ABHREBERRTEE ZEETMTAZHE
EREEWNETRE - BZETRTEEHN
REeEmEaR (B%RARKEMNERER) E
ERBERREEE R - TX#H5H MU FEE
BRZERBHNER EREEEREEZER
% > DURE R Js Ry A0 B RSO IR NGB & 15 1 o

15 B
) EEELE

FEBETERBINERZ S ALK EW &I
B R o

AEBREEREEIIERE  URFRRENA
SO REVE B - BEENEERE AEES
BE AR UEIRINE Z IRITHERR - NEEF
At 1 ST B S 1o PR A B O IS Y R SR B AR S
B R o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
() Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

37. TR T A (8

(b) MBEABRTEEERBEE @)
A5 AR ()

() EEEE (8

RBREHE EEEBRSBERNSTERLUS

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are HFHEMNESEEERSEEEMNEREEEN T !
considered significant by the management are as follows:
Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: E8EERERARE
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
®12831H ®12831H *12H31H ®12A31H
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 Tt  HK$000 FEmr  HK$'000 FET  HK$000 FET
usb ES 1,029,322 614,211 207,408 575,402
RMB AR 462,224 365,941 395,774 605,679
Canadian Dollar (‘CAD") e (Tn7es) 7,532 3,312 - 38
LKR Bt 2,794 1,602 2,363 3,404
HK$ BT 2,413 1,345 18,331 15,797
Indonesian Rupiah (‘IDR") gEE (NEE) 518 446 3,460 3,104
Sensitivity analysis BREDT
The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD and ZAEEFESKRFET ARB - MTERET (B
HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group entities. ZEEBHIERMERSEININEE Ebl NS
B8 B &L Bz
The following table detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and  FREMEIIAEBH L INERBRAERS

decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency of
the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HKS$ is
pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On
this basis, there will be a decrease/(an increase) in pre-tax loss for the year
(2021: an increase/(a decrease) in pre-tax profit) where foreign currencies
strengthen against the functional currencies of the corresponding group entity
by 5%, and vice versa. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021.

BB E A ENZESRNBRE > A HETT
Eﬁ%mhfﬁ’] EUEB TR ETIRIN 5% R A E
EEAERMERIMERRKREEANSHE
FER BB A RBIMRELL R
iﬂ(ﬁ’iﬁ DT R B ER EREREEUINET
BENEBIER  H5%MNINEXEHBHEAM
Bo-RItE%E > BINERBAMERBRINES
EHES%  BREEMABERL AL, (GEM)
(20214 1 MRAt@AIE I GBL)) » RZ7F
R BN TH122021 EREEEEETT
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

() Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

37. M T A (&)
(b) MBRKRE
iR ()
) EEEE (&
BREDH (@)
ERBERERAER:

At 31 December

EERREE (@)

At 31 December

$12831H 128318

2022 2021

HK$'000 F#&;x  HK$'000 F#&7T

Decrease/ Increase/

(increase) (decrease)

in pre-tax loss in pre-tax profit

maiwsERL REiEAgm

(38 10) CRib
RMB against HK$ ARBRET 3,323 (11,685)
CAD against HK$ R AT 377 164
3,700 (11,521)

(i) Interest rate risk () FIEEE

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR or LIBOR arising from the Group’s variable-rate
bank borrowings. In view of the frequent changes in market interest rate, the
Group shall monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate
financial instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate borrowings
only as the directors of the Company consider the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from variable-rate bank balances is not significant) at
31 December 2022 and 2021. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2021: 50) basis points increase or
decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

K%.quﬁﬁuui%u?ﬂﬁ‘mjﬁﬁﬂﬂ—éfﬁ‘d‘hn

BRREERRM AEBNBKRZHEFHBTE
E\ﬁ\EL@WJTL/(/WEEQ}EF{TTE%'JTHB“OKQ%
ENReERENXABETIEERRHASERY
ERITEEELE 2B BRITHAEREH MR
ﬁﬂ%?ﬁ U EN o N TG KSR E EH) ) K&
BEg BEAZES TLHE8HEMNE/MT
E;BEFTEE%‘JTHBW °

BRE

TAMRESWRBIETETR EEEZE
B8 RAEARNBESDA T BRI EE%EEEZ
R R E ARSI A EAKR) 120224 2021
FE12B31TANFXARET - BRI ER
REPRHAREENEABHETAEREBEE
AN AREZENREMEE - RNETEEEAE
P IR 2 RA = @ bR T R A50ME (2021812831
A : 50fE) BEZEMFE > AREEBEHFEAAE
BB E AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
loss for the year would increase/decrease by HK$1,524,000 (31 December
2021: decrease/increase in pre-tax profit by HK$1,442,000).

As at 31 December 2022, certain borrowings of the Group are linked to
interbank offered rates which may be subject to interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group has closely monitored the market and the output from the
various industry working groups managing the transition to new benchmark
interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the maximum exposure to credit risk by the Group
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements,
which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers with good
credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and individual basis to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In response to the global economic uncertainty, management has also been
performing more frequent reviews of credit limits for customers in regions and
industries that are severely impacted. During the year ended 31 December
2022, a net impairment loss of HK$17,867,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$11,343,000) in respect of the trade and bills receivables was recognised.

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

37. & T A ()

(b) MBEAKRTEEERBE (@)

Hi A ()

(i) FUFEmE G

HRE T (@

SRIEATAERITIEEM S > HFIE L7+ TS50

WEREEZRATEGERIEMN B1,524,000
Bt (20214128318 : MAIRFAIRED/HE 0
1,442,000 7T) ©

2022128318 AEEETREEHDER
MEREENEFEZRTEEFEH o RE
BEERUBERTSERITETENVAEERE
EIEENEZ R

FEmE

EERREAERENSFHEREGHNEEM
B RSB [ 75 65 1R 2 LB © 1 20224F 522021
F12R31 8 xEBREN FHARERITEEM
EANMBEIANRSEERR CRet REMARE
ENBRFmREMEERAEN AR BEER
BMBRRERME27EREEMEENRAS
LEl

AEEBEERE AEENEERBEZR—A
ANEBEETEERB - EEEMNEMERE
B UBEREINBEETEWCImBEIE E
MEEHEERHEFAERTFEEERNEN
SEENE R o lbih REE T EHRERE KA
B E IR FHMEIEN AT UL B R0 EE > LUFE (R Bl A
WEIFZEEL B REERK - AEH KK
BEAREY EEETEHTIREZENM
ERTENERPETENEENEERESE
o B E2022F12H31HIEEER » KEH
EMEXERERERRBERIREEKRZE
17,867,000 7T (20214128318 : 11,343,000
ABIT) ©
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following

categories

Category
85

Performing

RiF

Doubtful

RER

Default

i
ey

Write-off

i/6iz

(b) MBRKRE
FEmEE (&)

Description

it

For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to
as Stage 1)

BHRBESIBNTEIUREERBIRESENMERCEERENESMEE BS
E—PEED)

For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

BYPEBLUREERBRESENERECFENENEREE BRE _RR)

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred
(refer to as Stage 3)

E-EHAZEHNEMEENGFTREREREETIEENSHELR SHEE
BT RESRE BRE=IEER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

BERETNEBABREMHAZE B AEB BRI ERE

FEERTEERR

37. @M TA (@
BERREE (@)

SHRAEZR B FE LU T 48R

Basis for

recognising

ECL

R THHRE E IR IR

12-month ECL

128 ARG ERIE

Lifetime ECL — not credit
impaired

FRATRHAEERE—&E
EERIE

Lifetime ECL — credit
impaired

FRAEHREEGHE-E
BiriE

Amount is written-off

HEE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well

as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

37. M T A (#)
(b) MBEKEEBEREE (@)
1S B RE ()

TREEEERRRFIAERTHEEN
EEERUNAERMEERNRSEEER

Internal credit ~ 12-month or Gross carrying Net carrying
2022 20225 Notes rating lifetime ECL amount Loss allowance amount
12{8 B ERA
Mzt RBEETR REBEESE HERE{E BERE REFE
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000
FET FET FAET
Trade receivables EEENFIE 20 (Note) Lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired
(simplified approach) 797,805 (52,109) 745,696
(izE) ERABEREERE-&
EEHE (H(57)
Bills receivables ZRRWEE 20 Performing 12-month ECL 183,025 - 183,025
RiF 12BBBHEEER
Deposits and other receivables REREMERIE 21 Performing 12-month ECL 18,453 - 18,453
RiF 12BBBHEEER
Restricted bank deposits SIRBIRTER 2 Performing 12-month ECL 5,457 - 5,457
RiF 12BBBHEEER
Short-term bank deposits BHRTER 23 Performing 12-month ECL 246,116 - 246,116
RiF 12BBBHEEER
Bank balances and cash BOEBERE 23 Performing 12-month ECL 1,147,563 - 1,147,563
RiF 12BBBHEEER

2,398,419 (52,109) 2,346,310
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

37. @M TA (@
(b) MBERAREEREREE @)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (&
Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Net carrying
2021 20214 Notes rating lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount
12[EARERA
i3 NEBEETR  BREERS MEEE BiEkE REFE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr i T
Trade receivables BEENRTIE 20 (Note) Lifetime ECL - not credit
impaired (simplified
approach) 1,037,003 (36,832) 1,000,171
(Mzh) ERNEBREERE-E
BEAE @b
Bills receivables SERNTE 20 Performing 12-month ECL 270,164 - 270,164
RiF 12EREHREERE
Deposits and other receivables RERAMERTIE 21 Performing 12-month ECL 35,665 (6,115) 29,550
RiF 12EREHREERE
Restricted bank deposits SRHIRAED 22 Performing 12-month ECL 4197 - 4,197
RiF 12EREHREERE
Short-term bank deposits SRERTER 23 Performing 12-month ECL 57,846 - 57,846
RiF 12EREHREERE
Bank balances and cash BOBGHREE 23 Performing 12-month ECL 767,133 - 767,133
RiF 12EREHREERE
2,172,008 (42,947) 2,129,061
Note: B 5T

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these
items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience
based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current
conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk
profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the
provision matrix.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past default
experience of the debtor, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtor and
the economic environment is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

MEXRBREMS  ~EMEEREBYBRS
FER BRI EIRFRATRMEE BB BEHEER
B AERZEERBEEREEZSHANEABREG
EEE REEHABTAMKINBEEERIER
BREITES WIFHEBEERELURMRE R R AR
ERRRGE - Ht ZFEENEERRESR
BRAERERRSBERRRIES -

HRAEENBEEEERERIERBIEER
DEHEREXNABHEER RIBE—FSEDOE
EETAEABERBEFANBREQLR  WIZE
BARENAEERRREERE T UEENBR
e



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2022 and

EBEEE(RE)ARSE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
iR E MBS RARMTEE (R)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

37. EM T A (&)

FEmEE (&)

(b) HHBEBREEBRRER (&)

TRIBUHRAR AERHL2022F K2021FE 12531
HL & 2N 2R EWRIEFT m G E S R A

2021: TEHREERENER
Expected loss Gross carrying
2022 20225 rate amount Loss allowance
TERARSIE LE =R HHEREE SR
(%) HK$000 F3#5;7 HK$'000 F#ET
Not yet due REIHA 2.47% 810,528 20,051
Overdue 1-60 days #EA1-60K 2.69% 99,164 2,664
Overdue 61-365 days #1HR61-365% 37.22% 66,497 24,753
Overdue >365 days BHAEIA365K 100.00% 4,641 4,641
980,830 52,109
Expected loss Gross carrying
2021 20214 rate amount Loss allowance
FEHAESIBLE = HARmEE B IR
(%)  HK$000 F&Em  HK$000 FET
Not yet due REIHA 1.73% 1,139,206 19,761
Overdue 1-60 days #HR1-60K 3.31% 147,392 4,883
Overdue 61-365 days #1861-365% 46.12% 15,556 7,175
Overdue >365 days HHREIA365K 100.00% 5,013 5,013
1,307,167 36,832

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 5 years.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected

lives of the receivables.

Ho

& 5

FRRBRLEXRRBESENERBRERS
BE-ZFLRERE URMREREESE
FEEREER R BRI U A EE Y
FE YRR IR BY R 1A 4F R AR

AR ZBEBE
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

37. @M TA (@
(b) MBERAREEREREE @)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (&
Movements in the loss allowance are as follows: EIEEE ST
2022 2021
HK$000 F#5x  HK$'000 FE7T
At 1 January R1B1H 36,832 25,056
Impairment loss made on trade and bills EERBEBERIWMIEZ FHERERZK
receivables, net FE 17,867 11,343
Amounts written off as uncollectible (A B We [B] i 6 B9 <& 28 (344) (12)
Currency realignment NI ERE (2,246) 445
At 31 December R12831H 52,109 36,832

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included in the
loss allowance with an aggregate balance of HK$52,109,000 (31 December
2021: HK$36,832,000) was impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following changes in the gross carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables mainly contributed to the increase in the loss allowance:

— increase in lifetime expected credit loss after assessing existing or forecast
change in business, financial or economic conditions which may cause
deterioration in the operating results of the debtors;

— increase in the adjustment factors to expected loss rates as a
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic; and

-  written-off of uncollectible trade and bills receivables.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its subsidiaries
after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial conditions. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.

R2022FE12831 0 st A EREARERS
52,109,000/ 7t (2021412831H : 36,832,000
BT WAEBREERREERIHIBE RE A
EEUERZEEFITEEARER

EERERBRUFIBBREAEZUTEH TR
HR IR R A G NPT ER -

- KIEPEEREBAZEEEXEREZ
EH MBREE KR ZRERTRRES
BIBMERNTAREERHE ;

- HEERKBESEEEMENERBERNH
BREE, &

- MEARREREE R R EWRRIE

SN R RBEREFIREBENE QBB
ARRETT AEME A RHMFHER - FLULm
B ARAEERATEENEERBREKE
AR

EERBETARDANREFEREXBEEERRR
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

For other non-trade related receivables, the Group has assessed whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
considers that there is no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12-month
ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable credit-
rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2022, the available unutilised banking
facilities of the Group are approximately HK$3,020 million (31 December 2021:
HK$2,761 million).

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

37. M T A (#)
(b) MBEKEEBEREE (@)
1S B RE ()

MEMIFEZEBREWRFIEMS  ~EB B
GHEERMBEVEER LR EEEZE MK
EERABPEBERERBLUR 2EFEZEER
i A E IR N MAERREB12@ B FBHRE
BEEsHRAER S

KEENRBHESEERBER REFHIH
BEAEENEETRBBATEEETRIE
170

BRERERRETREENRRTHABES
ZEERRERIIN AEBTERNEAETR
EERR AREEIBRNEEEFS -

R EZ AR

REERBESRRE  ~2EETERRER
BEERBRARHKFNEERERREEE
DN AERESEMRERAGBEREESRERE
TE - BEEESERBTEENERBR LH#
RETRBAERZEN -

BRERIN REEGRBRETEEEATERD
BEHIRPR2022FE 128310 AEBEK A H)
FBXEMIRITEE%847%3,020,000,0008 7T
(20214128318 : 2,761,000,0005 7T) °
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31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest is floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average  Less than
effective 1 month or 3 months
2022 2022%F interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year

mEFs DR
BRfIEZ  HEER 1EMER  EREIF
%  HKS000  HKSU0O  HK$000
&7 TET &7

37. M T A (&)
(b) MBEKRERBRKREER (&)
FEELmEE (18

TRFVREZEERFRETERIFTESH
BENHTENEBMBR ZRDRAEERD]
FERERTMRFEHRRBSRMEERARR
RRERERH - ZREBANEREEZRER
E-EFNERAFHFRZBRERN  RAEFEER
TSR Z ARG H -

Carrying

Total  amount at

undiscounted 31 December

1-2 years 2-5years Over5years cash flows 2022
120225

FERRE  12A81A

1526 2E5F BiBsE  RELE  NREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET FET FAET

Non-derivative financial liabilities JEf7 4 £ R & &

Trade, bills and other payables &% ZEREHMER A 415,077 139,544 66,706
Amounts due to non-controling ~ RIEZBREZIE

shareholders 37,027 - -
Amount due to an associate il =R 2,429 - -
Bank borrowings RITEEE

- variable rate -%8 3.36 6,593 15,304 65,646

— fixed rate -8 1.35 132,218 - -

; - - 37 621,327

- - - 37,027 37,027
- - - 2,429 2,429

134,680 114,699 - 336,922 304,701
- - - 132,218 131,547

593,344 154,848 132,352

134,680 114,699 - 1,129,923 1,097,031

The maturity analysis of lease REaRZIBE T
liabiliies are as below: mr:
Lease liabilities HESE 5.22 4,018 5,492 23,912

30,953 52,954 98,422 215,751 143,002

Total BE 597,362 160,340 156,264

165,633 167,653 98,422 1,345,674 1,240,033
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

37. M T A (#)
(b) MBEEAMEREEREE (@)

Liquidity risk (continued) REIEZERE (5B
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December
2021 20215 interestrate ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  over5years  cash flows 2021
12021
mETs  DMER FERRE 128318
ERFEX  gEEK  1E3EF  SEAXEIE 1526 PESS BEsE  REMRE  NEREE
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET TET FHET FET TET FHET TEn
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE7 £ £ &
Trade, bills and other payables X ERREMEGTE 724,633 294,231 59,860 - - - 1078724 1,078,724
Amounts due to non-controling ~ RIEZERIREZE
shareholders 62,834 - - - - 62,834 62,834
Amount due to an associate R—EHERTRE 6,443 - - - - 6,443 6,443
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate -%8 1.44 132,534 133,956 22,329 - - - 288,819 288,350
- fixed rate -EE 0.75 - 39,027 - - - 39,027 38,992
926,444 467,214 82,189 - - - 1475847 1,475,343
The maturity analysis of lease REaEZIEANN
liabilities are as below: mr:
Lease liabilities fEsk 511 3,052 5,980 23,714 28,491 67,094 85,312 213,643 154,971
Total e 929,496 473,194 105,903 28,491 67,094 85,312 1,689490 1,630,314

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

(c) Fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings.

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and amount due to an associate approximates their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

HEBF R EBB RN N REAEFAEEZ
HMRMGE A LRI TESMERZFIEIA
Z &P RER PN E

(c) 2FEE
WU FEEAFEZZHM TR

WIFURAFEBEFSEZEM T AEGEZRGIR
TEFRHERFRALEE EERRERK
MIES HAthEWGRIE s EE R RERORIEH
g RRIE RIFERR AR RARIE R—BEBE A
BIRIBEKRIRITEE

M EBEAME  ZRAEBITER - RERER
REEE X REBHEEWIE Y HMEUR
BN EE R BB EARIE S EMENRIE RIF
ERRRRIAR KX —EBE QS RIENREE
BEHAFEBEES

AREBIGR AN BHEA AT ENESRTENIER
EE > B E 20228128331 H &2021F128
STHNAFEBETEEAEE
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

MEETHELNERZHR

Amounts due to

38. RERETMERME

non-controlling Lease
Bank borrowings shareholders liabilities
RIELER
RITEE BE RIS HEaR
(note 30) (note 27)
(H1z#30) (Htzt27)
HK$'000 &7  HK$'000 FEx  HK$'000 FET
At 1 January 2021 t2021F181H 236,748 64,525 177,436
Changes from cash flows: REnEEH) .
New bank borrowings raised WMEEZIRTEE 1,233,089 - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (1,142,748) - -
Interest paid BAFE (6,399) - -
Repayment of amounts due to BER IR ERANIE
non-controlling shareholders - (1,691) -
Repayment of principal portion BEMESEZAETEHD
of the lease liabilities - - (84,073)
Repayment of interest portion EBEREaEZHNERD
of the lease liabilities - - (8,555)
Total changes from financing MEBERSMEEBIELE
cash flow: 83,942 (1,691) (42,628)
Other changes: HhEs) .
Interest expenses (note 7) MEREZ (Wit7) 6,670 - 8,555
Increase in lease liabilities from RAERFTILMAEMER
entering into new leases HESREIEM
during the year - - 4,801
Effect of modification of lease terms  1Es]THE &Rz 2 £ - - 2,165
Currency realignment SN IR ZRE (18) - 4,642
Total other changes HhE& g5 5t 6,652 - 20,163
At 31 December 2021 142021512831H 327,342 62,834 154,971
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OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (continued)

= A
8. &R A8

RERERME (&)

MEZHELENEEZHER (@

Amounts due to

non-controlling Lease
Bank borrowings shareholders liabilities
RIELERR
RITEE BE RIS HEAaRE
(note 30) (note 27)
(H7#30) (Htz£27)
HK$'000 &7  HK$000 FEx  HK$'000 FET
At 31 December 2021 £2021512831H 327,342 62,834 154,971
Changes from cash flows: HWE RS .
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRTEE 1,193,538 - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (1,084,881) - -
Interest paid BEFIE (11,964) - -
Repayment of amounts due to ,%LAQF?’“HRJ&%TAIE
non-controlling shareholders - (25,807) -
Repayment of principal portion BEMESRZAETEHD
of the lease liabilities - - (27,356)
Repayment of interest portion EEREaE N EHD
of the lease liabilities - - (7,939)
Total changes from financing MERSREEHEEE
cash flow: 96,693 (25,807) (35,295)
Other changes: HhEs) .
Interest expenses (note 7) MEREZ W5E7) 13,469 - 7,939
Increase in lease liabilities from RERFTILMAEMER
entering into new leases HE&®EM
during the year - - 27,614
Currency realignment NI =28 (1,256) - (12,227)
Total other changes HihE g5t 12,213 - 23,326
At 31 December 2022 20224124318 436,248 37,027 143,002
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

39. BAKIE
At 31 December At 31 December
®12831H ®12831H
2022 2021

HK$’000 F & T HK$'000 T BT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not HEEME - WEMREBEEBZEEDN

provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of acquisition BEARME
of property, plant and equipment

BRGEMBREREFLEEZ

86,607 116,978

40. OPERATING LEASES

As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during the
year was approximately HK$15,823,000 (2021: HK$14,834,000). The related

outgoings amounted to HK$1,524,000 (2021: HK$1,260,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in
respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.

40. EEHE
2 A A

REREER AEEMRREYWEFRBSHMAE
S ABENA15,823,000 7T(20214F
14,834,000/ 7T) c BRI H%A1,524,000/8 7T
(20214 : 1,260,000 7T) ©

RESHE AEEEBEFAMEEYESTN
PARRREAEWRA T

At 31 December At 31 December
#12831H R12831H
2022 2021

HK$000 &  HK$'000 FE7T

Within one year 1ER 12,836 20,046
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOEEFESFEN (BEMFREEN) 19,198 17,375
Over five years 5FELE 12,667 9,676

44,701 47,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible employees
of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The retirement
benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the required
contributions.

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, amounting to HK$79,884,000
(2021: HK$73,709,900) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and
included in employee costs as set out in note 9(c).

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 28.

(b) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

41. RIREF| TS
AEBERBR RN ERPIEMBR L —BE
BRMHARET 8 (TR RN E))) RIREBRHIMEAR
BE ST BRAIRI—IBRFIMEAEEE (T2
BESE)) FTRECERNAEREBES
EMESENEEDBINAEREELHE
SEAEE - EIREAHFRIBRKBR LT &
EERRBFABMELLTABNEAESHR

FEBEMBAM B ESRIESEZFEM
& I 4 B9 B 5OGR IR A8 A 5t 81 B E BE k5t
geo-rERAREEFMNETADLLERT
ZEAFRENESZ AERNZFHEN
W—EEREREFH AR

RMmEFE  FEEERHERKER 5 E MR
AU R B K 0 W R IE N BT A R 40 R R 2R
E BRI

ERREEEER AR ERKRER T8I H R
£ %8 479,884,00078 7T (20214 : 73,709,900/
70) » W E 5t AMEEO(C)FF & 2 R E A4S 7 o

42. R R BAE A LRI ER

(a) BAMEATHIEEER

7 2 [ BRI A TR KB B AR B RIINGR
SHBR R AR KM 8P

(b) BABEALZSE
REEFERARKATETTIRS

Related party Nature of
Name of related party relationship transaction 2022 2021
RAE AL 28 BARAE A THIRAR RHtE HK$000 &5t  HK$'000 FE7T
REMBEKBERAR Associate Sewage expenses 15,138 21,477
i —J/NE TSIKERIEE

None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

FHRBEZ A LR Z AT BN EHRRE
UABFTREZ MER Z U ERER S
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 42. Bl REAEATHIEE (&)
(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (c) AEALRS

Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2022 2021
REANLT R XHEE HK$'000 F#&r  HK$'000 &1
The FM Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 272,086 366,026
FMEE & (K752i) EBEmE A ~ MM R AR B 1

The AH Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 212,565 225,313
AHEE (H/3Eii) E B FRAD « M 4 R IR E

Chinatex Group (nhote i) Purchase of yarns, cotton and other materials 18,461 1,224

for the manufacture of fabric, garments and
cooking oil and foodstuffs

FREREE R (B 3Eii) R4 ~ 1B TE R ELAh A E IRV R A7
R LA RS A B o
Huafu Group (note iv) Purchase of cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, - 35,697
top dyed melange yarn and other yarn products
EZEME (Hativ) R RRGA  BHA R EMADE @
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEREFT ANE¥EFT
COFCO Finance (nhote v) Maximum daily balance of deposits placed by 55,000 -
the Group

g (Watv) FEBERRSE A FRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a FM Master Sales
Agreement (the “2021 FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master
Sales Agreement (the “2024 FM Master Sales Agreement”) regarding the sales
of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to the FM Group on
22 November 2018 and 16 December 2021 respectively. Mr. Omar is a director
and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The FM
Group comprises companies which Mr. Omar and his associates and relatives
individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50% of the
voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the
board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM Group are associates of Mr.
Omar and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement and the
2024 FM Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement was for a term commencing from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive) and the 2024 FM Master Sales
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024
(both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2021 under the 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$350,000,000,
HK$400,000,000 and HK$400,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018. The annual cap
amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December 2024 under the
2024 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$450,000,000, HK$450,000,000 and
HK$450,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2021.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$450,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

42. R EAEANTHNKRE (8

(c)

RMEALRS (@)

Mt -

)

AT EFeroz Omardt 4 (TOmarst 4 )) 522018
F11H22H K2021F12816 B D R4~ &E &
BFMEBE R E R IRAD ~ 4 R B 5T
IFMAESH & 1738 (T 2021 EFMABES £ 1358 )) &
BEFMARSEE S (T 2024 FEFMARSH E 17 ER) o
Omart A AN — B2 ENBREZESE
RITERF RBBELTRA BAEKAT 2R
BAL -FMEEZHRE QB BEROMarf - K&
HBMBATIEKBRBIEZSEATNREAT L
1B Bl 3k B AT R S BT E B # U E8Y
RARIEHNZELBDEETGABORENR
B AL FM&EE 2 58 B /A B AOmarft & 2§
VAT MR ELHRA FMEEAAR AT
2 BB AT o iR EHRAIF14AZ ) 20215FM
LASHE 18 B 2024 FEFMARSH E 18 T8 T EETT
ZRBERARRNB ZIFERAERS

2021 FEFMARSH & 1 2 F HAFR2019F1 B 1 HE
F2021F128B31H L (BIEEEMX) »M2024
FEFMABIHE R E 2 FHH2022F1B18EEE
202451283101 (BEEHEMX) °

A AT BEA2018F11822HZ A E
FT&l> 2021 FEFMAEHE R ENEH E20215F
128A31HE=ABREENFEELREED
Bl 350,000,000 7t ~ 400,000,000 7T &
400,000,000 7T ° sl i1 4~ A B B #852021412
B16H 2 AEF#E > 2024 FMARSS E N L
F2024F12B31HIE= AR BEENEE LR
£ X8 5l %450,000,0003 7T ~ 450,000,000 75
450,000,000 7T

ZEMBERZ W EBBART HIRH20215F12
B16BZ AEPME & £2022F 12831 B IEFE
2 FE FR450,000,00054 7T ©
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”)
entered into a AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2021 AH Master Sales
Agreement”) and a renewed AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2024 AH Master
Sales Agreement”) regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts
by the Group to the AH Group on 22 November 2018 and 16 December 2021
respectively. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The AH Group comprises companies which
Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise
or control the exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings
or control the composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly,
members of the AH Group are associates of Mr. Hirdaramani and hence connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under the 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement and the 2024 AH Master Sales
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement was for a term commencing from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive) and the 2024 AH Master Sales
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024
(both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2021 under the 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$350,000,000,
HK$400,000,000 and HK$400,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018. The annual cap
amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December 2024 under the
2024 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$450,000,000, HK$450,000,000 and
HK$450,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2021.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$450,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

42. kR AEALTHNRE (&)

(c)

MEALRS (@

Mzt o ()

(i)

AN B ANl Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanist 4
(THirdaramanift 4 1) X 2018F 118228 &
2021FE12B16H DB AEBEBAHER HE
R BRAD ~ M4 Ko AR IR BC 1 5] SLAHARSH & 155
(2021 FAHARTH E i) RBAHBTHE R
(T 2024FAHAE B E 3% ]) °Hirdaramanisft &
ABRANB—BIIEENRNBREZESHTER
BoRBLETRAUD BAARBD ZEEAL
AHEE 2 B B/~ B 8 g HHirdaramanift £ & H
BMBATRBEBOEZELABIREAE @5
S HEMITHEHIEFITEBEFHU LBRR
B WIEFZERADESTEZATIREN QT
At > AHE B 2 B 8 /A B AHirdaramanisft £ 2
MBAL WmiEE TR AHEBA AR
BB AT IRIE EHRAFE14AZE > 20216
AHARSH E 1755 2024 EAHIESY E 1775518 T IR E
T2 RAEMAABZHERERS

2021FEAHIBIN E 1758 ~ S HIFR2019E1 B 1HEE
F2021F12831H L (BIEERMX) > M2024
FEAHEHEHE 2 EHHH2022F1B18EE
2024512H31HIE (BEEBEMX) °

HUAAT HEEA2018FE11822B 22 A&
Fra& > 2021 FAHBH EHZENREE202145F
12A3MALE=ZBAHREENEE LRESED
Bl 350,000,000 75 ~ 400,000,000 7T &
400,000,00078 7T © s 40 4~ A &) B #§ 52021512
B16H Z AEFTE ) 2024 FEAHAR S E 7B
E2024F 12831 HIE =B BEENEE LIR
£ %89 Bl A450,000,0007% 7T * 450,000,0007 7T
450,000,000 7T ©

ZEMBERZLEBIBAAS HEAE20218£12
B16HZ AEFFEE E2022F12831HIEEE
Z FE £ E450,000,0007 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The Company and Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) entered into a
Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2021 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement”) and a renewed Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2024
Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) in relation to the purchase of yarn,
cotton, other materials for the manufacture of fabric, garments, whereas cooking
oil and foodstuffs for the provision of meals to the employees by the Group from
the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries) on 22 November 2018
and 16 December 2021 respectively. Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group are associates of Chinatex and hence
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement and the
2024 Material Purchase Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement was for a term commencing
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive) and the 2024
Material Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021
under the 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$63,000,000,
HK$63,000,000 and HK$63,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 November 2018. The annual cap amounts for the three
financial years ending 31 December 2024 under the 2024 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement are HK$63,000,000, HK$63,000,000 and HK$63,000,000
respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2021.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$63,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

ARG AT ERARMEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2022 202212831 H

42. R EAEANTHNKRE (8

(c) FAEALRS (&)
Bzt ()

(il

AABERPEPHERERAE (Th451) 1B
2018F 118228 &20214F12816 3 D B st &
BB 4nEE B4 KR EH B A S) SREEIRAD
TRIE i ERRRRA Rk BTk U B
RarEBRERBERZEHBRILYE
IREEZRE (T 2021 EYBERBIERRZE)) &
EYEREERGE (2024 Y B RBEIEZER
&) o ARAT ZERRRE AL BiE L
IR PHBRAT ZREA L ABREM IR
ELETRA R EECRE AT AT 2
VAL AMAEEAT ZRBEA L RIELHIR
BIZE14AE > 2021 FY) B R FEE LS 1758 2024 4F
YERBERBEE NRET 2R ZBEAEA
B EBERS -

2021 EY)ERIBIER W& 2 EHIH2019FE1 8 1
HEZE2021FE128310 L (BHEEEMX) » M
2024 M E R BBIEZR 5% 2 S HAH2022F1 51
HAEZE2024FE 12831 H 1 (BEEHEMX) °

MR AT HEAA2018F 11 B22H 2 A&
2021 FEMERBERBENEE2021512
A31RLE=EFBEFENFE LIRSEDHR
63,000,0007 7T * 63,000,0007 7T 563,000,000
Bt ARAT HEA2021F128168 2
NEFH 2024FYERBERGENREBE
2024 F 12831 HIE =AM HFENFE LIRE
&5 7l 7363,000,0007% 7T, ~ 63,000,0007 7T K2
63,000,000 7T ©

ZEMBRZUEBBARAEHEAA20214F12
B16HZ AEFREE E2022F12831HIEEE
Z FE _FE63,000,000 7T o
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(V)

The Company and Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. (‘Huafu Holding”) and its subsidiaries
(*Huafu Group”) entered into a purchase framework agreement (the “2022
Purchase Framework Agreement”) and a renewed purchase framework agreement
(the “2025 Purchase Framework Agreement”) on 29 November 2019 and
13 December 2022 respectively. Pursuant to the 2022 Purchase Framework
Agreement and the 2025 Purchase Framework Agreement, Huafu Holding agreed
to, or procures its subsidiaries to, supply cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, top
dyed melange yarn and other yarn products that may be needed for the Group. The
cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, top dyed melange yarn and other yarn products
that may be needed to be purchased by the Group will be used for the manufacture
of textile products of the Group.

As Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of Huafu Holding,
completed the acquisition of 16.33% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company on 1 November 2019, Tin Shing has become a substantial Shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Huafu Holding,
as the holding company of Tin Shing, is an associate of Tin Shing and, therefore, is
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement
and the 2025 Purchase Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive) and 2025 Purchase
Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2022 under the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$600,000,000,
HK$600,000,000 and HK$600,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$600,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019.

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2025 under the 2025 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$40,000,000,
HK$40,000,000 and HK$40,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

42. kR AEALTHNRE (&)

(c) REALRS (&)
ez - ()

(v)

AATR2019F11 5290 K2022F 12513 H &
EZERARAE (EZER) REKBAE
(MFEZEE)) DRI IRBIERHE (T 20224
IREEIEZR R ) RS EBERBEZRE (2025
FERBEZRWEL) c RIF2022ERBIERHE
K025 F IR BENEZR % EFEREE (FHEME
HB AR HERY R RAL B RAE
EEOEEENEHMUVGER AERESE
BIRE B BRGL B  REMAGRE
i AR S AN EE AR o

BEREBRAMEZERAT (TR > —BRNE
BHEMRIZERAT  TAEFIERZE2E
WEAT) R2019FE11B1EZMIKEARAATE
BTN 216.33%  1RiE L HHRA) > XA
ERAERRBIZETERRNEEA L EFITR

EABRBZEZERAT) AREZBEA L
I 1B EHIRBIE14AE s EZ LR AKAT
ZRAEANTL

2022 F BB HE IR 177 58 Fe 2026 F £R BB IE 2R 17728 18
TRETZXZWHERBN EHRAIE14A
BETZFHERERS -

2022 FE R BEIELR 5% 2 FHIFR2020FE1 B 1HEE
F2022512831H 1L (BIEEHEMKR) K&20255E
IREEIE LR 55 2 EHAR20234E1 1 BEE2025
F12B3181E (BEEEMX) ©

HUMAAT HEEA2019F 1182908 2 E
FE 2022 FE REEIER B BN E E20224612
ASIHLEL=ZBEYBREEEELREED
31 600,000,000 75 ~ 600,000,000 7T K
600,000,000 7T, ©

ZEMBRHUWEBEART HEAR2019F11
H20H Z AEFRE B E2022F12831HILFE
Z FE £ FR600,000,00054 7T ©

ARSI HEEA2022F 128130 2 A& FR
B 2025 IRBEER G RN E E2025F128
SIHE=AREENEELREEIRS
40,000,0003# 7T ~ 40,000,000 75 & 40,000,000
BrTe
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 42. FAE: &BAE A THIEE (&)
(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued) (c) FAEALXZ (@&

Notes: (continued) Hist - (&)

(vy  The Company and COFCO Finance Company Limited (‘COFCO Finance”) entered  (v) ZAATR2022F7B14H BTG FHHEESEL

into a finance services agreement (the “Financial Services Agreement”) on 14 July T (TR %)) sl U & RRFH S (SRR
2022. Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement, COFCO Finance agreed to FiEl) o RIBERMRB RS PRMBREEEAR
provide deposit services, comprehensive loan services and other financial services EEERTRRE 2EEFRBREMERH
to the Group. As COFCO Finance is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the BB -BRFPIERBAERABREEAB]PFIE
Company’s ultimate parent, COFCO Corporation, and hence COFCO Finance is a SENEEZENB AR FAILRE EmHRA
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Fig AR ABINREA LT

The transactions contemplated under the Financial Services Agreement constitute TRRBHRE TN RETZIXZ2ERARIN
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the LTRSS 4AZE N 2 FERER 5o

Listing Rules.

The Financial Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 14 July 2022 to SRR HE 2 FHH202287814HERE
13 July 2025 (both days inclusive). 2025478138 1F (BIFEEERF)

The maximum daily balance of deposits (including accrued interests) placed by HANAS AT HEFA2022F7 140 2 A SR
the Group pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement is RMB55 million or its REMBRBHENEIRN FERRESR
equivalent on any day throughout the term of the Financial Services Agreement and RBmZERERNREES B ERGEER (B1EEEF]
the maximum fees payable by the Group for the other financial services pursuant B) AARMS 5008 THAEEERMEM SRR
to the Financial Services Agreement is HK$500,000 or its equivalent on an annual RHFEMsS  ~2EBRESHRBHBEECINE
basis as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 14 July 2022. S8 HAASES00,0008 THESEE

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the maximum daily ZERMBERF M EBBAAT HEA2022F7H
balance of deposits of RMB55 million or its equivalent on any day throughout the 1A Z A SFrEE E2022F 128310 LEEEH
year ended 31 December 2022 and the maximum services fees payable on annual BN ReESHEREFRARKS 008 THESE
basis of HK$500,000 or equivalent as set out in the announcement of the Company BEREEENERSES00,0008THHEE-

dated 14 July 2022.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) FEEEASHEHBN

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during ZAEEBZEZEREMETEEEAEMFTMOT ¢
the year was as follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 F# T HK$'000 T

Fees BE 1,050 951
Short-term benefits S HRREF 6,822 6,322
Post-employment benefits BB E 191 186
Discretionary bonuses M55 - 2,833

8,063 10,292
The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the HEERIFTEBEAEZMEHESIRBAR
Board and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Bz &EX2&E BN RBERALLETSBHTH

Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market  F M E » R NE S T ER -
statistics.
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2022 20224125 31H

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”). The
Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent third
parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw
materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to these
state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition, the Group’s
bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits) and bank borrowings of HK$696,574,000 and HK$121,138,000
(31 December 2021: HK$456,021,000 and HK$83,770,000) respectively are
placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2022.

42. kR AEALTHNRE (&)

() BHMPEEEERETNRS

AEBREEMENCERRRFEZHPEK
REENEEES HREGSHIHETES
FENNER RETHEER) T8 -&R
AEERR ESBHERERETHERZN
HABRHEAEILSE =T

RER *EEBRAMEEERETRZ &
BEFRRHEERMm  BERE KE UKk
HEEEIRTENKZ S

BZEAEERHEEERRRBERE X
BEWNERR S MLIEE K LI > FR20224F12
B31H > AEBENIRITAER (BEEHETE
AEZREIBITER) RBTEERRAE
696,574,000 7T K2 121,138,000 75,(2021 412
B31H : D 8I4A456,021,0005% 7T & 83,770,000
BT AERREERT BEERTTH.



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
ARERE

Listing . Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 20 April 1988

Stock Code . 420
Board Lot . 2,000 shares
Shares Issued . 1,225,026,960

(as at 31 December 2022)

Financial Calendar

Financial year end 31 December 2022
2022 interim results announced 25 August 2022
2022 annual results announced 24 March 2023
Register of members closed for 26 — 29 June 2023

determining the right to attend and

vote at Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meeting 29 June 2023
2023 interim results to be announced Late August 2023

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,
change of correspondence address, etc.,
please contact the Company’s share registrar:
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.

148 Electric Road, North Point
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2153 1688

Fax: +852 3020 5058

Investor Relations

Ms. Charmaine CHENG
Company Secretary and
Deputy General Manager
Corporate Governance Department of the Group
Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 3478 6267
Email: pr@fshl.com
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